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“Fresh Thinking
Quality Living”

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited (“SPG Land” or the “Group”): Hong Kong
Stock Code: 337) is a reputable property developer that is principally
engaged in the development of quality residential and hotel properties.
Headquartered in Shanghai, since its corporation, the Group has
successfully developed three exemplar large-scale trophy projects|in
Shanghai: namely Cambridge Forest Newtown, Cambridge Waters
and Cambridge Watertown, and established our reputable brand
name. Since our listing in October 2006, SPG Land has strategically
achieved.in expanding its business to the cities in Yangtze River Delta;
including Wuxi, Changshu, and Suzhou, as well as some emerging
and developing-markets, such as Huangshan, Kunming and/ Haikou.
With our unique residential design, exquisite living environment and
innovative architecturalstyle and outstanding sales performarice, we
were awarded “Shanghai Top Ten Foreign Property Developers in 18
years”. Since our listing in the-Main Board of The Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, our profile in the international capital market’has gradually
enhanced. The Group was selected as a constituent stock of the/200-
Stock Hang Seng Composite Index Series-and Hang Seng Freefloat
Index Series in March 2007, and obtained the renowned status as the
“Top 100 Property Developers in China” in the same year.

The sustained rapid growth of the PRC economy has’accelerated its
urbanization progress. With the increase in the disposal income/of the
urban population, in particular the middle-to-high income sector, the
Group is committed to providing high quality products and distinctive
services. Hence, the Group works Wwith world renowed /design teams
for the development of its projects. Moreover, we adopt' an aggressive
but selective approach in enlarging the scale of our quality land bank,
Our management firmly believes that our focus on quality of products
and selecting sites with growing potential are conductive to the
healthy and stable development of the Group in the long run,

To facilitate our business diversification and to enhahce recurring
income, besides the excellent track record in property development,
the Group has also actively co-operated with teading hotel
management groups,and has achieved promijsing outcome.
Currently, the hotel projects of the Group include the investment and
development of Peninsula Hotel on the-Bund in Shanghai; the Aman
Shanghai on the Bund; Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn; and the
Crowne Plaza Resort Hotel and Chedi Resort at the world“renowned
scenic area of’'Huangshan. With regard to the development of the
hotel business of the Group; all the above projects will benefit from
the rapid development of tourism industry, 2008 Olympics and 2010
World Expo in Shanghai. With the increase in recurrent income|from
hotel operations and investment properties, it will strengthen the
business foundation of the long term development of SPG Land.

“Fresh Thinking, Quality Living” is the corporate vision of SPG Land.
With odr international and professional background, SPG/Land stands
out-itselffrom the China’s real estate market. We believe that, with
our professional management, superb product quality and prudent
financial operation, we will be able to devote ourselves fully to
building up the better future for cities in China, creating a harmonized
and humane society whole-heartedly, and at the same time will
maximise the returns to our stockholders and investors!
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Financial Highlight
B2

RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS ¥ 4& =

For the year ended 31 December =+ - A =+—H It EEH

2007 2006
ZEFELHE —EER
RMB Million RMB Million Change
ARBBEET AREBHETT 2 g
Revenue W 25 1,887 -9%
Gross profit & Fl 580 +11%
Profit from operating activities g 5 4€ & )& &) i 7 486 +27%
Net Profit /5 F] 399 +31%
Attributable to: LA~ A+ E(E -
— Equity holders of the Company — 7 2 B IR #H A 391 +27%
— Minority interests — /> 8 % 5 # 25 8 +213%
Earnings Per Share (RMB) ik &% (AR IT)
— Basic —E K 0.480 +0.2%
— Diluted —#38 0.479 -3%
RMB mn 2007
ARKEBETT
2006
2,000 1,887
1,715
1,500
1,000
642
580
500 523
399
0
Revenue Gross Profit Net Profit
Wz EH b=l
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2007 REVENUE ANALYSIS —EZ+EEKRE D

Sales of property ¥ £ 54 &
Lease of property ) % &
Property management & others ) % & 12 & H ff,

Total & 5t

As at 31 December A+ —A=+—H

Total assets & = #4258
Total liabilities & (& 42 58
Total Equity 1 % 42 %8

2007
—EELE
RMB Million

ARBEET

2007
—EFLE
RMB Million

ARBEET

2007 REVENUE ANALYSIS
—ERLEREIN

4%
2%

2006
—EETREF
RMB Million Change
ARBEBET [
1,791.8 -10%
32.4 -9%
63.3 +24%
1,887.5 -9%
2006
—EBEARF
RMB Million Change
ARBEBETT g
5,649.3 +34%
2,958.9 +33%
2,690.4 +34%

() Sales of Property
MEHE

@ Lease of Property
YERE

@ Property mangement & others

(ES SR EN

94%
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Key Events of the Year
FREKRNFRFE

2007

04

Acquired an additional piece of land with GFA of
approximately 230,000 sg.m. in Huangshan City near
Taiping Lake in February

Selected as a constituent stock of the 200-Stock Hang
Seng Composite Index Series and Hang Seng Freefloat
Index Series, effective March 2007

Acquired another piece of land with GFA of
approximately 220,000 sg.m. in Kunming in March

Issued USD settled zero coupon convertible bonds in
the aggregate principal amount of RMB 1,158 million in
April

Acquired another piece of land with GFA of
approximately 308,000 sq.m. in Huangshan City near
Taiping Lake in June

Acquired a piece of land with GFA of approximately
598,000 sg.m. in Wuxi in July

Acquired a piece of land near Yu Mountain with GFA of
approximately 119,000 sq.m. in Changshu in July

Acquired a piece of land adjoining the Shang Lake with
GFA of approximately 128,800 sq.m. in Changshu in
August

Acquired a piece of land with GFA of approximately
149,000 sg.m. in Suzhou in October

Sold 29% of the shares of two subsidiaries holding the
Kunming and Shanghai Watertown projects to Mausica
Investment Ltd., owned by a fund advised by Citigroup
Property Investors Asia Limited in October

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007
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WAZRTUETEMNAEREAAR
1158 BT E R A ERES

NABEESLUTARAERNES i
R - AR SR T 1 49308,000 F 5 K

tAWEEG T — IR - AJEEE
[ & 49,598,000 3F /5 K

Tt AWESATE LT — 8k
A] S AR 49 119,000 F 75 K

J\ B U BB 5 2 T B AR 0 R — 0 1R -
A] 72 3 SR A5 49 128,800 F 75 K

T AWBEEMNT — B R - AR
TH & 49 149,000 F 5

+ A A Mausica Investment Limited (
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Awards and Accolades

EREPSEINS
2007

“Top 100 Property Developers in China in 2007"

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited recognized as “China’s
Brandname Real Estate Enterprise”

Cambridge Watertown recognized as a “Top Twenty
Classic Real Estate Developments in China”

SPG Land recognised as “Top Ten Real Estate Developers
of Shanghai Real Estate Market in 2007"

Oriental Garden recognised as “Top Ten Best Living
Property of China Municipal Classic Property Index
System Sample Project”

Kunming SPG Land Grand City recognised as “Residential
Housing Classic Award of 2007 China Real Estate Golden
Brick Award”

Kunming SPG Land Grand City recognised as the “Show
Flat Award of the 90 m2 Housing Unit Creative Design
Competition in Kunming”

Kunming SPG Land Grand City recognised as the
“Creative Housing Unit Award of the 90 m2 Housing Unit
Creative Design Competition in Kunming”

2007 %
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Awards and Accolades

=
#2

2005

06

PSS-S

2006

“National Trustworthy Property Developer in 2006" by
the China Property Trustworthiness Research Centre

“2006 Star Property Developer” by four major Chinese
media (Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao, Beijing Wanbao,
Dongfang Zaobao)

Cambridge Watertown accredited “BusinessWeek
Architectural Record China Award” and “Tsingpu Region
Model Project” and “The Best Community for the White
Collar in Shanghai” awards, by four major Chinese
media (Xinmin Wanbao, Wen Wei Pao, Beijing Wanbao,
Dongfang Zaobao)

Shanghai New Independence House Property
Management Co., Ltd. given “Shanghai Best Estate
Property Management Award”

Shanghai New Independence House Property
Management Co., Ltd. awarded as the First Class
Property Management Enterprise Award

Shanghai New Independence House Property

Management Co., Ltd. passed the 1SO14001:2004,
OHSAS18001:1999 Three-In-One Management System

SPG Land recognized as one of the “Top 10 Foreign

Property Developers in Shanghai in 18 Years ”

Top Bank Credit Rating Enterprise in Shanghai: AAA

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007
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Awards and Accolades

EREPSEINS
2004

o Cambridge Watertown recognized as “Innovative
Demonstration Project as Champion of New Chinese
Resident”

o Cambridge Forest Newtown recognised as First Class
Honour of Real Estate Developer

2003

o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “Shanghai Top
Grade Villa Development Model” and “Best Potential
Residence Award”

o Cambridge Waters awarded “China Residence Innovation
Award”

o Shanghai New Independence House Property
Management Co., Ltd. passed the ISO9001:2000
Management System

2002
o Cambridge Forest Newtown received Gold Awards in
“National Landscape” and “Environment Design Match”

2001

o Cambridge Forest Newtown received 2nd Place,
“Residential Housing Sales Area in Shanghai”, “"Most
Stylish Residence of New Century Award”, “Shanghai’s
10 Most Classic Urban Residence Award”, and “China’s
10 Most Classic Residence Award”

2000

o Cambridge Forest Newtown received “2000 China
HouseDesign Award” and “Shanghai House Design
Award” by theMinistry of Construction
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Chairman’s Statement
¥ S

[

Mr. Wang Weixian
Chairman

2007 is a year of breakthrough and achievements for SPG
Land. Since its listing in October 2006, the Group has been
selected as a constituent stock in the 200-Stock Hang Seng
Composite Index Series and Hang Seng Freefloat Index Series.
Our land bank has increased by 113% when compared with
same period last year, whereas our profit has been elevated
by 31%. We were also awarded the “Top 100 Property
Developers of China”. As a result of the signing of the “No.
33 on The Bund” property project, SPG Land becomes the
only developer in the past century to undertake successive
commercial projects at The Bund in Shanghai. The realignment
of business strategy in 2007 has led to an inspirational
beginning of “faster, greater and stronger” company
development for 2008 and the years to come.

SPG Land’s parent company has been incorporated for a
period of 10 years. However, it only signifies the beginning
of an anticipated tremendous expansion of SPG Land which
is in the beginning stage to take up the social responsibility
of a publicly listed company amongst many already listed

10 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2007
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HREIEMN31% : KE[FEHEHE B &
ZE| HBESEME TN LEINEIR
MHEIEE  FEBRaBMHKAE FURE
— LB ERERERMETEEMNAR
P o 4% 38 BY B A EE A9 2007 & A20084F ¢ LA
EESEMWRRIER -E5 FElHs
2 RBERES T —BSABLHER
Fr e o

s B RREMMARLIRAE 10
FRET -HRESEHMME - E—E
ERAK BREEMERREAREMEN
FIE LT RABHES - BB ER - 2007
FohBEXBIEHMEH LHARSBAE T



developers in China. In 2007, most of the listed property
developers achieved satisfactory results; the buoyant capital
market also contributed to the momentum of growth of
these companies. However, there are over 50,000 property
developers in China which results in an intense market
competition. Against the background of the continuing strong
economic growth in China, the buoyant capital market, the
speeding of urbanisation, the increase in the intensity of
market competition and the seeking of better quality of living
condition, what is the goal of SPG Land? What is the market
positioning of SPG Land? The questions are warrant for serious
consideration.

Our consideration should take into account of our past
success and our prospect. Our vision has been globalized after
10 years of experience to develop large-scale development
in Shanghai, to consolidate the resources, to identify the
needs of our customers and to deliver high quality products.
While our counterparts were expanding their land bank
aggressively in 2007, we faithfully adhered to our strategy,
which is "Headquartered in Shanghai, Establish ourselves in
Yangtze River Delta, Embark on core cities of various economic
zones". Being responsible to our shareholders, we maintain
our prudent approach — to avoid the exceedingly expensive
prime sites in the first-tier cities but identify the prime areas
in the second and third-tier cities. In so doing, not only can
we satisfy the needs of the residents in these cities, but also
accumulate high quality sites, and at the same time mitigate
financial risks as well as the policy risks. As a result, we can
achieve healthy and sustainable long-term growth. In Wuxi,
we acquired a 600,000 sg.m. of GFA site in the city centre.
Together with international top-notched design teams, we will
develop the site into a world-class commercial development,
including a skyscraper signature hotel, office, entertainment
centre, villa development, and top class serviced apartments.
For the South-western part of China, we are developing our
first large-scale development with 600,000 sg.m. of GFA "SPG
Land Grand City" at the fringe of the city centre of Kunming,
the provincial capital of Yunnan Province.

KRR BAMBHNERBLE LT QA
EARERHEN - A FEEMED
XZESERET MBBFAN - £FH
RERFERYER EAMBERE WM
EERMR - TERFEHRN - EREE
h#Es BHEEREERHEESHK
BT BSEMAKXRERRMTEES
EMONUEERE " RS EMHTERE -

BEBRERERBEINKINARBEERR -
NFHLELERBRABLRTEESEMTE
Bitz2RGEY  BE&ogdR - ERIER
EF E&EnEEfn i EEAMK &
H b [F 17 K 08 $8 9R & b 1+ 5 69 2007 £F - B%
SEMRKEEIRELES  Y2R=A"
ZEMBPEMEREE SO T MBI
FRHEBRREE BREROTE  BY
BR BBLHEEHRINM HEERNZ -
SEETHRONEBESHMEBEYE  AWMER
RIEALEERERETHF K EWMT %ZE
ZoCTEBTHeSEELM BB T AR
MAMBERERSNREFEDL T BRE
ERAMNEEEENRRER - EEH -
BREemEMrtENGEEAEZEOE ¥
KA LEZOHER - WHEFBEER —R&E
ERITEBER LB mEeE  EEaE
EEHEBE  WMAMEGRE  REEY T
D BEUAERERABEER - £HREA
EMPF —ZEZMAREEMm ENMmEEZE
o BREMNEEARAEROKREEM
EEE—608F KM Em AW ER
2008 B FMAEEE -
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Chairman’s Statement
¥ S

In 2008, we aim to realize two major business transformations
— one is to shift from pure residential developments to
integrated urban developments, such as our projects in Wuxi,
Suzhou and at the Bund, and the other one is, against the
background of the accumulation of people’s wealth in the last
30 years due to the open-door policy, to develop leisure and
tourism resorts, such as our Taiping Lake resort development in
Huangshan, villa developments in Shang Lake and Haikou.

In 2008, while the competition in China property sector
will heighten, this is also the year we plan to accelerate our
growth. SPG Land will continue to commit itself to social
responsibilities and to lift up the expectations rested by the
society. With our global vision, we will maintain prudent
approach to growth, while continue to deliver high quality
products, with localized operation, to meet the demand of
the market. The above will contribute to the solid business
foundation of SPG Land, leading us into the thriving second
and the third decades of development, and many more
decades to come.

WANG Weixian
Chairman
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited

Hong Kong, 26 March 2008

12 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2007
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Chief Executive’s Review

THAER RS

¥

Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones
Group Managing Director& CEO

It is my pleasure to report the Group’s annual results for the
year ended December 31, 2007, encompassing the first full
year results since our successful listing on the main board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in October 2006.

During the year under review, SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(the “Company”) and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
the “"Group”) recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB1,714,507,000. Net profit of the Group posed a
significant surge of 31% to approximately RMB523,154,000.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW
2007 was a fruitful year for the Group as we had a number of
key operational achievements during the year.
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Chief Executive’s Review
THERTRSE

Land Bank Replenishment

Geographically, we succeeded in strategically extending our
footprints to other economically vibrant cities in the Yangtze
River Delta area and in provincial capitals and hubs of
economic zones of the Southwest region. Serving to satisfy the
aspiring demand for high-quality properties arising in these
up-and-coming areas, the Group’s strategy is to maintain a
quality portfolio of land bank that is sufficient to support the
Group's development pipeline for the next four to five years.
The Group is continuing to develop large-scale and multi-
phase residential projects in provincial capitals and other fast-
growing cities, targeting the middle to upper-income groups.

Our successful acquisitions during the year resulted in the
expansion of our land bank by an additional GFA of 1.7
million sq.m., augmenting the Group’s land bank portfolio
from approximately 1.5 million sq.m. as at the end of 2006
by 113% to about 3.2 million sg.m. Our acquisitions in 2007

include:

° Xishan District, Kunming, Yunnan Province

Acquired in March 2007 through listing-for-sale, the
land on Southeast Second Ring Road in Kunming’s
Xishan District will be concurrently developed with the
adjoining site that was previously acquired by the Group
in November 2006. The two projects will aggregately
span 171,000 sg.m. in site area and have a total planned
GFA of approximately 598,000 sg.m. The site will be
developed into a quality multi-phase residential and
commercial project.

o Huangshan, Anhui Province

The Group acquired two additional pieces of land
through listing-for-sale in February and June 2007,
respectively, near the scenic Taiping Lake in the northern
part of Huangshan City’'s Huangshan District. As the
second and third additions to the Group’s multi-phase
Huangshan development, the acquired land has increased
the project’s aggregate site area of the comprehensive
development to about 1.74 million sq.m. and its
aggregate GFA to approximately 871,919 sg.m. This site
will be developed into premium hotels, resort housing
and other recreational facilities.

14 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007
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Changshu, Jiangsu Province

Acquired through listing-for-sale in June 2007, the first
site is located in a desirable residential area of Changshu,
a part of Suzhou City. With the prime location facing
the Yu Mountain, the most famous and beautiful
mountain in the city, the project will be developed into
a prestigious development that consists of town houses,
duplexes and low-rise apartments, occupying a site area
of about 119,769 sq.m. and covering a total GFA of
approximately 119,769 sg.m.

Later in August 2007, the Group added a second quality
site in Changshu to its land bank through listing-for-
sale, a site with an area of approximately107,391 sq.m.
and a buildable GFA of approximately128,800 sg.m. The
project adjoins the Shang Lake and will be developed
into a high-quality residential project consisting of low-
density townhouses and apartments in adherence of the
Group’s exacting quality standards.

Wuxi, Jiangsu Province

In the heart of the city and close proximity to the central
commercial and business districts, the Group’s Wuxi
site, acquired through tender-by-invitation in June 2007,
has a site area of approximately 239,200 sq.m. and a
total buildable GFA of approximately 678,000 sgq.m. The
site will be developed into a signature comprehensive
project of the city, and will become one of the largest
comprehensive developments at the city core of Wuxi,
that will comprise hotel, commercial and residential
components.

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province

In October 2007, the Group successfully acquired the
shares of an existing project company for a prime site in
Suzhou Industrial Park’s city centre. Occupying an area of
approximately 14,893 sq.m., the site will be developed
into a landmark project in Suzhou consisting of first-
class high-rise serviced apartments, offices and retail
properties, and have a total planned GFA of about
149,270 sg.m. The project is planned to have a direct
access to the subway system now under construction.
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. Haikou, Hainan Province
In January 2008, the Group also successfully acquired
the shares of another project company in Haikou, Hainan
Province, for a buildable GFA of approximately 250,886
sg.m.

Sales Performance

The Group’'s solid performance with regard to the sales
and marketing of our residential projects during the year
under review endorsed our strategy to focus on the middle
to upper-middle market. In Shanghai, the Group’s home-
base city, our well-known series of suburban,
large-scale and multi-phase projects achieved encouraging
contracted sales as a result of our strategic marketing decision

to re-schedule most of our sales launches in the second half

“Cambridge”

of 2007 in order to capture the improving market conditions.
Specifically, the Group’s total contracted sales in 2007
amounted to RMB2,079 million, or GFA of about 169,043
sg.m., namely from Cambridge Forest Newtown Phase VB
(Trinity), Phase VD and Phase VE, Cambridge Waters Phase IIA
and 1B, and Cambridge Watertown Lots 2 and 3. In addition
to the improved market conditions, the Group’s product
quality and established brand name have enabled our projects
to continuously enjoy a considerable pricing premium, as
evidenced by our average selling prices hike by 88% year-on-
year and with an impressive gross profit margin hike by 19%.

Development Project Progress

Of the three residential projects under the “Cambridge”
brand name in Shanghai, construction of Phase VD and VE
of Cambridge Forest Newtown, Phase IIC of Cambridge
Waters and Phase Il of Cambridge Watertown were
completed during the year under review, with a total GFA
of approximately 147,925 sq.m. completed and delivered
to our customers. The construction progress on three of the
Group's hotel development projects, The Peninsula Hotel on
the Bund, Holiday Inn in Shanghai and the Crowne Plaza in
Huangshan, were all progressing well and the schedule for the
commencement of operations will be between late 2009 and
early 2010. The Group also entered into a leasing agreement
in October 2007 for the development of No.33 on the Bund
in Shanghai, which will include another world-renowned hotel
brand, Amanresorts, as another landmark hotel project on
the Bund. This helps in keeping a balanced and high quality
portfolio of both commercial and residential developments
of the Group, as well as following our operational strategy
of broadening the future income base to include a higher
percentage of recurrent earnings.
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Capital Market Activities

During the year under review, the Group also succeeded in
significantly strengthening our financial position and further
raised our profile in the international capital market. In April
2007, the Group leveraged the opportunities present in the
burgeoning financial market by issuing US Dollar Settled
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds and encouraging responses
from international investors were received. The net proceeds
have mainly been used to enhance the Group’s capital base
and to fuel our business growth for acquiring new property
development projects.

Also, in October 2007, the Group reached an agreement
to cooperate with Mausica Investment Limited, advised by
Citigroup Property Investors Asia Limited (“CPI"”), by selling
29% of a Group’s subsidiary for an approximate consideration
of HK$435 million, making CPI a co-investor in our Kunming
project and Shanghai Watertown project. The transaction has
enabled the Group to join hands with reputable international
property fund and to fund new developments with the
proceeds.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

China's economy is continuing to grow rapidly, leading to
accelerated development in urbanized areas and a rise in
disposable income among the urban population, particularly
for the middle and upper-middle class. The inflow of foreign
investment remains active amid an appreciating renminbi
exchange rate. The central government continues to issue a
number of regulatory policies and macro-control measures so
as to prevent the property market from overheating, which,
notwithstanding some short-term side-swing effects, will
help in long-term healthy and steady growth of the market.
The Group is confident that such macro-control measures
will result in further challenges among market players.
Given the Group’s healthy financial position and the proven
execution capabilities, the Group has and will ride the inflated
opportunities arising from these market adjustments, inclusive
of acquiring quality projects from these smaller and less-
capitalized developers.
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As the economic growth prospect of China remains promising,
discerning customers aspiring for quality properties and better
quality of life continue to offer room for the Group’s business
expansion. The Group has strategically and successfully
positioned our business activities in the cities in both primary
and new markets. In 2008, the new phases of our three
existing residential projects in Shanghai, namely, Phase VF
of Cambridge Forest Newtown, Phase [ID of Cambridge
Waters and Phase Ill to VIl of Cambridge Watertown, will be
completed and delivered. At the same time, construction will
commence on the Kuming project, Suzhou project, Changshu
Yu Mountain project and Wuxi project, and the Group expects
to have the pre-sale activities for these projects spanned
throughout the year. As such, the Group’s GFA available for
sale will substantially be increased to approximately 610,000
sg.m. in 2008 and such increasing trend is expected to
continue in the years after.

As for our hotel developments, construction will also be under
way for The Peninsula Hotel and Holiday Inn in Shanghai
and the Crowne Plaza in Huangshan, all of which will greatly
benefit from China’s robust tourism industry, the Olympics
in 2008 and the World Expo in 2010. By raising the revenue
contribution from our hotel and investment properties in the
future, we will be able to sustain a steady cash flow from
recurrent income base while expanding with a substantial
growth in residential sales.

Besides, we have also adopted an optimistic yet selective
approach to enlarge the size of our quality land bank. In this
regard, we will be flexible to employ different means, such as
project partnerships and acquisitions, to strategically replenish
our land bank in cities of regional importance that have
developing infrastructure, reasonable land prices and good
growth potential. Our successful acquisition stories will go on
in the coming years.
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The Group’s experienced and professional management team AEEKBLEREENTEBRK G E

will also continue to utilize its knowledge in the property BREEAYWERBERLETSENER
development and investment market so as to implement AHETHRMAOBEW R ARMPEPED
the clear strategies that we have mapped out for on-going MEMLBRESE o RPHEE - R LR
success in China’s property industry. We believe that strategy THEABRMRRKINAOMAREZE - AEF
and execution are two crucial factors in our future success. E¥BER  HBENEREENFENTE
We will strive to outperform the industry peers in terms of BEmMs RMBEEHBBEESF @ ®
focused business strategy, outstanding product quality and REBREREEEHRFENDR -

prudent financial policy so as to ensure the best returns for
our stakeholders and investors.

Stones Tse Bt R
Group Managing Director and CEO EEERRE TS
26 March, 2008 —ZETZNF=ZAZ+XH
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Property Projects Portfolio
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Shanghai Projects EiBIEE
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Residential Projects {¥ £IH B
1.Cambridge Forest Newtown R#E¥E

Site area (sq.m)r BhEI7E (FF 5 2K)  : 1,600,000
GFA (sq.m)#@EZEm A (FHK) ;1,160,000

Brief Introduction & B 52 /v 48

— One of the largest low-density residential developments in
Shanghai
FEEP-—EAZKANEEEEEEE

—  Within 25 minutes’ driving distance to the city center

EMAPLERRELDER

Site area (sq.m)M B E & (F752K) 300,000
GFA (sq.m)# £ miE (7 K) ;225,000

Brief IntroductionI8 B f§ 18 7 45 :
. — The project has 700 houses; Located in Qingpu District, west
Wiis 5 of Shanghai; 25km from Honggiao Alrport
o o g sl 4 81 : ZEAMR LEEBHERE - A%5700EEE - HE
WS #5255 8
— Adjacent to ancient water town “Zhujiajiao”; 1700-year
history and a famous tourist site; excellent ecological area

A ABF1700FELH KB HHAEIRKA] - KEBEXNHE
A i i [ B A
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3.Cambridge Waters B 5 7k &B

Site area (sq.m) B & (SF 5 K) 434,000
GFA (sq.m)#@ 3 S m iR (F 77 K) © 615,000

Brief Introduction I8 B f§ 58 /7 48 :

— Cambridge Waters is large-scale property development
comprising mainly residential properties which are targeted
at middle class customers
ERKBR—EAUEMEZERIEAR  FEUDERE
REBREFPMEEWHEER

—  Within 5 minutes to the near Metro stop and within 20
minutes to other parts of the city center through the subway
MM U5 D EIRIR - BB B A E T RO Kt
BT R E200 8B N

Hotel Projects ;&5 H B
4.The Peninsula Shanghai Lg% 5ifEE

GFA (sq.m) : 92,521

BBEEE(FERK) (including 3-level basement
BIEZEBTE)

Facilities include s it 22 3% : 235 hotel rooms, serviced
apartments, and shopping mall
235 EBEEEME  BEXRAB R
Y5

Brief Introduction T H i 58 M 48 :

—  Partnership between SPG Land and Hong Kong and
Shanghai Hotel Limited
BReEMEEE EERNEEERAAEGRER

— New benchmark amongst Shanghai’s top-of-the-line luxury
hotels
EBTARFEREN LS

— Shopping arcade for the top global retail brands
EHRERTERENBY O

5.The Aman Shanghai L& &5

GFA (sq.m) : 27,000 - 39,000 Brief Introductionl& B f§5E /M 4 :
mepsgmE (FArK) (including basement 2 4% ith T~ &) — To develop the most luxurious resort and shopping arcade
Facilities include & &2 #& : 40 hotel rooms and shopping arcade on the Bund

A0MEE JE 5= [ K B8 ) O BERANBTERAREEBRREYIE

— To create an iconic landmark for Shanghai

M LR AR

BEE(RER)BRAR « —BBLFFR 23
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o
YMETAE BT

Yangtze River Delta Projects RiI=&MIEE

1. Residential and Commercial Project at Suzhou # M & {EE B

Site area (sq.m) B E & (F752K) 15,000

GFA (sq.m)#@ i EmE (F 7 K) . 150,000*
* Apartment of about 55,000 sq.m; & Office/Retail of about 95,000
sg.m

FEZE®EAS55000F 5K :
RPWAE/TEREREREL95000F 5 K

e |
Brief IntroductionI8 B 5@ /t 48 : ?I'“J
— Located in the CBD of Suzhou Industrial Park, next to Jinji Lake 8
R HEBERNHEMN TEEFOETE
— A landmark project consisting of serviced apartment and office towers
with retail outlets; one of the highest building in the proximity
RHBEAABRRETEEMERTFTRAXNMIZIER - &
MR HREL — _ 572
— Next to a subway station (to be operational by 2011) '
SR (R T ——FaEE)
-
—1
-
=2t
fs =]
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2. Re5|dent|al and Commeraal Project at Wuxi & {E£HE

A. Project at Yu Mountain & 1115 B

Site area (sq.m)HZEETE (FF5K) 119,769
GFA (sq.m)#BEEMmME (FFHK) 119,769

Brief Introduction 18 B f 18 47 43
- Situated at the fringe of Yu Mountain (EL)
the national park and with completed amenities and

, facing

infrastructures
UREILEE  HEBRRAERX HEBETEHXERE
N E R

— To be developed into a prestigious project in the area
consisting of town houses, duplexes and low-rise apartments
BERAEHERE - BREREEATHEHKANEL R
EIHE

Site area <sq m) B EE (F 5 K) 239,200
GFA (sq.m)#BEEmE (FHK) 598,000

Brief Introduction I8 H & 58 /t 43

— Located in the heart of Wu><|, and in close proximity to the
central commercial and business district
R Esm AL - BEPLEERR

— About two hours driving distance to Shanghai

BB EE EB A M /NS E AR

B. Project at Shang Lake & i# 18 B

Site area (sq.m) ZymEFE (FHK) 107,391
GFA (sa.m)#@EZEmE (FHK) 128,800

Brief Introduction1® B f§ & /v 48

— Situated in the unique location and is adjoining the scenic
Shang Lake (i#7#) to the north along with impressive
mountain views
ZERAMUREREEA LA -
IEE I =

— To be developed into a high-quality residential project

VTHAESAESE

consisting of contemporary designed low-density town
houses and apartments
BRERAHITRHANEREE
BEEIEAB

PERIE R X EKEE
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T

ential Project

-

Kunming Resid

NRNRNERSRSESES<4]

Site area (sq.m)HuBAEFE (FHK) : 171,125
GFA (sq.m)B@skmiE (FH2K) 598,000

Brief IntroductionIE B i 58 T 48 :

— To be one of the landmark developments in local market
RARSEWMFERAR Z—

— To be developed into a high quality multi-phase residential and
commercial project targeting to middle-class tier

RERSENTERENEIZHEREERBEERE

Haikou Residential Project i@ O £EB

> _:.'_i' Site area (sq.m)i ZEE & (FJ52K) : 292,000
2 / GFA (sq.m)B @ sEmiE (FH2K) 219,000

Brief Introduction I8 B i 18 7 48 :

— Located at the harbor front site at north part of Haikou, the capital city
of Hainan province
URBmEEEERmERILMBH —EER

—  With the north side adjacent to a spacious ocean view and the west
side near the site of a national park
UEBR BHESRBENRS  ITEWBEENEFER -
FAHEMRRBREERNE

— To be developed into a high quality multi-phase residential and hotel/
retail project

BERASERSUBRRAERBEE TEHEHA
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Other Hotel Projects in Huangshan and Shanghai
BELREBHEMBEFEER
Huangshan Crowne Plaza Hotel EILE BB BiBEE

GFA (sq.m) : 42,000 A%,
fesEE (FIK)

Facilities include &% 82 ¥& : 250 hotel rooms, retail shops, part of the
comprehensive development consisting
resort, villas, golf course and piers
2500 EEEREERERHL T — a1
BRN - BIE - SBRMSLBENX
BERIER N —HBMH

Shanghai Cambridge Holiday Inn
LiERIEE A
e [:-: GFA (sqm)f@2smiE (FHkK) : 59,630
: LTy Facilities include 3% i B2 ¥& : 400 hotel rooms, apartments,

restaurants, conference facilities
and clubhouse
A0EBERFEM - 2E - &
B 23ZRmRregm

BEE(RR)BRAR « —BBLFFR 27






'_.‘;}i-.




Management Discussion and Analysis
BIRE & am Ed o AT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Results and Dividends

During the year under review, the Group recorded total
revenue of approximately RMB1,714,507,000 (2006:
RMB1,887,458,000). Net profit amounted to RMB523,154,000
(2006: RMB399,010,000) and the portion attributable
to equity holders of the Company was approximately
RMB498,498,000 (2006: RMB390,818,000). Basic and
diluted earnings per share attributable to equity holders of
the Company amounted to RMB0.481 and RMB0.462 (2006:
RMBO0.480 and RMBO0.479) respectively for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2007. The Board has recommended the
payment of a final dividend of RMB14.4 cents per share.
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Property Development

During the year, the Group completed and delivered various
phases of the three development projects in Shanghai with
a total GFA of 147,925 sg.m. (2006: 309,598 sg.m.) as

highlighted in the following table.

MRBR

ERME

RAFERA -

R -

REBTHREZMN=
BB REMBEARI47,925F K (ZEE
JNAF 309,598 F HK)MZHIRRIER ¢

Development

Projects Completed and
Delivered in 2007

&z

“EELFERIR
XM BERIER
Approximate Approximate
GFA GFA Sold &
Completed Delivered
Project Type BERIHY EEHRXM
HA H 5l EEER BMOBEEER
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7HK) (FFHK)
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VC Apartment R & - 16,211
FR+*E-FVCH
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VD Townhouse & HE Bl 22 9,262 7,481
FEE+5 - FVDH
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VE Villa 71| 22 15,119 12,046
BR+5 - FVEH
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Trinity Village Villa 5l 8 - 17,665
RR+SE -REHE
Cambridge Waters — Phase | Apartment R & - 882
FEIG K ER - 15
Cambridge Waters — Phase Il Apartment A & 70,592 67,889
BB K ER - F 1A
Cambridge Watertown — Lot 2 & 3 Villa 51 22 22,117 19,901
FEAG KD - 2138 R BB 34 1
Cambridge Watertown — Lot 2 Townhouse 3 5F 7l 22 - 5,850
FEAG K - 24 18
Total 425t 117,090 147,925
EEEM(ER)ERAR « — 22 LEEH 31
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Property Sales Performance

With regard to the property sales results, the Group performed
satisfactorily during the year under review. This was particularly
reflected in the significant increase in the revenue generated
from the sales of residential projects during the second half
of 2007. Of the aggregate sales, the main growth driver of
the Group was still represented by its three primary residential
projects in Shanghai, namely, Cambridge Forest Newtown,
Cambridge Waters and Cambridge Watertown, as highlighted
in the following table.

MREERR

IMEHEEXEMS  AREREEFE
MRBASARE  BRIRRBRR _-_FTL
FTH+FHETETRAEENREREE
MmeplBHEEME ARENETERER
PRAMDAERLEN=—ETEEEEE -
BEB+E  BERKBEERKE A
MEBOTRMAR -

Approximate

Approximate

area sold and sales
delivered in recognized
2007 in 2007
—EZ2tHF —EELF Average
Project EERXM WK selling price
BHH WELAEE BOHER FHERE
(sq.m.) (RMB'000) (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR~
(FrHAK) (AREFT) F A K)
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VC g ¥ & — 5 VC Hf 16,211 87,075 5,371
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VD & ¥ & — S5 VD H 7,481 131,090 17,523
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Phase VE FE18 3 & — 55 VE £f 12,046 254,253 21,106
Cambridge Forest Newtown — Trinity Village 17,665 313,560 17,750
BR+E -REHE
Cambridge Waters — Phase | FE1& 7K &b — 551 87 882 5,519 6,263
Cambridge Waters — Phase Il FE15 7K &0 — &5 11 28 67,889 487,041 7,174
Cambridge Watertown — Lot 2 & 3 25,751 328,180 12,744
BB KHP — B2 38 R B 31 3R
Total #8 5 147,925 1,606,718

In terms of square metres, the total area sold and delivered
for the year ended 31 December 2007 decreased by 52%
to 147,925 sq.m. from 309,598 sq.m. in the previous year.
Revenue from property sales amounted to RMB1,606,718,000
(2006: RMB1,791,755,000). The revenue from property sales
was satisfactory as a result of the general market improvement
and the resulting increase in the gross profit in the second half
of 2007.
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During the year under review, the total contracted sales area
of the Group amounted to approximately 169,043 sg.m.
(2006: 96,723 sq.m.), while total contracted sales value
amounted to RMB2,079,330,000 (2006: RMB549,139,000).

Land Bank Replenishment

The Group's strategy is to maintain a quality portfolio of land
bank that is sufficient to support the Group’s development
pipeline for four to five years. The Group is continuing to
develop large-scale and multi-phase residential projects in
Yangtze River Delta and in provincial capitals with regional
economic importance, targeting the middle to upper-income
groups. As of 31 December 2007, the Group’s land bank
had a total GFA of approximately 3.2 million sq.m., of which
approximately 86% will be used for the development of mid
to high-end residential projects, approximately 7% will be used
for commercial property development and the remaining 7%
will be used for hotel and recreational development.

During the twelve months ended 31 December 2007, the
Group acquired approximately 1.7 million sq.m. of GFA in
new development projects, augmenting its land bank portfolio
from approximately 1.5 million sq.m. as at the end of 2006
by 113% to about 3.2 million sq.m.. Capital expenditure on
land acquisition amounted to approximately RMB4,366 million.
The successful expansion of the Group’s land bank during the
period under review included the acquisitions of one Kunming
site, two Huangshan sites, two Changshu sites, one Suzhou
site and one Wuxi site.

The Group's strategy with regard to future land acquisitions
will continue to focus on the opportunities that arise in cities
of regional importance that have developing infrastructure,
reasonable land prices and good growth potential.
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Hotel Development

With a view to generating long-term recurrent income, the
Group has substantially invested in hotel properties while
having tied-up with reputable names in the hotel industry like
the Peninsula Group, the InterContinental Hotel Group and the
Singapore-based Amanresorts Group. Currently, the Group's
hotel projects include the ultra-luxurious Peninsula Hotel on
the Bund, a crown jewel site in Shanghai; the Holiday Inn
Hotel complex project in Shanghai’s Pudong/Nanhui area; and
the Crowne Plaza Hotel at Huangshan's world-renowned scenic
area of Tai Ping Lake. Besides these projects, all of which are
under construction and expected to commence operations
in late 2009 and early 2010, the Group will also develop
the Group’s second landmark hotel project on the Bund, the
Aman.

Investment Properties and Ancillary Services

To generate stable and recurrent income, the Group also holds
some of its properties for leasing through its own leasing team
and property agents. As at 31 December 2007, the Group
leased out an aggregate GFA of approximately 91,420 sq.m.
In addition, the Group operates a post-secondary college
(Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic) and a training centre (Shanghai
Sipo Vocational Technical Training Centre). During the year, the
Group also operated one of the most prestigious kindergarten
in Shanghai (The China Welfare Institute Kindergarten),
supplementing the Group’s developments with quality
educational facilities. Such investment properties and ancillary
educational business constitutes a minor but stable operation
of the Group, representing 5% of the Group’s total revenue
for the year under review.

Property Management and Related Services

During the year under review, Shanghai New Independence
House, a subsidiary of the Group providing property
management services, generated property management
and related services income, after intra-group elimination,
amounted to approximately RMB27 million, representing an
increase of 19.5% as compared the previous year. As at 31
December 2007, the Group was managing a total floor area of
around 1.45 million sg.m.
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Strategic Cooperation

SPG Investment XIl (BVI) Limited, the Company’s subsidiary,
sold 29% of the entire issued share capital of SPG Investment
X1 (BVI) Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary, to Mausica
Investment Limited, a company owned by a fund advised by
Citigroup Property Investors Asia Limited, in October 2007 for
an approximate consideration of RMB413 million. Mausica
Investment Limited becomes a co-investor in the Group's
two Kunming projects and Shanghai Watertown project. The
transaction reinforced the Group’s cash flow position and
contributed approximately RMB193 million profit to the Group
during the year under review.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Revenue

The total revenue for the Group for the year 2007 was
RMB1,715 million. In terms of the overall unit selling price
and volume of transactions, a table of analysis on the sales of
properties is provided as follows:

2007
—EELHF
GFA sold &
delivered Average
EEER selling
Type TS price
Bh EEEE FHEE
(sq.m.) (RMB/ sq.m.)
(AR# -
(FHK) F 7 K)

Villas Bl &%
Apartments and townhouses

NEREYRIE

49,613 17,033

98,312 7,748

Total 42 =t
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EZB B %17 I8 AR #929% T Mausica Investment
Limited((RAEES B DMK EBR A AR
HERNESBANRT)  RENAA
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2006
—EEREF

Average GFA sold &
selling price delivered Average
change % BEHK selling
T 214 price
8% EEmE FIEE
(sq.m.) (RMB/sq.m.)
(AR~
(FHK)  FHK)
99% 1 8,862 8,566
36% ! 300,736 5,705
88% | 309,598 5,787
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In 2007, the Group successfully completed the development
and delivered residential units in Phase V of Cambridge Forest
Newtown, Phase IIB and IIC of Cambridge Waters and Lots
2 and 3 of Cambridge Watertown. Therefore, the total GFA
delivered reached 147,925 sq.m. (2006: 309,598 sq.m.).
The increase in average selling price was mainly due to the
sales and marketing decision at the beginning of the year to
schedule most of the Group’s sales launches in the second half
of the year under review so as to take full advantage of the
improving market conditions.

Segmental Information

The Group’s business is currently categorized into four
operating segments — sales of property, lease of property,
property management and other related services, and
education. An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Revenue Stream

iy 3 R

Sales of property #) % $% &

Lease of property ¥ % &

Property management & other related services
M EE R EMIRE RS

Education # &

Total 42t

Sales of property remains the Group’s core business activity
representing 93.7% of the total revenue in 2007 while the
growths in both the property management and related services
(up 19.5% yoy) and education (up 26% yoy) segments were
improved over 2006.

Rental income decreased by 9% from RMB32 million to
RMB30 million. The decrease was due to the disposal of Trinity
Village in April 2007, a completed villa project located in
Cambridge Forest Newtown, which generated rental income in
2006.
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Cost of Sales

Total cost of sales in 2007 decreased significantly by 18% from
RMB1,307 million to RMB1,072 million, being in line with the
decrease in revenue.

Gross Profit and Margin

Gross profit increased by 11% from RMB580 million in 2006
to RMB642 million in 2007. Gross profit margin for the full
year rose from 31% in 2006 to 37% in 2007, which was
mainly attributable to the established brandname of the
group, our successful marketing strategy and price movement
of projects, particularly during the second half of the year and
high gross profit margin generated from the disposal of Trinity
Village in Cambridge Forest Newtown.

Other Operating Income

In 2007, other operating income decreased by 42% to RMB9.2
million attributable to the reduction of government grants due
to a change in policy.

Operating Expenses

In 2007, the selling and marketing costs increased to RMB66
million from RMB28 million in 2006. In order to improve the
sales, substantial vigorous marketing campaigns were launched
and professional property agents were appointed in year 2007.

Administrative expenses increased from RMB82 million to
RMB152 million, representing a rise of 85% over the year
2006. The reason being the recruitment of more project
staff and increased expenses to cope with the cross-district
expansion of Group’s projects.

The increase in other operating expenses was mainly
attributable to the RMB3.6 million donations made and a
compensation to contractors of RMB5.1 million.

Net Finance Expenses

The net finance expenses of RMB105 million in 2007
compared to net finance expenses of RMB14 million in 2006.
This significant increase over the previous year was mainly
attributable to the exchange losses of foreign currency assets
and the interest expenses on the convertible bonds issued by
the Company in April 2007.
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Share of Loss of Associates

The Group continued to suffer a net loss from share of
operating results of associates in 2007 that amounted to
RMB8.2 million as compared to a net loss of RMBO0.3 million
in 2006 from the associates. This loss was mainly attributable
to the loss arose from the Peninsula Waitan project which is
currently under development.

Revaluation Gains on Investment Properties

The Group recorded a revaluation gain of RMB270 million for
2007. The increase was mainly due to the general appreciation
of market prices of the Group’s investment properties during
the year under review, as well as addition of retail properties
in Cambridge Waters and the British School Phase Ill in
Cambridge Forest Newtown into the Group’s portfolio of
investment properties.

Financing Activities

The Group captured the opportunities in the international
capital market in April 2007, it went ahead with the
issuance of RMB denominated US Dollar Settled Zero Coupon
Convertible Bonds, with Morgan Stanley & Co. International
plc and DBS Bank Limited as the Joint Lead Managers.
The Bonds are due in 2012 with an aggregate amount of
RMB1,158 million and the majority of the issue’s net proceeds
was used to finance the Company’s acquisition of property
development projects.

Income Tax

Income tax increased by 1.2 times from RMB113 million in
2006 to RMB252 million in 2007, while the effective tax rate
remain the same at 18% in 2007 which was in line with that
in 2006. The increases in tax amount mainly because PRC land
appreciation tax of RMB101 million was levied on properties
developed and sold at Cambridge Forest Newtown phase VD &
VE and Cambridge Watertown during the year.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

The Group achieved a profit attributable to equity holders of
RMB498 million (2006: RMB391 million), up RMB107 million
or 27% over the previous year. Earnings per share rose by
0.2% to RMB0.481 from RMB0.480 in 2006.
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Net profit margin for the year under review rose from 21% in
2006 to 31% in 2007, which was mainly attributable to the
Group’s successful market strategy and price improvement
of projects and high gross profit margin generated from the
disposal of Trinity Village.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group derived its sources of fund primarily from income
generated from business operations, bank borrowings and
cash proceeds raised from the issuance of the convertible
bonds in late April 2007, which were used to finance its
business operations and investment in development projects.

Net gearing (total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
including restricted cash over total equity) stood at a level of
26.4% as at 31 December 2007. The Group had total cash
and cash equivalents of RMB1,105 million, total borrowings of
RMB2,059 million and the stronger equity base of RMB3,613
million as at 31 December 2007 (2006: RMB2,690 million).
All borrowings were in RMB. Of the total, RMB372 million
was repayable within one year while RMB1,687 million was
repayable after more than one year. The effective interest rate
for 2007 was 6.93% (2006: 6.02%).

Credit Policy

Trade receivables mainly arose from sales and lease of
properties. Receivables in respect of sales and lease of
properties are settled in accordance with the terms stipulated
in the sales and purchase agreements or lease agreements.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2007, the Group pledged properties and
land use rights with carrying amount of RMB1,772,617,000
and cash equivalents of RMB68,357,000 to secure bank
facilities granted to the Group. The total secured loan
balance outstanding as at 31 December 2007 amounted to
RMB1,046,210,000.
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Financial Guarantees B A& E R
As at 31 December 2007, the Group provided guarantees to AZEF+F+A=+—H xEEH
banks for: AT S HERBTREER
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
R-BELHF RZTEERF
+=A +=ZA
=+—H =+—H
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR¥FT ARET T

Mortgage facilities granted to MMEBMNERZBER
purchasers of property units REFEER 145,405
Capital Commitment B EE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2007 2006
R-ZBELHF RZTTRF
+=A +=A
=t+—H =+—~H
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T ARBT T
Property development activities: M EERET
— Contracted but not provided for — BB REE 3,872,228 818,708
— Authorized but not contracted for —EEREBRKRITLY 3,618,948 1,407,707
Total 48 51 7,491,176 2,226,415
Business Forecast EE7EA
The Board of the Company is optimistic with regard to the ARRESEHPEFHEM SN RER
long-term development of China’s property market and the BREASENERZRILE ALEEHR
Group’s future prospects. The Group will launch a number of ZEENFHEHHEEAKRALEE c oA
sizeable projects in 2008 that will take full advantage of its HRERI=ZAMN ERE8XBARNEER
fast-growing presence in the Yangtze River Delta area and in EmRE2EFHEKTIHEEEENLERR
provincial capitals or hubs of economic zones of the southwest ZIBBERIRTRE -

region with higher GDP growth than the national average.
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In this respect, pre-marketing activities of the Group's
Kunming projects have already been progressing well since
the beginning of 2008. At the same time, the Hainan project,
which the Group acquired in January 2008, will make an
immediate contribution to the Company. Furthermore, the
Group is scheduling for the timely launch of the Changshu and
Suzhou project by the end of 2008.

Besides these property development projects in the pipeline,
the Board believes that the 2010 World Expo in Shanghai will
provide a stellar opportunity for the hotel industry in the city.
With the Group’s hotel properties in Shanghai expected to be
completed by late 2009 and early 2010, the Group is well-
positioned to capture the opportunities of the 2010 World
Expo while strengthening the recurrent earnings contribution
of the Company.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO AND THE ISSUANCE OF
CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CB)

The Company’s shares were listed on the main board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 10th October
2006, and the Group raised net proceeds of approximately
RMB1,322 million from the IPO ("IPO Proceeds''). In April
2007, the Group raised net proceeds of approximately
RMB1,134 million from the issuance of the convertible bonds
("CB Proceeds''). The company had applied both the proceeds
into the existing development projects, land acquisition as well
as the repayment of borrowing, which are in compliance with
the intended use of proceeds.

SIGNIFICANT ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in notes 7 and 8 of the consolidated
financial statements, in 2007, the Group did not conduct
any substantial acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries and
associated companies.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2007, the Group employed a total 731
employees (2006: 502 employees). The Group has adopted
a performance-based rewarding system to motivate its
staff. In addition to a basic salary, year-end bonuses will be
offered to those staff with outstanding performance. Share
option schemes were adopted to attract and retain talents
to contribute to the Group. In relation to staff training, the
Group also provides different types of programs for its staff to
improve their skills and develop their respective expertise.
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Corporate Governance Report
TrERERME

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board and the management of the Company treasure the
shareholders’ confidence and trust in the ability and vision
of the management team and have pledged to maintain an
open and responsive attitude in shareholders’ communications
that are on par with other leading coporations in the industry.
The Board has been adamant in upholding best practice in
corporate governance to ensure the timeliness, transparency
and fairness of disclosure to maximize the Group’s corporate
values and will continue to enhance its disclosure practices to
display an exemplary corporate governance practice.

It is the Board’s belief that a sound corporate governance
system has been and will remain as an instrumental element to
the healthy growth of the Group.

Compliance with the CG Code

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) and the rules on the
Corporate Governance Report (the “CG Rules”) as set out
respectively in Appendices 14 and 23 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the
year ended 31 December 2007, except for code provision A.4.2
with respect to the election by shareholders of all directors
appointed to fill a casual vacancy at the first general meeting
after their appointment, as explained in paragraph A.4.2 below.
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RAEBERGREZRMEZANESELZ T
EHNBERARERG LETHERBENE
A42 M <FRMESCRIBRAN - BEFFBEH N T
NEAL2EL °



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (Continued)

Compliance with the CG Code (Continued)

The following outlines how the Company has adopted and
complied with the CG Code and the CG Rules to achieve good

corporate governance.

A
A.1

DIRECTORS
The board

Principle of Good Governance: The board should assume
responsibility for leadership and control of the company
and be collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the company. The directors should take decisions

objectively in the interests of the company.

Code Provisions

<F Al 45k 32

A1

Board meetings should be
held at least four times a
year.
ExggeaREzLE8FR
TR o

Compliance ?

=EREBEF?

hXERER (&)
BFREXERERTA(A)

TRBAARRBNARA BT EEER
FRTARGEEARERNAERR I

EREANFE -

A EE
Al EEg

RIFERRRA EFQ@RAERER
ZHARMEE TEREERER
AIRERY - EFERENTERAME

MATIR MELEBURE °

Compliance by the Company in 2007
ARAR=BBLENMETHE

The Board held seven meetings in 2007. Individual

attendance of each director on a named basis is set

out below:

EEER_TTLFETLAER BUESR

AT ARENEARSBERAINET

Executive directors: #] 7T & & :
Mr. WANG Weixian
ITRERE

Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones
Eifuls g e

Mr. LAI Kin, Jerome
RxL

Ms. WANG Xuling (Note 1)
TRELL (FaE1)
Mr. TAM Lai Ling (Note 2)
BRELLE (fit2)

EEEM(ER)BRAR « Z2BLFFR

A

Al

5/7

7/7

6/7

3/6

0/0
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

<F R XX

Compliance ?
R2REES?

A.1.1 (Continued)

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(#)
A1l EEg(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BELENETHE

AT (&)

Independent non-executive directors: 5 7 E# TEE -
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry 4/7
ok A

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP 4/7
FAEE (K Fat)

Mr. JIANG Simon X. 4/7
BNEREAE

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong 4/7
B2 LSt

Notes:

K&t

1. Appointed on 10 July 2007. The Board held
six meetings between 11 July 2007 and 31
December 2007.
RZEELFLATHEZE -ESFERN=
ZZ+FHLAT—RE_ZEZLFE+ A

=+t—HEBTTARNREGH -

2. Appointed on 3 December 2007. No Board
meeting was held between 4 December 2007
and 31 December 2007.
RZZTELF+_A=ZAEZF - -EFERN
—ETHF+ - AMBE_ZTZELEFE+ A
St-—BUEBRITEE -



A.1

DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions
< Bl % XX

A1.2

All directors should be
given opportunity to
include matters in the
agenda for regular board
meetings.
MEESFREOAKSRY
B FREIATRESZS

A 22 22 10
DEEIE

A13

Notice of at least 14 days
should be given of a
regular board meeting.
RIOTFREFTEGHREAE
DIRBI4REHBA -

A4

All directors should have
access to the advice and
services of the Company
Secretary.
FTEEEREGFESAQT
MENER KRR -

A15

Minutes of board meetings
and meetings of board
committees should be

kept by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting
and such minutes should
be open for inspection.
ExggeaEEEZLE
SERNLEERAERLE
AEEOMERTF - B
EEeRLBEANHAFE
B o

Compliance ?
REET?

A EE(#)
A1 EEg(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
ERAR-FTLFNETHE

All directors are invited to include matters in the
agenda for regular Board meetings.

ABEEHEAFRABTERIIAETRESTS

P u|
DEEIE

The Company generally gives 14 days prior written
notice of a regular Board meeting and reasonable
prior notice for all other Board meetings.
ARBRITEREZTSEE —REEMIAREL
EHRYM MBTHEEMEESSHAMIEAN
EARBEREELEM -

All directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary with a view to ensuring
that Board procedures and all applicable rules and
regulations are complied with.
MEEFRETESRARMENERRRE - N
MREFSREFLMBERARA LA EES -

The minutes are kept by the Company'’s legal
advisers and they are open for inspection by the
directors and the members of the Board committees.
CRLEFBARFEEZERRE  BREgaL
BUHEELREFEZEENNESH -

T LEFR 47
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A DIRECTORS (Continued)
A.1 The board (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F Al X 2EET?

A.1.6

Minutes should record in 4

sufficient detail the matters
considered by the board
and decisions reached.
Draft and final versions of
minutes should be sent

to all directors for their
comment and records
within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
SERALHEFMALETE
EEMEREFELMER
REMFFE - FRLED
NiaREREESHER
BHEEREAANTETM
FEFE UHKRSERE
RREHH -

A1.7

There should be a v

procedure agreed by

the board to enable

the directors to seek
independent professional
advice, at the company’s
expense, to assist them to
discharge their duties.
RABEHE-BEHES
SEENERF  BEHRE
SRBILIEEER - Ui
BiRERITHBRE  BF
HARIXA -

48 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(#)
A1l EEg(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EAAR-BELENETHE

The secretary of the meeting is responsible for taking
the minutes and all the matters considered and the
decisions reached in the Board meeting are recorded
in sufficient detail. The draft minutes are sent to the
directors for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final versions are sent to all
directors for their records.
AENEBEFLERLE  TRLEFALE
THEEESEZ LMEEFHALMEBRENF
B-@RLFNIVREEBREBRAGREREN
EERERERNTETHEES  UHEESREER
NFE -

All the directors have recourse to independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.
FEEEFHASKBYERER  EAALRA
A e



A.1

DIRECTORS (Continued)
The board (Continued)

Code Provisions

<F RIMR XX

A.1.8

If a substantial shareholder
or a director has a conflict
of interest in a matter
which the board has
determined to be material,
a board meeting should

be held (and not by way

of ciruclation or by a
committee). Independent
non-executive directors
who, and whose associates,
have no material interest

in the transaction should
be present at such board
meeting.
MEERRAEENESF
SLETEBERNEER
FEMZER - A ERT
Exgga(MT_EB
BEHEXH T ANEIERRZ A
ZEERIE) AFRA
BERALTERZZGTESR
R & K F 25 80 B S FE 8L
TEFHRLEEHRES

& £ 2t
BB °

Compliance ?
REEF?

A EE(#)
A1 EEg(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BZLENETHE

The voting and quorum requirements specified in
the Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”)
conform with the Code’s requirements.

AAmERAA(THR D) IR ERE IR
EABHREHFETRMMAE -

e B (ER)ERAT « —SBLEE®R 49
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A DIRECTORS (Continued)
A.2 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a
clear division of responsibilities at the board level —
the management of the board and the day-to-day
management of the business — to ensure a balance of

power and authority.

Code Provisions

<F R XX

Compliance ?
REESF?

A.2.1

The roles of chairman and v
chief executive officer
should be separate and
should not be performed
by the same individual. The
division of responsibilities
between them should be
clearly established and set
out in writing.
FRETREZNACRE
BEED  TEH—-ABE
R -REZHEBRENE
DEBERREIWLAE @
Ea

A2.2

The Chairman should v
ensure all directors are

properly briefed on issues

arising at board meetings.
FEEBRAMAEESET
PHEREZTGSZ LM

REMNEH -

A.23

The Chairman should v
ensure that the directors

receive adequate

information, which must be

complete and reliable, in a

timely manner.

FEREERE S R

TRER BEEBERAR

ERAR

50 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(HE)

A2 FERITEHAR
RIERRA : TESEENEE M
FTEHNEF(NEZTeNERERER
WAEEE)EEERE DMK - LA
RENERERNSE -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EABR-BELENETHE

Mr. WANG Weixian is the Chairman who is
responsible for the overall investment and business
development strategies of the Group. Mr. TSE Sai
Tung, Stones is the Chief Executive Officer who is
responsible for the Group’s business operations

and execution of the Group’s long term business
development policies.

IREXRERTIRF BELAEENERBEBRE
NERRE SIEREER/ITHREAR  BELE
ExKeE TAEATAEENRAXBER
B °

The Chairman has a clear responsibility to

provide the whole Board with all the information
that is required for the discharge of the Board's
responsibilities.
ITROAEBRERANESFETRKNERHEME
HETEZE@BERMANER -

The Chairman has been continually improving
the quality and timeliness of the dissemination of
information to directors.

TR ERENEREFABTREMRAEER -



A.4

DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition

Principle of Good Governance: The board should have
a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the company. The board
should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) so that it can effectively exercise
independent judgement.

Code Provisions

<F AU 45k 32

Compliance ?

=EREF?

The independent non-
executive directors should
be expressly identified

as such in all corporate
communications.
FrERBIRAYP - EHARE
HABUERITESTN S

{/'\ °

Appointment, Re-election and Removal

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a
formal, considered and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors. There should be plans
in place for orderly succession for appointments to the

board. All directors should be subject to re-election at

regular intervals.

Code Provisions

<F AU 45k 3X

Compliance ?
EREET?

A4

Non-executive directors
should be appointed for

a specific term, subject to
re-election.
FHMITEFEARTME
H WARXEMESR -

EE(#)

EZgn4aX

RFERRA  EFERABEATA
MEBRERERNEHRT RE
BR-EFETHTEFTEINTES
(BRBIIFFNTES) WABAEMKL
PIERRFEEEE  EREZEHHEAN
Ho 4 18 ST -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
AAAR-BELENETHE

The composition of the Board, by category of the
directors, including names of Chairman, executive
directors and independent non-executive directors, is
disclosed in all corporate communications.
REF(BREE RTEFRBILFATES
W) DENESSEKN BRI @R E
GETE

Ad ZF -EERER
RUFERRA  RBIEHFIIER &
EEEEHEFHEMNTESTLZ IR
Fro BEEGREI TS WIERFE
BEAIBTES FBEEEHEERTE
IR RIRIR T IR -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
ARAR-BELFNETHE

The term of appointment of the independent non-
executive directors is one year renewable by mutual
agreement on an annual basis.
BUFPTEZTNEMR—F  AISFREFH
BETEL -

Under the Company'’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

BEAAFME  2BEEN =02 (THA
BITESERRFNTES) ARNEBERRBF

AEIHMESTRIEIENER  ESREFE
PEB=FWEEE K-
BEEL(ER)BRAR « —2FELFFH S
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal (Continued)

Code Provisions

<F R XX

A4.2

All directors appointed to
fill a causal vacancy should
be subject to election by
shareholders at the first
general meeting after their
appointment.

Pt B /% 1B 1l I 5 22 R 1 2
ZENEETEERFEER
EFENEERRAS L&
HIRRAEE -

Every director, including
those appointed for a
specific term, should be
subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every
three years.
BREF(BRZEAR
TEHNEFT)EELE
=FHRESTR-R-

Compliance ?
R2REEF?

Deviation explained

B {F 3 B A 1R BE S5 IR

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(#)
Ad ZEE -EBRRER(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EAAR-BELENETHE

The Company’s Articles provide that any director so
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the next following annual general
meeting and shall be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.

ARRMAKRE  REMBEREZRMEEEESE
EFNEMNEEFSEBRETERRBAFAEERR
Ik EEEEFERRAS LEIEMES -

Such arrangement is considered appropriate in light
of the requirement of paragraph 4(2) of Appendix 3
to the Listing Rules which requires that any person
appointed by the directors to fill a casual vacancy
shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-

election.
EREMRANGE = F4QB MR T - AEFE
RERMEEFZANEMNALTKEETBRETE
BRRERBEFAEERRBIL KEEETERERESE
FTER MZBLHEERAEE -

Under the Company'’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
each annual general meeting provided that every
director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

REALFAY  2BEEN=02—(THA
WITEFEERIIFVWTER) ANEERREASF
RELBESRAERRENESR  HEREFE
PEB=ZFWEEE K-



A.5

DIRECTORS (Continued)
(Continued)

Code Provisions

<F RIMR XX

A5

Every newly appointed
director should receive

a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction,

on the first occasion

of his appointment,

and subsequently such
briefing and professional
development as is
necessary, to ensure

that he has a proper
understanding of the
operations and business

of the company and that
he is fully aware of his
responsibilities under
statute and common law,
the Listing Rules, applicable
legal requirements

and other regulatory
requirements and the
business and governance
policies of the company.
BEGEENESTS R
BREXZERES2
- EXRFREMSE
MBLERM  HRTTa®
EHFENNTARZEES
Al - CAREGR B A R Y&
EREKHAEEE N
BB ARFDHBELRS
RBERREBE £
MA S EREDRE RHE
MEEEREUARARIERS
NE TR P8 A B 60 B

= ©

Compliance ?
REEF?

A EE(#)
A5 (#&)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BZLENETHE

On appointment, new directors will be briefed by

the Chairman and senior executives on the Group’s

corporate goals and objectives, activities and

business, strategic plans and financial situations.

They will also be provided with orientation materials

package including induction of the duties and

responsibilities of directors of a listed company.

TERBBRITRAEBRFTZANESRZ LR
AEEHERAASBENCXERRAN &
RER - REEMER 8 R MK - RF I ER
H—ENHRER (BERLTRAESENRENME

EBEA)

The Company aims at keeping all directors updated

on the Listing Rules, statutory and regulatory

requirements.

ARREREEMAEENEZHONLMAA

EREERE -

A

Al

Tt EFH

P
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DIRECTORS (Continued)
(Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?

<F AU 45k 32 =EREETF?

A5.2

The functions of non- v

executive directors should

at least include:

FMITEFNBEERZD
BIE

(@) to bring an
independent
judgement at board
meetings;
REEFZEHE LR
B B

(b) to take the lead
where potential
conflicts of interests
arise;
RHEREENZ=E
RO FHEBEBER

SIBER

(c) to serve on board
committees, if invited;
and
FEERETEESTZR
BEEWKE &

(d) to scrutinise
the Company'’s
performance in
achieving agreed
corporate goals
and objectives,
and monitoring
the reporting of
performance.
FAERLQARX
RBEBERREDR
*EERBE® I
ERRXBENERS
Mo

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(#)
A5 (#&)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRAR-BELFNETHE

All independent non-executive directors serve on the
audit and remuneration committees of the Company.
MBEBLHRTEFTHEEARRAERZESGN
HMEESGKE -

All independent non-executive directors are invited
to participate in Board meetings so that independent
judgement can be brought at such meetings.
MEBYERTEFTOREL2MEEFSSH - U
ESREEZEEE LAMEHENB L HE -



A.5

DIRECTORS (Continued)
(Continued)

Code Provisions

<F R XX

Compliance ?
R2REEF?

A53

Every director should v

ensure that he can give
sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of
the company.
BEESTRERAEARR
WEBE BT RNE
7 o

A5.4

All directors must comply v

with their obligations
under the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code”) set

out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.
MBEESFRETRERE
AR AP R+ AT A
MEITAEFTETESFR
2 0 1F % < B ([ 1] 2 <7
Al 1) FARENEE -

A EE(#)
A5 (#&)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BELENETHE

All the directors have given prompt attention to the

affairs of the Company.

AEEEHCREIARARAMNER -

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in

Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules regarding directors’

dealing in securities.

ARABERMETHRANMETBEEBREEESR

EHMIRESTA

All the directors complied with the required standard

set out in the Model Code.

FMEEEHET TRETAMBOMTLERL -

AEEL (BB ARAT « CRBLEER

A

Al
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Supply of and Access to Information

Principle of Good Governance: The directors should be
provided in a timely manner with appropriate information
in such form and of such quality as will enable them to
make an informed decision and to discharge their duties
and responsibilities.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<P B 45 X BREET?
A.6.1

An agenda and v

accompanying board
papers should be sent to

all directors at least 3 days
before the intended date of
a meeting.
gEEEMERNESRS
XHEELEGHRM TS
TR =ZRTETHAE
BEx-

A6.2

Each director should have v
separate and independent
access to the senior
management of the
company to make further
enquiries or to obtain more
information in order to
fulfil his duties properly.
BREEEAEBRE
EBALASRERREA
B URBEETERBE
i V5 H M — 25 & 3 S EX
EZER -

A6.3

All directors are entitled v
to have access to board
papers and related
materials. Where queries
are raised by the directors,
steps must be taken to
respond as promptly and
fully as possible.
MEEEFHEREHNES
SXMHREEER - WA
EFREME - VAR
FRABRIEEZEL@E
B [0 JE o

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

A EE(E)

A6 ERMNEHRRER
RIFERRR : EEERFERMHE
EMER BEEERMNEAREERS
EEFSIERMBENRELRERBITE
ENRENEMT-

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRAR-BELFNETHE

An agenda and the relevant paper and materials are
usually sent to the directors at least 3 days before
the meeting.

ERERENMBEBEXHEMH —RELEERRT
BHAI=Z=RFHTES -

The directors have access to the senior management
of the Company whenever they feel necessary.
EENRERRATEROAEBAIARANSR
EREAR -

Board minutes and the related materials are available
for inspection by the directors whenever requested.
All efforts are made to ensure that queries of the
directors are responded to promptly and fully.
EEgeRLERBEER AR RESERHER
B ARFEBENBREFRENEERRER
DEFOE -



B.1

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR B.

MANAGEMENT

The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and

Disclosure

Principle of Good Governance: There should be a formal
and transparent procedure for setting policy on executive
directors’ remuneration and for fixing the remuneration
packages for all directors. No director should be involved

in deciding his own remuneration.

Code Provisions

<P AU 45 3

B.1.1

The company should
establish a remuneration
committee with specific
written terms of reference.
A majority of the members
should be independent
non-executive directors.
NEIERIFMEE S -
WET A E & M B
B o REHKEEAE L
FEHITES -

<

B.1.2

The committee should
consult the Chairman and/
or the Chief Executive
Officer about their
proposals relating to the
remuneration of other
executive directors and
have access to professional
advice if considered
necessary.
ZESRABEBAEMMT
EENFMERNERR S
TR ERE MR
RYVE - RAIEREEER
=1

Compliance ?

=ERESF?

ESREARAEEBAENEH

B HFMRBEEMNKERAK

RFERRA : RAERLLEARA
BRAEMNER  UGIFTRTEENH
MEREERMEESNFHFMAEAS -
EETH2RETEAGOME -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
AAAR-BBLENETHE

The remuneration committee was established on

19 September 2006 with specific written terms

of reference which deal clearly with its authority

and responsibilities. The remuneration committtee
comprises the Chairman and all independent non-
executive directors.
FMZEER_ETRFAA+TNLBRL  WFT
PN TEEBRESE  SRINAELERLIEBE -
FHZESRRIFEREBBLIFNTES -

Pursuant to the terms of the remuneration
committee, the committee should consult with the
Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer about
their proposals relating to the remuneration of other
executive directors. The committee is authorised

to obtain such professional advice as it considers
necessary.

BEFHEZESNBREESE  ZESREAEHH
MRITEESOFMABAER L ITHREHNE
o LESRRENHEHRR/VERENRFZEEXER -

TELEFR 57/
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B. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR BB EENEHREEREAE NN
MANAGEMENT (Continued) (%)

B.1 The Level and Make-up of Remuneration and B1 ¥MEREENKERAR(Z)
Disclosure (Continued)
Code Provisions Compliance ? Compliance by the Company in 2007
<P Bl 45 X 2EET? KRAR-BELFNETHE
B.1.3
The terms of reference v The terms of reference of the committee include the
of the committee should minimum prescribed responsibilities.
include the minimum ZEeNRBREGEEE S RERBERTAIANEBE -
prescribed duties.
ZESNBRESEEZDE
BERATEAIANRE -
B.1.4
The committee should v The terms of reference including, among other
make available its terms things, its role and authority of the committee
of reference, explaining delegated to it by the Board are made available on
its role and authority request.
delegated to it by the BEaHE(EE(EhER) ZEeNACRES
board. ERTHZEN) REERE FARR -
ZESRL AFAHEBESR
CMAHEAERESRS
BRYHz2#EN -
B.1.5
The committee should be v The committee can seek independent professional
provided with sufficient advice to complement its own resources to discharge
resources to discharge its its duties.
duties. ZEGRASRKBYUERER  UBARELXRFER
ZEGRERHAEER wmETHBE -
NEITEBE -

58 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

Principle of Good Governance: The board should present
a balanced, clear and comprehensible assessment of the
company'’s performance, position and prospects.

Code Provisions

<F R XX

C11

Management should
provide such explanation
and information to enable
the board to make an
informed assessment of
the matters put before the
board for approval.
ERERNESSIRMHA
HIREESSHAENSTIA
BRRERER  LEES
GRMZEFTHEL NG
R o

C1.2

The directors should
acknowledge in the
Corporate Governance
Report their responsibilities
for preparing the accounts,
and there should be a
statement by the auditors
about their reporting
responsibilities in the
auditors’ report on the
financial statements.
EERELEEARET
R EREERENEE -
% BRM T FE £ A B BT TS 3R
ROZBABEPRRE
BRmEEELEA -

Compliance ?
REEF?

C BMERERH

C1 B EHE
REFEGRE - E=gETE B
R2EFZAEMHRIE - KRR

o

=1
=S

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BELENETHE

The directors are regularly provided with updates

on the Company’s business and the management’s
strategic plans, financial objectives and other actions.
EETHEEHARARATNEBRERENR
BEMEET S M ERREMITHNRFTER -

A statement of directors’ responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements is set out in this
Corporate Governance Report.

EERAVEREANETBERIANALE

C:lto

i

=k

The report of the auditors states the auditors’
reporting responsibilities.

Z B AT R BB R B XX A RS AR -
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Corporate Governance Report

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
C.1 Financial Reporting (Continued)

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<F Al X 2EET?

Cc13

The board’s responsibility v
to present a balanced,
clear and understandable
assessment extends to
annual and interim reports,
other price-sensitive
announcements and

other financial disclosures
required under the Listing
Rules, and reports to
regulators as well as to
information required to

be disclosed pursuant to
statutory requirements.
EEgNETRELY
i ~ B M & B B By R
HEARET S RFREFH
WE - BB R R E X
BRE QM RIBE ETAR
AR R T3 EE ) E B
BER MEERBIER
B 3R & DA K% 2B AR 18 0%
RETAREBEHR -

60 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

C BERRE(E)
C1 BIEER(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EAAR-BELENETHE

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group's performance, position and prospects in all
shareholder communications.
EXEEMNEAERNRE RARNSEMRE
RERERPIELSE  FH RAB BTG -



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Internal Controls

Principle of Good Governance: The board should ensure
that the company maintains sound and effective internal
controls to safeguard shareholders’ investment and the

compa ny’s assets.

Code Provisions Compliance ?

<F A & XX =EREF?
C.2.1
The directors should at v

least annually conduct a
review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal
control of the company and
its subsidiaries.
EFZRELVBFHRAR
HFfRRAIAMESERED
BRI EITRA -

C MERRE(E

C2 WIpEH
RIFELSRA - EEFERBRAGE
FR2EAEROAIES - IRER
FHIRERRAINEE -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
AARAR-ZBZLtFNETHFE

The Board has overall responsibility for the system of
internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness.
ExennEEfB AR EAREABER
BE-

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer reports to the audit committee on key
findings regarding internal controls. The audit
committee, in turn, communicates any material
issues to the Board.
TREHZLREEIBEEFRAERZESERM
REBATEHNNEIZRAECER MEXZES
AlMEEFEREMEKRNER -

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in
2007 at which the audit committee was apprised of
the Group’s internal control systems.

BERZEEN _TTLFRTTMAERE MHE
REEGENZEE L EMASEEN AT E

IR

The Board has conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries and is satisfied with the
adequacy of the Group’s system of internal control.
EXECHARAREFRAM A ELEG 68 FE
Tha - WHASEBE AN BEG R ROT R MERE

mE e

TZTLFEFR 61

£
|

i
i)
s
!
4\\

L]

I
A
A



Corporate Governance Report
®

TEBERMS

C. ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued) C. BEREHE (&)

C.3 Audit Committee

Principle of Good Governance: The board should establish
formal and transparent arrangements for considering how it
applies the financial reporting and internal control principles
and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
company’s auditors. The audit committee should have clear

terms of reference.

62

Code Provisions

<F R XX

C.3.1

Minutes of audit committee
meetings should be kept
by a duly appointed
secretary of the meeting.
Draft and final versions of
minutes should be sent to
all committee members for
their comment and records
within a reasonable time
after the meeting.
ERZEgNERLER

EREREEHMER
Feog@maosamyin g
WEEEZERENSRE
REAFETEEEMA
KB AEREZERER
Ko fE 4D 8% o

C3.2

A former partner of the
existing audit firm should
not be a member of the
committee for a period of
one year commencing on
the date of his ceasing to
be a partner of the firm.
NRAINEEGTEEEME
AERE -—FARBEZ
BEEBNERARK

o

o

A
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Compliance ?

C3 ERZES
RFEARRA - EFQEMRE R WM
JiE A B 765 BB ¥R Ko 7 R4 1 JR Al K an fa]
HRFEQRZEMANBEEBEREDE
AWEFERENLTH BERLEGE
AEFBEMOBESRR -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EAAR-BELENETHE

The minutes are kept by the Company'’s legal
advisers. The draft minutes are sent to the committee
members for comment within a reasonable time after
each meeting and the final versions are sent to all
members for their records.
SRLBEHARRDEZEEART - 8FLHNY
BREREZERERNAERHAANFTETZESR
BB UEREEXRER  MEZTHENKLREA
TETHMAEKE  UWHEFERDH -

None of the committee members is or was a partner
of the existing audit firm.
BMEZEeNERKAERERETREEMB AN
ATKA -



ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

Code Provisions

<F RIMR XX

C33

The terms of reference

of the committee should
include the minimum
prescribed duties.
ZEENBEERET DR
BERTAINANBE -

C34

The committee should
make available its terms

of reference, explaining

its role and authority
delegated to it by the
board.
ZEGRLAHAHEBES
B HAEACRESE
RYHEZHEN -

Compliance ?
REEF?

C BERRE(#E)
C3 BEXRZEE(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BZLENETHE

The terms of reference of the committee include,
among other things, the minimum prescribed
responsibilities.
ZEGNRBESEZLEE (KM B%E) R ERT
AEBE -

The terms of reference of the committee which,
among other things, explain the role and authority
delegated to it by the Board, are made available on
request.
ZEgNBRESE (AT EE)HBEAERE
FEERTHZEN)AEEXRKETUARHE -

Al
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT (Continued)
Audit Committee (Continued)

Code Provisions

<F R XX

C3.5

Where the board

disagrees with the audit
committee’s view on the
selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal

of the external auditors,
the company should
include in the Corporate
Governance Report a
statement from the audit
committee explaining

its recommendation and
also the reason(s) why the
board has taken a different
view.
WMEEGITRABEZEE
GHEE  RE - BESK
RERISZBMEENE
ROAXRRREELEE
BHERIHEREE R
ML HHEZZNZR
REEFGEHITRABZRNR
o

C3.6

The committee should be
provided with sufficient
resources to discharge its
duties.
ZEQRERHRTEER
NEITEBRE -

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

Compliance ?
R2REEF?

C BERRE(E)
C3 BEXRZEG(E)

Compliance by the Company in 2007
EAAR-BELENETHE

The committee recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG be re-appointed as the external auditors for
2008.

ZEENEFSERA (ESSCABEHEER)EMN
ZEEFHESAMEBEMRB _ZZT NFENINE
R - MEAERRNEERRBFERE L& -

The committee can seek independent professional
advice to complement its own resources to discharge
its duties.

ZEGUSRBYUEXRER  UAERELXRFER
WMETHBE -



DELEGATION BY THE BOARD
Management Functions

Principle of Good Governance: The company should
have a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
to the board for its decision. The board should give clear
directions to management as to the matters that must
be approved by the board before decisions are made on

behalf of the company.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
5F Al X 2EET?
D.1.1 and D.1.2

D.1.1%D.1.2

The board should give v

clear directions as to the
powers of management, in
particular, with respect to
the circumstances where
management should

obtain prior approval from
the board before making
decisions or entering into
any commitments on
behalf of the company.
EXgRAERENEN
BTEWETR  BFRER
AEBELTERBBERRK
N B &1 S AT AA] A G A E S
EEGSEFTSOHE -

The company should
formalise the functions
reserved to the board

and those delegated to
management.
NAIEEXAHETESTSE
REMNBERZEERT
EIE B R BLEE -

D. EESRINER

D.1 EEB#E
RFERRA  AAEARS—EERXD
BEFEE  JNEFHNEAESTSER
EMEIE FEEFERKDAMEDR
R EREAEESSHAENSZEG
TEREEMER -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
KRB R-BZLENETHE

Important matters are reserved for the Board’s
decision, including:

NTEEFEHROHESFSRBERTE B ¢

. long-term objectives and strategies

R8BI RRE

. extension of the Group’s activities into new
business areas

BARENEBERENEHRI

. appointments to the Board and the Board
committees

EFEehEFEREENERE

. annual internal controls assessment and annual
budgets
FEAFSZEHTELFEEHR

. material acquisitions and disposals
BRKEREESRE

. material connected transactions
BEANEERS

. material banking facilities

EARTEREE

. announcements of interim and final results
RH R REIZESE QM
. payment of dividends

K 3 BB

EEEBEM(ER)BERAR « ZEZLFFR 65



Corporate Governance Report

o

66

MMy I~

Jaxa VAN~
EBEBWME

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD (Continued)
Board Committees

Principle of Good Governance: board committees should
be formed with specific written terms of reference that
deal clearly with the committees’ authority and duties.

Code Provisions

<F R XX

Compliance ?

REET?

D.2.1

The board should prescribe v
sufficiently clear terms of

reference to enable such

committees to discharge

their functions properly.
EZGRADFERME]H
ZEZEgNBESE -

NS EREZESREEH

ErTH Bige -

D.2.2

The committees should v
be required to report

back to the board

on their decisions or

recommendations.
ZEGENESZGERH
IRENEREEZ -

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007

D. ESESEINER(£)
D2 EEXES2ZES

RAFERRA %$§§\@%ﬂ%
HEESHBELE BFRIAZES
AN KB E

Compliance by the Company in 2007
ARAR-BBLENETHE

The Board has established two board committees
each with specific terms of reference, namely the
audit committee and remuneration committee.
%%AEWLWM§iE ERZEeRFEME
Bg VA AREZESNRESRE -

-~ B=

The minutes of the committee meetings containing

the committee’s decisions and/or recommendations

are circulated to all members of the Board unless

a conflict of interest arises. The committees are

required to report back to the Board on key findings

during the year.

HEZEGAER HHERE M£i§§%%

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁA@%'WMEﬂA R HY)
ERANGI - ZEGARAFERNRAES FER

FERHEER -



COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Effective Communication

Principle of Good Governance: The board should
endeavour to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and, in particular, use annual general
meetings or other general meetings to communicate with
shareholders and encourage their participation.

Code Provisions Compliance ?
<P B 45 3X =BREF?
E.1.1

In respect of each v

substantially separate

issue at a general meeting,
a separate resolution
should be proposed by the
chairman of that meeting.
REBBEARTEMNEEM
EOBRIFERIEZETR
E’J 7& AF 71< °

E.1.2

The Chairman of the board v
should attend the annual
general meeting and
arrange, for the chairmen
of the audit, nomination
and remuneration
committees (as
appropriate) to be available
to answer questions at the
annual general meeting.
EEEFRFELFERRB
FREG URHEREER
T REZESERHFMZE
Eg(mER)NERER
BRRBFARE FEER
A o

. HEBRRERWNEBE
E1 BXMEBE
RIFELRA - EEgRIZNHERFRE
RRETHEYGE  LHEERRSE
EK HMBRE A HERREITE
TEERERELXMEH -

Compliance by the Company in 2007
ARAR-BBLENMETHE

A separate resolution is proposed for each
substantially separate issue.

REBEATNANESBEYHSRETAMNRSE -

The Company’s annual general meeting will be held
on 23 May 2008. The Chairman of the Board who is
also the chairman of the remuneration committee
will attend such forthcoming annual general meeting
and be available to answer questions thereat and will
arrange for the chairman of the audit committee to
be available to answer questions at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.
ARABIRERBEREHER_ZTZENFRAA=-T=
HET B2 XF(TRAFMZESIE) KL
FZEERRBFRAETRNEG FOERHM W
ZHERZESEIRNEERRBEFAE LEE
R o
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31 December
2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises five executive directors and four
independent non-executive directors:

Executive directors:
WANG Weixian (Chairman)
TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
LAl Kin, Jerome (Chief Financial Officer)
WANG Xuling
(appointed on 10 July 2007)
TAM Lai Ling (Deputy Managing Director and
Head of Corporate Finance)
(appointed on 3 December 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:
CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

FONG Wo, Felix, JP

JIANG Simon X.

KWAN Kai Cheong

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Company. The
Board has extensive management experience in the property
market in the PRC. The Board has the required knowledge,
experience and capabilities to operate and develop the Group’s
business and implement the Company’s business strategies. The
biographical details and experience of the directors and senior
management are set out on pages 74 to 81.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company. The directors, individually
and collectively, are aware of their responsibilities and
accountability to shareholders and for the manner in which the
affairs of the Company are managed and operated.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance for 2008
to give the directors an opportunity to attend. Directors can
attend board meetings either in person or by electronic means

of communication.

Directors have timely access to relevant information prior to
each board meeting to enable them to make an informed
decision and to discharge their duties and responsibilities.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors. The Company is of the view that all the independent
non-executive directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers them to be independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationship
among members of the Board or between the Chairman and
the Chief Executive Officer.

The Company provides directors with directors’ and officers’
liability insurance coverage to protect them from loss as a result
of any legal proceeding against the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. WANG Weixian is the Chairman and Mr. TSE Sai Tung,
Stones serves as the Chief Executive Officer. The role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the Chief Executive Officer
so as to delineate their respective areas of responsibility. They
receive significant support from the directors and the senior
management team.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (Continued)

The Chairman is responsible for the overall business and
investment strategies of the Group. The Chairman is also
responsible for overseeing effective functioning of the Board
and application of good corporate governance practices and
procedures. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for
managing the Group’s overall operations and execution of the
Group’s long term business development policies. The Board,
led by the Chairman, sets the overall directions, strategies
and policies of the Group. Under the leadership of the Chief
Executive Officer, the management is responsible for executing
the Board'’s strategy and implementing its policies through the
day-to-day management and operations of the Company.

The Board delegates appropriate aspects of its management
and administrative functions to the management who shall
report to the Board. The Board reviews on a periodic basis such
delegations to ensure that they remain appropriate.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
diversified backgrounds and industry skills and one member
has an appropriate accounting qualification as required by
the Listing Rules. With their expertise, they offer experience,
independent judgement and advice on the overall management
of the Company. Their responsibilities include maintaining
a balance between the interests of all shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

They are members of the audit and remuneration committees.

The term of appointment of the independent non-executive
directors is one year renewable by mutual agreement on an
annual basis. Under the Company’s Articles, one-third of all
directors (whether executive or non-executive) is subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at each annual general
meeting provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established the remuneration committee on 19
September 2006 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The
committee is responsible for formulating and reviewing the
remuneration policy and specific remuneration packages of
all executive directors. In formulating the remuneration policy,
the committee takes into consideration factors such as salaries
paid by comparable companies, employment conditions and
responsibilities, and individual performance of the directors,
senior management, and the general staff. The committee can
seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The remuneration committee comprises Mr. WANG Weixian, who
is the chairman of the committee and all the independent non-
executive directors.

Two meetings were held by the remuneration committee in
2007 to discuss remuneration related matters. All members
attended the meeting.

Details of the emoluments and options of each director, on a
named basis, are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board selects and recommends candidates for directorship
having regard to the balance of skills and experience
appropriate to the Company’s business. It applied these criteria
to identify the two executive directors appointed respectively in
July 2007 and December 2007 who contribute accounting and
related financial management expertise and extensive business
management and public company board experiences.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the audit committee on 19 September
2006 with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The committee
is responsible for formulating and reviewing the financial and
internal control principles of the Company. The committee is
also responsible for making recommendation to the Board on
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the external
auditors, approving the remuneration and terms of engagement
of the external auditors and considering any questions of
resignation or dismissal of such auditors. The committee can
seek independent professional advice to complement its own
resources to discharge its duties.

The committee comprises all the independent non-executive
directors. Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong is the chairman of the
committee.

Two meetings were held by the audit committee in 2007. All
members attended the meetings. The committee reviewed,
together with the senior management and the external
auditors, the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2007, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company, statutory compliance, other financial
reporting matters and the internal control system.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive, balanced
and understandable assessment of the Group’s performance,
position and prospects. Management provides such explanation
and information to enable the Board to make an informed
assessment of the matters put before the Board for approval.

The directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements for the Group.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company

regarding their responsibilities for the financial statements of
the Group is set out in the report of the auditors on page 106.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining a sound
and effective system of internal control and for reviewing its
effectiveness, particularly in respect of the controls on financial,
operational, compliance and risk management, to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and the Group's assets.

The Board is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of
internal control of the Company.

AUDITORS REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, is primarily
responsible for providing audit services in connection with
annual financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2007.

For the year ended 31 December 2007, the total remuneration
in respect of statutory audit services provided by KPMG for the
Group amounted to RMB2,461,000.

The audit committee recommended to the Board (which
endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’ approval
at the forthcoming annual general meeting, KPMG be re-
appointed as the external auditors for the Company for 2008.

SHAREHOLDINGS INFORMATION
As at 31 December 2007:

Authorised share capital: HK$1,000,000,000, comprising

10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Issued and fully paid-up capital: HK$103,750,000 comprising
1,037,500,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each.

Class of shares: one class of ordinary shares of HK$103,750,000
each with equal voting rights.
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Directors and Senior Management Profiles

EERRREEEABEN

WANG Weixian, 43, is the Chairman and the founder of
the Group. Mr. Wang is the Chairman of Starwaly Properties
(Group) Pty Ltd., which he founded in Australia in February
1999, as holding company for various property development
projects of the Group in the PRC. Mr. Wang has over 15 years
of experience in finance, construction, property investment
and development. Mr. Wang graduated from South China
University of Technology with a Bachelor degree in Building
Material and University of Technology Sydney with a Bachelor
degree of Commerce. Mr. Wang is a member of the Political
Consultative Conference of the Nanhui District of Shanghai
and a councilor of Shanghai Soong Ching Ling Foundation (_-=
/ﬁﬂ‘)ﬁ HA%i =] )

TSE Sai Tung, Stones, 49, is the Group Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer. Before joining the Group, Mr.
Tse was the Executive Director and Managing Director of
two listed real estate development companies. Mr. Tse
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor
degree of Science in Engineering, the University of Warwick
of the United Kingdom with a Master’s degree of Business
Administration and Macquarie University of Australia with
a Doctorate in Business Administration. Mr. Tse, presently a
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the
Chartered Institute of Building of the United Kingdom, has
over 26 years of experience in real estate investment and
development, project management, sales and marketing.

LAI Kin, Jerome, 59, is the Group Chief Financial Officer.
Mr. Lai, who graduated from the University of Toronto
with a Bachelor degree of Commerce, is a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
chartered accountant of The Canadian Institute of Chartered
Accountants. Mr. Lai has over 30 years of experience in
accounting, management, strategic planning, auditing and
taxation. Before joining the Group, Mr. Lai was the Senior
Vice-President of the finance, treasury and administration
functional unit of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited and Executive Director of the finance and management
services division of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
overseeing finance matters. Mr. Lai had also served as the
Financial Controller at China Light & Power Company Limited.
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WANG Xuling, 46, is the Group Executive Director. Ms. Wang
graduated from Jinan University (Guangzhou). Before joining
the Group, Ms. Wang was the Deputy General Manager and
Executive Director of Mission Hills Group (Mission Hills Golf
Club). Ms. Wang has over 12 years of experience in the news
and media industry.

TAM Lai Ling, 44, is the Executive Director, Deputy Managing
Director and Head of Corporate Finance of the Group. Mr.
Tam received his Bachelor degree (First Class Honours) in
Mechanical Engineering from University College London, and
has Ph.D. from University of Cambridge. Mr. Tam is a holder of
Chartered Financial Analyst. Before joining the Group, Mr. Tam
was the Deputy Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
of one of the major property development companies in
China. Mr. Tam has extensive experience in corporate finance
transactions in Hong Kong and Mainland China.

CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry, 60, an independent non-
executive Director, has over 30 year experience in the
securities industry. He has been a director of the Worldsec
Group of Companies which he founded in 1991. Mr. Cheong
currently serves as the Deputy Chairman of Worldsec Limited,
a company listed on the London Stock Exchange.
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FONG Wo, Felix, Jp, 57, is a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong
and qualified in Canada and England. He is also appointed by
the Ministry of Justice of China as one of the China-Appointed
Attesting Officers in Hong Kong. Mr. Fong is a founder of
Arculli Fong & Ng, a law firm in Hong Kong who has practiced
law for over 27 years, including 8 years in Toronto. Mr. Fong
is a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference, a director of China
Overseas Friendship Association and a director of Shanghai
Chinese Overseas Friendship Association. He is also the
chairman of the Hong Kong Liquor Licensing Board, a member
of the Advisory Council on Food and Environmental Hygiene
of the Government of the Hong Kong SAR, a member of
the Hong Kong Film Development Council, a member of the
Hong Kong Betting and Lotteries Commission, a member of
the Town Planning Board and a director of the Hong Kong
Basic Law Institute. Mr. Fong is a member of the first Selection
Committee for the purposes of electing the Chief Executive for
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region, a founding member
of Canadian International School of Hong Kong and a visiting
professor of the School of Law of Sun Yat-sen University, PRC.

JIANG Simon X., 54, an independent non-executive Director,
is the founder and Chairman of CyberCity International Limited
as well as Chairman of some of its subsidiaries. For the past
five years, Dr. Jiang has mainly been involved in private equity
investment activities in Hong Kong and mainland China. At
the same time, he was a board member of Zi Corporation, a
Canadian information technology company listed on NASDAQ,
and an advisory board member of Capital International Inc.

KWAN Kai Cheong, 58, an independent non-executive
Director, holds a Bachelor of Accountancy (Honours) degree
from the University of Singapore and is a member of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia. He is also a
Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Kwan is
presently President of Morrison & Company Limited, which is a
business consultancy firm.
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LO Yee Har Susan, 49, is the joint company secretary of
the Company. Ms. Lo is a director of Corporate Services
Department of Tricor Services Limited and a fellow member of
both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators
and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. Ms. Lo
has over 20 years of experience in the corporate secretarial
area and is currently the company secretary of five companies
listed on the Stock Exchange.

LEE Mei Yi, 40, is the joint company secretary of the
Company. Ms. Lee is a senior manager of Corporate Services
Department of Tricor Services Limited and an associate
member of both the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators and the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries. Ms. Lee has over 10 years of experience in the
corporate secretarial area.

MAO Yongming, 54, is the Vice-President of the Group. Mr.
Mao, who has over 26 years of experience in sales, property
development and investment, is a member of the Political
Consultative Conference of Huangshan Municipality and a
standing committee member of the Political Consultative
Conference of the Huangshan District of Huangshan
Municipality.

Wang Huiren, 65, is the Vice-President of the Group and
General Manager-Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd which is one of subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang graduated from East China University of
Politics and Law, majoring in law. Before joining the Group,
Mr. Wang worked in Shanghai Government for years.

Zhang Mingzhi, 53, is the Vice-President of the Group and
General Manager-Investment and Finance Department. Ms.
Zhang graduated from East China Normal University, majoring
in Mathematics, and has obtained a Master’s degree of
Business Administration from AIOU-Asia International Open
University (MACAU). Ms. Zhang, who has over 14 years of
experience in China’s financial industry and project investment
and management, was the former Director of one of first
approved funds management corporations, was Director and
Chairman appointed by several project companies and was the
former General Manager of Assets Department of a Trust &
Investment company.
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ZHANG Haibo, 40, is the Vice-President of the Group. Mr.
Zhang, graduated from Tong Ji University with a Bachelor
degree in Architectural Engineering, is a qualified senior
engineer. Mr. Zhang has over 16 years of experience in real
estate development, engineering and corporate management.
Mr. Zhang was the Deputy General Manager, Executive Deputy
General Manager and General Manager of major operating
subsidiaries of the Company.

WANG Guoguang, 47, is the Vice-President of the Group.
Mr. Wang has obtained a Master’s degree of Business
Administration from the Macau University of Science and
Technology. Mr. Wang has over 22 years of experience
in construction quantity surveying, property investment
assessment, property development and management. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Wang held a position at the Shanghai
branch of China Construction Bank and served as the
Executive Deputy General Manager of a subsidiary of COSCO
Property Group.

ZHU Yong, 39, is the Regional General Manager of the
Group. Mr. Zhu, graduated from the University of Hunan
with a Bachelor degree of Engineering in Industrial and Civil
Construction Engineering and a Master’s degree of Engineering
in Construction and Civil Engineering, is a registered property
assessor of the PRC, a qualified engineer in architectural
engineering and a first degree builder of the PRC. Mr. Zhu
has over ten years of experience in property development and
management.

REN Ruixia, 39, is the Regional General Manager of the
Group. Ms. Ren graduated from the Tianjin University with
a Bachelor degree in Architectural Structure, and Tsing Hua
University with a Master's degree in Business Administration,
Ms. Ren has over 17 years’ experience in property
development and management. Ms. Ren was the Assistant
to General Manager, Executive Deputy General Manager
and Regional Executive Deputy General Manager of major
operating subsidiaries of the Company.
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GAO Yudi, 55
Director of SIPO Polytechnic which is one of subsidiaries of the

, is the Executive Director and Education

Group. Ms. Gao graduated from East China Normal University,
majoring in Chinese. Ms. Gao has over 20 years' experiences
in education and held positions from teacher to Vice-Principal
of one of the famous senior high schools in Shanghai. Ms.
Gao was nominated a title of “Shanghai Top-Level Teacher”.

QU Biao, Frank, 47, is the General Manager of Group Hotel
Investment & Management. Mr. Qu graduated from Hotel
Management department of Shanghai Institute of Tourism
(now as Tourism School of Shanghai Normal University), and
had his executive education in the Hotel School of Cornell
University in US. Mr. Qu who has over 20 years’ experience for
hotel development, pre-opening & operation with Starwood,
Inter-continental and Four Season’s hotel groups. Before
joining the group, he was a Deputy General Manager of Four
Seasons Hotel, Shanghai.

CHAN Min, Jimmy, 52, is the General Manager of Group
Design Management. Mr. Chan graduated from the University
of Hong Kong with a Bachelor degree of Architectural Studies,
the University of Michigan (USA) with a Master’s degree in
Architecture, the Chinese University of Hong Kong with a
Master’s degree in Executive Business Administration. Mr. Chan
is a Registered Hong Kong Architect and has over 25 years’
experience in property design, development, and marketing
promotion, project management.

WANG Lei, Lorna, 44, is the General Manager of Group
Human Resources Management. Ms. Wang graduated from
East China University of Science & Technology with a Bachelor
degree in Engineering, and Tsing Hua University with a
Master's degree in Business Administration. Ms. Wang has
over 17 years' experience in recruitment, training and human
resources management. Before joining the Group, Ms. Wang
has held senior HR positions in various industries including
consulting, manufacture and etc.

LEIl Yu, Rain, 35, is the Legal Director of the Group. Mr. Lei
graduated from Fudan University with a Bachelor degree of
Law and MPA. Mr. Lei is a qualified lawyer of China, with
nearly 10 years’ legal management experience.
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Lu Xin, 45, is the General Manager of Group Cost Control
Management. Mr. Lu has obtained a Master’s degree of
Business Administration from the Macau University of Science
and Technology and is one of the members of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyor and The Chartered Institution
of Building. Mr. Lu got the licenses of registered cost engineer,
senior engineer, and Chinese registered career manager
specialist grade. Mr. Lu was fully experienced in property
development, professional construction electrical design, and
construction project investment assessment, Mr. Lu has over
10 years’ experience in project cost control.

KAN Souk Ting, Tina, 44, is the General Manager of Group
Marketing & Sales. Ms. Kan received her Bachelor degree in
Land Management from University of Reading, UK. Ms. Kan
is an associate member of both Royal Institution and Hong
Kong Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Kan has over
15 years’ of investment consultancy experience with leading
surveyor firm. Before joining the Group, She has held senior
management positions in a number of HK publicly listed
property company.

LEUNG Yau Wan, John, 48, is the Financial Controller of the
Group. Mr. Leung received his Master’s Degree in Accounting
Studies from University of New England, Australia, and
received his Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
University of East Asia. Mr. Leung is a CPA member of the
CPA Australia, member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and fellow member of the Association
of Taxation and Management Accountants, Australia. Before
joining the Group, Mr. Leung was the General Manager
of Finance, Eastern China Region of a HK publicly listed
construction materials Company, the Deputy General Manager
& Financial Controller of a Beijing property development
company, a Director & CFO of a PRC state owned enterprise
in Hong Kong. Prior to that, Mr. Leung worked for one of
the Fortune 500 companies in Hong Kong and Shanghai as
Director and Country Finance Head.
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Liu Xinrong, 36, is the Internal Audit Director & Co-Financial
Controller of the Group. Ms Liu graduated from Wuhan
University of Technology, majoring in Industrial Enterprise
Management. Ms. Liu is a qualified accountant of PRC. Ms.
Liu has over 10 years' of experience in finance management,
development and company management. Ms. Liu was the
Financial Controller of the Group, and Executive Deputy
General Manager of the project company, which is one of the
subsidiaries of the Group.

Cheung Kwok Keung, Stephen, 53, is the Project Director of
Group Hotel Investment & Management. Mr. Cheung received
his Bachelor degree in Architecture and Architectural Studies
from University of Hong Kong. Mr. Cheung is a Member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Architects, Registered Hong Kong
Architect and Authorized Person. Mr. Stephen Cheung has
more than 20 years’ extensive experience in consultancy,
architectural design and project management. Before joining
the Group, Mr. Cheung has held senior management position
in a HK publicly listed property company.

Lee Hang Yuk, 53, is the Customer Service Director of the
Group and General Manager of Shanghai New Independence
House Property Management Co., Ltd. Mr. Lee received his
Master’s degree in Business Administration from University
of Shanghai and attended in programs of University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Lee worked as a Police Officer of Royal Hong Kong
Police Force for years and has more than 15 years extensive
experience in property management. Before joining the group,
Mr. Lee worked as the Property General Manager of Savills
Property Services (Shanghai) and the General Manger of
Beijing Financial Street Synergis Property Management Co. Ltd.

YOU Defeng, 32, is the Assistant Financial Controller of the
Group. Mr. You graduated from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, majoring in business administration. Mr. You
is a qualified accountant of PRC. Mr. You was the Finance
Manager, Deputy Finance Manager of the major operating
subsidiaries of the Company.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their
annual report together with the audited consolidated accounts
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in property development,
property and hotel investment, property management and
education.

An analysis of the Group’s sales and operating results for
the year by principal activities is set out in note 6 to the
consolidated accounts.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Directors believe that the five largest customers of the
Group accounted for about 1% of the Group’s sales in the
year while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for about 16% of the Group’s purchases in the year.

Save for the association with certain related companies as
set out in Note 45 to the consolidated accounts, none of
the Directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of
the Company’s share capital) has a beneficial interest in the
Group’s five largest customers or five largest suppliers.

RESULTS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2007 are set out on page 108.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors recommend the payment of a final
dividend of RMBO0.144 per share, totalling approximatley
RMB149,549,000.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
23 May 2008. A notice convening the annual general meeting
will be published and dispatched to the shareholders of the
Company in the manner as required by the Listing Rules in due
course.
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The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 21 May 2008 to Friday, 23 May 2008, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. In order to determine who are entitled to the
proposed final dividend and to attend the annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 23 May 2008, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch share
registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at 26th
Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 20 May 2008.

FIXED ASSETS
Details of the movements in fixed assets during the year are
set out in note 20 to the consolidated accounts.

ISSUE OF CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 27 April 2007, the Company completed the issue of
RMB1,158 million aggregate principal amount of USD settled
zero coupon convertible bonds due 2012 with the right to
convert into ordinary shares of the Company.

BORROWINGS AND INTEREST CAPITALISED

Borrowings repayable on demand or within one year are
classified under current liabilities. Details of the long-
term borrowings are set out in note 34 to the consolidated
accounts. Interest and other borrowing costs capitalised
by the Group during the year are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated accounts.

MOVEMENTS OF SHARE CAPITAL
During the year, details of the movements in the share capital
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated acccounts.

RESERVES
Details of the movements in reserves during the year are set
out in note 40 to the consolidated accounts.

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was RMB2,289,471,000 (2006: RMB2,386,950,000).
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DONATIONS
The donations made by the Group during the year amounted
to RMB3,664,000 (2006: RMB30,000).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A five-year financial summary of the Group is set out on pages
234 to 236.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. WANG Weixian (Chairman)
Mr. TSE Sai Tung, Stones
(Group Managing director
and CEO)
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome
(CFO)
Ms. WANG Xuling (appointed on 10 July 2007)
Mr. TAM Lai Ling
(Deputy Managing Director

(appointed on
3 December 2007)
and Head of Corporate Finance)

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. CHEONG Ying Chew, Henry

Mr. FONG Wo, Felix, JP

Mr. JJANG Simon X.

Mr. KWAN Kai Cheong

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, one
third of the Directors retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once
every three years.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, all
the Directors appointed by the Board during the year retire at
the next annual general meeting but they are eligible for re-
election.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one
year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS'
CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received independence confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors and considers
them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business to which the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow
subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which
a Director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

In order to eliminate Directors’ interests in business competing
with the Group, on 19 September 2006, Mr. WANG Weixian
entered into a deed of non-competition with the Company
(the “Deed”). As at the date of this report, none of the
Directors of the Company is considered to have interests in
businesses which compete or are likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

In accordance with the terms of the Deed, Mr. WANG Weixian
has provided the Company with an annual confirmation that
he and his associates (other than the Group) have complied
with the terms of the Deed.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the matters relating to the compliance and
enforcement of the Deed by Mr. WANG Weixian and his
associates (other than the Group) and confirmed that Mr.
WANG Weixian and his associates (other than the Group) have
complied with the Deed.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the following
connected transactions require disclosure in the annual report
of the Company. The connected transactions which also
constitute related party transactions are set out in note 45 to
the consolidated accounts.

1. Non-exempt continuing connected

transactions subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements
Sales commission payable to Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate
Consultancy Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Yunjie”)
On 22 April 2004, the Group entered into a sales agency
agreement (“Sales Agency Agreement”) with Shanghai
Yunjie pursuant to which the Group appointed Shanghai
Yunjie as its sales agent of properties developed by the
Group for a term commenced on the date of the said
sales agency agreement and expiring on the date when
all such properties have been sold. Shanghai Yunjie is
principally engaged in the provision of property agency
services in the PRC and does not provide agency services
to other property developers.

Shanghai Yunjie, a company established in the PRC,
is owned as to approximately 88.89% by Mr. Mao
Yongming and approximately 11.11% by an independent
third party. Mr. Mao Yongming, being a director of
various subsidiaries of the Company, is a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Shanghai
Yunjie, being an associate of Mr. Mao Yongming, is
also a connected person of the Company. Accordingly,
transactions between the Group and Shanghai Yunjie
constitute connected transactions of the Company
upon the listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange.
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Non-exempt continuing connected
transactions subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements (Continued)

Sales commission payable to Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate
Consultancy Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Yunjie”) (Continued)
On 12 September 2006, the Group and Shanghai Yunjie
entered into a termination agreement whereby the
parties agreed to terminate the Sales Agency Agreement.
On the same date, the Group entered into a framework
agreement with Shanghai Yunjie pursuant to which
the Group agrees to appoint Shanghai Yunjie as its
sales agent of properties developed by it for a term
commencing from 10 October 2006 (the "Listing Date")
and ending 31 December 2008 (“Yunjie Transaction”).
Under the Yunjie Transaction, the Group has agreed
to pay Shanghai Yunjie commission in respect of the
value of the properties sold by Shanghai Yunjie for
each particular property project at a rate to be agreed
between the Group and Shanghai Yunjie provided that
the average commission payable shall not exceed 1% of
the aggregate value of the properties sold by Shanghai
Yunjie under different property projects of the Group.

On 1 January 2007, the Group and Shanghai Yunjie
entered into an agreement whereby the parties agreed
that as and when the sales commission calculated
in accordance with the above mentioned framework
agreement payable to Shanghai Yunjie for the period
commencing 1 January 2007 reached a specified amount,
the said framework agreement shall be terminated. As
the total sales commission payable to Shanghai Yunjie
since 1 January 2007 reached the specified amount
in October 2007, the said framework agreement was
terminated in October 2007

The Directors also confirmed that the commission of 1%
is in line with the market practice and in compliance with
the guideline promulgated by Shanghai Price Department
and Shanghai Municipal Housing, Land and Resource
Administration Bureau on 28 August 2003.

Under Rule 14A.34 of the Listing Rules, the Yunjie
Transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements but exempt
from independent shareholders’ approval requirement.

The Yunjie Transaction for the year ended 31
December 2007 amounted to RMB9,725,000 (2006:
RMB7,172,000) which has not exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual sales commission payable to Shanghai
Yunjie in respect of the year ended 31 December 2007
as disclosed in the prospectus issued by the Company on
26 September 2006 (the "Prospectus").

=]
my =) B M\

ABITHBERAMGAENFRRETE
REXS (&)

FET EGEREHEZAREFRE
FRA([ EEER])EERD (&)
:TT/\EHH‘% H KNEBEHEE

BENT LK LW Bt €5
ﬁﬂtﬁﬁﬁﬁ% comMB - AEH
HEBENTLERDE Bt &

SEREZELEBEENREMER
MENHERE  ZEHFH_FTETX
FTATE(LETREHDREE=-F
ENF+_A=+—BHLETEAR
51) - REEANXRS  AEBER B
LBERNRARER LGNSR
BHEMEREEBWMEEBRAEENE
ZBERLELBEAXNEENAE
HENAE A FHBELBERNRERN
SETRYMEBEEMHENELED
1% °

RZZEZE+F—H—H A&EEHEE
ﬁi*Ti Hip# EFREK=

T+F-—A B RIELMEZR
Tz?%uéxn HNENEBERNEERS
EDEToERN A LAERERES
BRI - R F+ A HARE
—EE+F-A—BARBENTLEE
*E’Jfﬁ&ﬁ%,ﬁ!gﬁ‘iﬂﬁbiﬁgﬁ +
MEEBZR _ZTELF+AFULK
JJ:o

EENERI%BEEFTAMEENK

FETYWERKLEEMEE T HER
EERR_ZEE=FNA=-_+NHHE
mryIE S| -

BiE EH AR R E14A341K - EAR
BRARAMNBEMERS &
STERBMAMBRTE BRI F#RETE
SR BLERE ©

ERRGREBEE_ZEZELF+ A
T+ BLFEMNEBEARARYE
9725000 L (Z T X F: AR
7,172,0007) * RBBEBARFTRZE
ERFLAZTARBRHNHERER
(ERER)MHEEHE_ZTZ+
F+ A=+ BHLEFEEMNLESE
AN FEHEEMSBEN LR -

() ARAR e« —BFBLFEFH 87



Report of the Board of Directors

—_+

B

88

EEHE

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction
subject to reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang
Co. Ltd. ("Sendao”)

Sendao supplied doors and windows to the Group and
provided the installation services in respect thereof
for the development and construction of the property
projects of the Group.

Sendao, a company established in the PRC, is an indirect
subsidiary of a Company which is owned as to 90%
by the brother-in-law of Mr. Wang Weixian. Mr. Wang,
being a Director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company, is a connected person of the Company. The
brother-in-law of Mr. Wang is an associate of Mr. Wang.
Sendao, being a company in the equity capital of which
the brother-in-law of Mr. Wang is directly or indirectly
interested so as to exercise or control the exercise of
30% or more of the voting power at general meetings,
is regarded as an associate of Mr. Wang. Accordingly,
transactions between the Group and Sendao constitute
connected transactions of the Company upon the listing
of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange.

On 12 September 2006, the Group entered into a
framework agreement with Sendao pursuant to which
the Group agrees that, for a term commencing from the
Listing Date and ending on 31 December 2008, it may,
from time to time, award individual supply contracts
to Sendao for the supply of doors and windows and
provision of installation services to the Group (“Sendao
Transaction”) provided that the terms and conditions
offered by Sendao through a tender process are on
normal commercial terms and not less favourable than
those offered by independent third parties.

Under Rule 14A.35 of the Listing Rules, the Sendao
Transaction constitutes a continuing connected
transaction of the Company and is subject to the
reporting, announcement and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.
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Non-exempt continuing connected transaction
subject to reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang
Co. Ltd. (“Sendao”) (Continued)

The Sendao Transaction for the year ended 31
December 2007 amounted to RMB23,602,000 (2006:
RMB18,615,000) which has not exceeded the maximum
aggregate annual purchases payable to Sendao in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2007 as disclosed in the
Prospectus.

The Company has applied to the Stock Exchange for a
waiver from strict compliance with Rule 14A.42(3) of
the Listing Rules and the Stock Exchange has agreed to
grant such waiver to the Company from compliance with
the announcement and, if applicable, the independent
shareholders approval requirement in relation to each of
the Yunjie Transaction and the Sendao Transaction.

The Independent Non-Executive Directors of the
Company have reviewed the Yunjie Transaction and
the Sendao Transaction (“Continuing Connected
Transactions”) and were of the opinion that:

(a) the Continuing Connected Transactions had been:

(i)  carried out in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group;

(i) conducted either on normal commercial terms
or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are
on normal commercial terms, on terms
no less favourable to the Company than
terms available to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties; and

(ili) entered into in accordance with the terms
of the relevant engagement/commission
agreements on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole; and
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2. Non-exempt continuing connected transaction
subject to reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements
(Continued)

Purchases from Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang

Co. Ltd. (“Sendao”) (Continued)

(b) the aggregate amount of the Continuing
Connected Transactions for the financial year ended
31 December 2007 did not exceed the annual caps
of RMB20,000,000 (for the Yunjie Transaction) and
RMB26,770,000 (for the Sendao Transaction).

Based on the work performed, the auditors of the Company
have confirmed that the Continuing Connected Transactions
(a) have been approved by the Board of Directors of the
Company; (b) have been entered into in accordance with the
terms of the relevant agreements governing the transactions;
and (c) have not exceeded the caps disclosed in the
Prospectus.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions and
connected transactions, the Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in force from
time to time.

SPECIFIC PERFORMANCE OBLIGATIONS OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

No specific performance obligations of the controlling
shareholder are required to be disclosed under paragraph
13.18 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange.

SHARE OPTIONS
On 19 September 2006, the Company adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”).

A summary of the Share Option Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose of the Share Option Scheme:
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize
and acknowledge the contributions of the participants to
the growth of the Group by granting options to them as
incentives or rewards.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

2.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme:

The Board may, in its discretion, offer to grant options
to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine to the following participants:

(i)  any executive and employee of the Group; or

(i) any director (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Group;
or

(iii)  any consultant, adviser and/or agent of the Group.

Total number of shares available forissue
under the Share Option Scheme and % of
issued share capital at 26 March 2008:

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
must not in aggregate exceed 103,750,000 shares
(approximately 10.00% of issued share capital).

Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Share Option Scheme:

The maximum entitlement for each participant is that
the total number of shares of the Company issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the options granted to
each participant (including both exercised, cancelled
and outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue. Any grant of further options above
this limit shall be subject to certain requirements as
stipulated in the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

The period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, options
may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part, at
any time during the period commencing from the date
of grant and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on the business day
(i) preceding the fifth anniversary of the date of grant
or (i) preceding the expiry of the Share Option Scheme,
whichever is the earlier.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

6.

92

The minimum period for which an option must

be held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months
after the date of grant. A grantee may be required to
achieve such performance targets as determined by
the Board before any options granted under the Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

The amount payable on application or
acceptance of the option and the period within
which payments or calls must or may be made,
or loans for such purposes must be paid:

Nil

The basis of determining the exercise price:
The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the Share Option Scheme
shall be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price shall at least be the
higher of:

(i)  the closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date
of offer, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in
securities (“Business Day"); and

(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five Business Days immediately
preceding the date of offer.

or (where applicable) such price as from time to time
adjusted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

The remaining life of the Share Option scheme:
The Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 19 September
2006 and will expire at 5:00 p.m. on the Business Day
preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
Details of the share options granted pursuant to the

Share Option Scheme which remained outstanding as at

31 December 2007 are as follows:

BRE(E)

Options

outstanding as at

BEEREFIEEMTR_ZEZTLF
T AT HMAITENEREF
S

Options granted

during the year
ended 31
December 2007

Options
outstanding as at

1 January 2007 BE-ZZ+tHF 31 December 2007
Exercise price R-EZLHF +=ZB=+-H R-ZZE+HE
Director Date of Grant per share —-HA—H LEERE +tZA=+-H
B REAH BROEE HATENBRE REMBERE HROENERE
Mr. TAM Lai Ling 3 December 2007 HK$6.526 /& T — 10,000,000° 10,000,000
ERELE —ZT+E+-A=H
Employees 10 October 2007 HK$6.3007% 7T — 640,000 640,000
EE “EELE+ATH
— 10,640,000 10,640,000
Notes M 5

The options shall vest in tranches in the following
manner on the following dates of vesting:

(i) 25% of the options shall vest on 3 December
2007 (the “First Tranche”); and

(i)  25% of the Option shall vest on 3 December
2008, 3 December 2009 and 3 December 2010,
respectively (the “Subsequent Tranches”).

The options may be exercised during the period
commencing from 3 December 2007 and expiring at
5:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding 3
December 2012 except that no option vested in the First
Tranche or the Subsequent Tranches can be exercised
until the expiry of 12 months after the respective dates
of vesting.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$6.34.
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(a)

(d)

The options shall vest in tranches in the following
manner on the following dates of vesting:

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2007
(the "First Option Tranche”);

(i) 30% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2008
(the "Second Option Tranche"”); and

(iii)  40% of the options shall vest on 10 October 2009
(the "Third Option Tranche” and, together with
the “Second Option Tranche”, the “Succeeding
Tranches”).

The Board may at its absolute discretion adjust
the percentage of the options to be vested in the
Succeeding Tranches either upwards or downwards
based on the option holder’s performance in the year
immediately preceding the vesting of the options in
the relevant Succeeding Tranches as determined by the
Board except that such adjustment shall not affect the
vesting of the options in the First Option Tranche.

The options may be exercised during the period
commencing from 10 October 2007 and expiring at
5:00 p.m. on the Business Day immediately preceding
10 October 2012 except that no option shall be
exercised until the expiry of 12 months after the
respective dates of vesting.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the
date on which the options were granted was HK$6.25.

No option granted under the Share Option Scheme was
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2007.

Save as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December
2007, no option has been granted under the Share Option
Scheme.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

On 19 September 2006, the Company also approved and
adopted a share option scheme entitling the Board of Directors
to grant share options at its discretion before the listing of the
shares (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”). A summary of the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is set out below:

1. Purpose of the Pre-IPO Scheme:
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
recognize and acknowledge the contributions of the
participants to the growth of the Group and/or the listing
of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange by
granting options to them as incentives or rewards.

2. Participants of the Pre-IPO Scheme:

The Board may, in its discretion, offer to grant options
to subscribe for such number of shares as the Board may
determine to any executive, director and/or employee of
the Group who is in full-time employment of the Group
at the time when an option is granted.

3. Total number of shares available forissue
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and %
of issued shared capital at 26 March 2008:
18,540,000 shares being the maximum number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have been fully granted.
Such shares represented approximately 1.79% of the
issued share capital.

4. Maximum entitlement of each participant
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:
There is no restriction on the number of shares of the
Company issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant in any 12-month
period.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
5. The period within which the shares must be
taken up under an option:

Subject to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
an option may be exercised by a participant, in whole or
in part, at any time during the period commencing from
the date of grant and ending on such date as the Board
may determine in granting the option but in any event
not exceeding 5 years from 19 September 2006 being

the date of grant of the option.

6. The minimum period for which an option must

be held before it can be exercised:

No option may be exercised until the expiry of 12 months
after the date of vesting (provided that 25% of the
options which was vested on the date of grant shall not
be exercisable within 12 months from the Listing Date).
A grantee may be required to achieve such performance
targets as determined by the Board before any options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme can be

exercised.

7. The amount payable on application or

acceptance of the option and the period within
which payments or calls must or may be made,

or loans for such purposes must be paid:
Nil

8. The basis of determining the exercise price:

(i) 25% of the options shall vest on the date of
grant at a price of HK$3.824 representing 80% of
HK$4.78 being the price of the Company’s shares
offered under the Prospectus (“Offer Price”); and

(i) 25% of the options shall vest on each of the first,
second and third anniversary of the date of grant at
a price of HK$4.302 representing 90% of the Offer

Price.
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)

Scheme

BRE(E)
9. Theremaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option 0.

The Scheme was valid and effective for the period

commencing on 19 September 2006 and expired on 9

October 2006.

Details of the share options granted on 19 September
2006 pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
which remained outstanding as at 31 December 2007 are

BROMBRABRESBNERT F
A

ZAEAMAREH _ZEERFNA
THhAERGE E-FTTXRFTANA
JE i o

75 B8 AR 1 25 2 ) 9 B T AR A
R-FEAEAATARRLBR
BR-FTLF+-A=+—AH

as follows: RITE)VFHBEWOT

Options Options Options

outstanding granted during outstanding

as at the year ended as at

Date of grant 1 January 2007 31 December 2007 31 December 2007

R-ZEBLHE REBZE-Z2tF R-BZ+F

-A-BHX TZA=t-AHL +t=A=t-8

BB H TENERE FECRHNBRE fef R AT 56 9 B PR 4B

Director g 19 September 2006 7,500,000 — 7,500,000
Mr. LAI Kin, Jerome Rigks ZEERFNAATAA

Employees =] 19 September 2006 11,040,000 — 11,040,000
ZEERENATNEA

18,540,000 — 18,540,000
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SHARE OPTIONS (Continued)
Notes:

98

Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
25% of the options shall vest on the date of grant (“First
Tranche”) at an option price of HK$3.824 per share. 25% of
the options shall vest on each of the first, second and third
anniversary of the date of grant (“Subsequent Tranches”)
atan option price of HK$4.302 per share. The Board may at
its absolute discretion adjust the percentage of the options
to be vested in the Subsequent Tranches either upwards or
downwards based on the performance of the option holder in
the year immediately preceding the vesting of the options in
the relevant Subsequent Tranches as determined by the Board
except that such adjustment shall not affect the vesting of
options in the First Tranche.

Pursuant to the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
options may be exercised by a participant, in whole or in part,
atany time during the period commencing from the date of
grant and ending on such date as the Board may determine
in granting the option but in any event not exceeding 5 years
from 19 September 2006 being the date of grant of the
options. No option may be exercised until after the expiry of
12 months after the vesting date (provided that an option
vested in the First Tranche shall not be exercisable within 12
months from the Listing Date).

No option granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

was exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31
December 2007.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2007, the interests of each Director and
chief executive of the Company in the equity or debt securities
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or
(b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange were as follows:

(i) Long positioninshares of the Company:

ESREBESNES
RZZEELFFT_A=1T—H ARAE
ERITREFHNARR S ARAEEZE (F
ERBEARBEGA(TEFSRAEEMN])
WRNSNEBESFTRBEQEREES K
HEGEMEXVHETIRESD A ME AR T
RERXANER(BEREESFRAEK
DI EBGERESHEFIRIERBNZ
mREE) AR TEEREESF KRB
B 6 5 %352 1§ 50 8% 70 5% 1§ 51 B it & &2 it
WiER OBREARE EHETAE
FHRTESFRXHGNBEFEMELE AR
AINMEERZPTHER DT ¢

(i) RELXFIROBBRE

Approximate

Capacity and Number of percentage of

Name of Director nature of interest Shares shareholding

BEREBD

ExEB B REEME REOHE B

Mr. Wang Weixian Interest of controlled 620,932,622 59.84
TEELRE corporation (Note 1)

HES AR ER (M)
Beneficiary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.39

trust (Note 2)
2HEAZTA

(Bt&E2)
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones Interest of controlled 11,249,873 1.08
EIRE e corporation (Note 3)
Xl ArEs (MEE3)
Ms. Wang Xuling Interest of controlled 10,000,438 0.96
FTRELZL corporation (Note 4)
XEHlArER (M)
Beneficiary of discretionary 107,817,067 10.39
trust (Note 2)
TRETEZHEA
(Bt&E2)

Note 1: Mr. Wang Weixian is deemed to be interested in an
aggregate of 620,932,622 Shares which are held
by SPG Investment Holdings Ltd., Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited and Prestige Glory Enterprises
Limited, respectively.

(@) 494,382,087 Shares are held by SPG
Investment Holdings Ltd. which is in turn
entirely beneficially owned by Mr. Wang
Weixian.

BB B (2R BRAT o

M1 TRELEERRBRERAS H
620,932,622 B Bk 1 2 7| © &%
% & 17 2 Bl FASPG Investment
Holdings Ltd. * Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited }2 Prestige Glory
Enterprises Limited i i5 A o

(a) A 81494,382,087 ik & 15 T
FSPG Investment Holdings
Ltd . &8 ZARHEMHA
TRELAEREE=HER °
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

(i)

(i)

100

Long position in shares of the Company:
(Continued)

(b) 126,550,535 Shares are held by Prestige
Glory Enterprises Limited which is entirely
beneficially owned by Mr. Wang Weixian.

Note 2:

Each of Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms. Wang Xuling

is deemed to be interested in 107,817,067 Shares,
which are held by Brilliant Bright Investment
Limited which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
HSBC International Trustee Limited as trustee of a
discretionary trust of which family members of Mr.
Wang Weixian including Mr. Wang Weixian and Ms.

Wang Xuling are discretionary objects.

ESREBSNER (F)
() REXAROBHRE : (B)

MzE2 :

MizE3 -

(b) A #0126,550,535 % & 5 Ty
£ Prestige Glory Enterprises
Limited# & - % 2 Al @ £
BEXETL2EREE °

FTREELTERTRELZ IR
B B ¥ 5107,817,067 B % 19 &9
= v 7% 5 % % A Brilliant Bright
Investment Limited3 & - H A&
HSBC International Trustee Limited
TEHEATRAT  ERTEER
ERGEREAMBERZHRNZ
BETXTZETIA PRETEER
ERTFRZELZL -

HEtRELEEWRAEZTEAH
11,249,873 R &= - Z F KR
MAEHERIEE2ESEEN
Easternflair Investment Limited Fff

Note 3: Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones is deemed to be interested
in 11,249,873 shares, which are held by Easternflair
Investment Limited which is in turn entirely beneficially
owned by Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones.

Note 4: Ms. Wang Xuling is deemed to be interested

in 10,000,438 shares, which are held by Boom
Rich Investments Limited which is in turn entirely
beneficially owned by Ms. Wang Xuling.

Long position in underlying shares of the

Company:

Name of Director

BEEEE
Mr. LAl Kin, Jerome

REETE

Mr. TAM Lai Ling
WEELE

Capacity and
nature of interest

B REZME

Beneficial owner
E=nEAA

Beneficial owner

Note 1: These share options were granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme. A summary of the terms of
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and details of the
share options granted thereunder are set out in the
paragraph headed “Share Options” in this report.
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equity derivatives

RESTETRBH

Share option
BB hE
(Note 1)

(BF3E1)

Share option
i Ak 1
(Note 2)

(My&x2)

MisE1

Number of
underlying shares

HERGBE

7,500,000

10,000,000
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
(ii) Long positioninunderlying shares of the

Company: (Continued)

Note 2: These shares options were granted under the Share
Option Scheme. A summary of the terms of the Share
Option Scheme and details of the share options
granted thereunder are set out in the paragraph
headed “Share Options” in this report.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2007, none of
the Directors, chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any personal, family, corporate or
other interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO),
or which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
to enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children
under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate, and no Directors or chief executives
or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age
had been granted any right to subscribe for equity or debt
securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’
Interests in Securities” above, as at 31 December 2007,
according to the register of interests kept by the Company
under section 336 of the SFO, the following entities had
interests or short positions in the shares of the Company
which fall to be disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Capacity and

Name of shareholder nature of interest
RER A BOREENE
SPG Investment Holdings Ltd. Beneficial owner (Note 1)
EmmEaA (1)
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited Beneficial owner
EHERBA
Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited Beneficial owner (Note 1)
EmEAA (K1)
HSBC International Trustee Limited Trustee
(Note 2)
A
(BEEx2)

Note 1: Mr. Wang Weixian is a director of SPG Investment Holdings
Ltd. and Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited.

Note 2 : These shares are held by Brilliant Bright Investment Limited
which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of HSBC International
Trustee Limited as a trustee of a discretionary trust of
which family members of Mr. Wang Weixian including
himself are discretionary objects.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is
formulated by the Remuneration Committee which takes
into account individual performance, qualifications and
competence.

The remuneration of the Executive Directors of the Company
are decided by the Remuneration Committee, having regard
to the Company’s operating results, individual performance
and comparable market statistics. The remuneration of the
Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Non-
executive Directors) of the Company are recommended by
the Remuneration Committee.

The Company has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and the Share Option Scheme to provide incentive to the
directors and eligible employees of the Group, details of the
said schemes are set out in the paragraph headed “Share
Options” above.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SHARES
During the year ended 31 December 2007, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
No pre-emptive rights exist in the Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS

The Group conducts its business almost exclusively in
Renminbi and does not have any direct exposure to foreign
exchange fluctuations. In the event that the value of Renminbi
appreciates, the Group would be indirectly affected.
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE FLUCTUATIONS (Continued)

For the time being, Renminbi is not a freely convertible
currency. The PRC government may adopt measures which
could result in a material difference between the exchange
rate of Renminbi in future and that prevailing or in the past.
Appreciation in Renminbi would have a positive effect on
the value of any dividend to be declared by the Group in
Renminbi, when translating into Hong Kong dollars. However,
the Group may expose to exchange loss when converting any
remaining portion of IPO proceeds from Hong Kong dollars
into Renminbi.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for dealings
in securities of the Company by Directors. Based on specific
enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they have complied with the required standard of dealings set
out in the Model Code throughout the year of 2007.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s audit committee is composed of all the four
Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The
audit committee has reviewed with the management the
accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters
including a review of the audited consolidated accounts for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of its Directors,
the Directors confirm that the Company has maintained
throughout the year of 2007 the amount of public float as
required under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

The consolidated accounts for the year have been audited by
KPMG. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as the
Company’s auditors for the ensuing year is to be proposed at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
WANG Weixian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 March 2008
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Report of the Auditors

% BRI &

Independent auditors’ report to the shareholders of
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of SPG
Land (Holdings) Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 108 to 233, which comprise the consolidated balance
sheet of the Group and the balance sheet of the Company
as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. This report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
of the Group as at 31 December 2007, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2008

BRBENEE(E)
ERPRATREFANEREEYBRRA
BB LRBBEERNESZRE - IEEN
REFBORRZBE M A - eRfFman
BRAERMEFVERRFEERNER
R R - EF G ZFRBRE - XA
%Eﬁ%ﬂﬂ%%&ﬁ%ﬁ@ﬁ%%ﬁ%
BHRRMEBOANIIZES - AR E
%Eﬁ'@ﬁ%%ﬂ@ﬂmmﬂhﬂ%ﬁ
BMEBRXRER BRNERFEEFTAE
A& BRAEE &R PTEL & &G
FARMAEE URFHEMBERERNEBRES
w7 e

ZMIEE RFMMES M§¢_% 7R
MEZwRRMNEZTLREE

=R

BMRE ZE HAMBHRRCEENR

“m&%ﬁ_§7t¢+ A=+—B%
SERERRMBNRR  AREEEH

iﬁﬁtiEW@ﬂ&ﬁiﬁé'iaﬁ

Vl@%ﬁﬁiﬁmﬂ%%” fize 1 9 352

BREEEHRS -

EEHETHERAT

B EEEAD

EAEFIR

T E 1058

AT ARESHE

— T N\F=ZHF=+H

BEEH (ER)ERAF « —TT+FF% 107



Consolidated Income Statement

=IPAN N
iR e MER
For the year ended 31 December 2007
BE-_TE+FF+-A=+—HILFE

2007
—BBtLE
RMB’000
AR T T
1,714,507
(1,072,298)

642,209

9,237
(65,592)
(151,743)
(9,115)

193,112

618,108

46,359
(155,560)

4,440
(104,761)
(8.239)

505,108

269,626

774,734
(251,580)

523,154
498,498

24,656
523,154

149,549

2006
—ETXRF
RMB’000
ARBT T

1,887,458
(1,307,483)

579,975

15,858
(28,281)
(81,546)

(213)

485,793

23,092
(36,640)

(13,548)
(318)

471,927

39,882

511,809
(112,799)

399,010
390,818

8,192
399,010

90,056

0.480

0.479

Note
Bt &
Revenue I &= 9
Cost of sales 5 & B AR
Gross profit ER
Other operating income H 48 = A 10
Selling and marketing costs 85 & N T 5 B K AR
Administrative expenses TERER
Other operating expenses H i 48 2 B 2 11
Net gain on disposal of equity & F QA R
interest in subsidiaries Wz % &8 8
Results from operating activities REKE TR
Finance income B & WA
Finance expenses B & Bk A
Fair value changes on TTHESHIT AN
financial derivatives AN EEEE 36
Net finance expenses ME R EEE 14 7
Share of loss of associates JE(R & QRS E
Profit before revaluation gains on RETBREYE
investment properties and EflRER
income tax Fr 8 B A0 s 7l
Revaluation gains on investment A
properties = ez 22
Profit before income tax R Pt 15 B B0 F
Income tax expense Fr 15 %4 Bl =2 15(ii)
Profit for the year FERA
Attributable to: BT AT B4 :
Equity holders of the Company RARREREE A
Minority interests DB R R A
Profit for the year F B Al
Dividends payable to equity holders F& {f Z< A 7] J& #&
of the Company attributable BEAEE
to the year EiERE 18
Dividends declared during the year FARNEIRRKE
Dividends proposed after the BEERBEXRBIER
balance sheet date R B B
Earnings per share BRER
Basic earnings per share (RMB) FRREXREZA
(AR®T) 19
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) &I % 5E & 7
(AR ) 19

The notes on pages 114 to 233 form part of these financial

statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet

MEEEAERMRARIEERER
As at 31 December 2007
KR=FFLF+=A=+—H

Company
b/
2007 2006
g3 - - A
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARETR

3,164,184
46,171

3,210,355

656,238
68,357
137,138

81,276
683,196
295,853

861,733 1,060,325

4,072,088 2,530,452

105,571
2,084,437
454,980

105,571
2,084,437
319,355

(103,405) (5,926)

2,541,583 2,503,437

Group
b= ]
2007 2006
—EEtE —TTRE
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B & AR®TRn ARETRL
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BELRE 20 246,039 226,856
Land use rights T i 4R 21 64,173 74,280
Properties under development EEBYE 24 2,356,458 758,434
Investment properties REWME 22 698,000 333,700
Investment properties under BERPEE
development LES 23 — 40,907
Interests in associates RN 26 982,507 944,134
Investment in subsidiaries FREER 27 = —
Financial derivatives TEEBMIA 36 46,171 —
Deferred tax assets EXERAEE 33(ii) 73,728 64,148
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 4,467,076 2,442,459
Properties under development BREAME 24 642,593 505,290
Completed properties held for sale  BEKFEME 25 253,976 387,533
Inventories FE 28 81 2,108
Investments HE 29 730 3,319
Trade, other receivables and FEUIR T« Hfth FEUR
advance deposits ARBANES 30 1,079,483 647,901
Restricted cash XRHEE 31 241,593 841,717
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBELEEYD 32 863,237 818,974
Total current assets HREEEAE 3,081,693 3,206,842
Total assets EEAE 7,548,769 5,649,301
Equity Ei
Share capital P& & 39 105,571 105,571
Share premium &1 @B 40 2,084,437 2,084,437
Reserves & 685,931 549,831
Retained earnings/ REEF
(accumulated losses) (RatEE) 432,656 (65,233)
Total equity attributable to equity ZAAFAREZHE A
holders of the Company iR A 3,308,595 2,674,606
Minority interests YR RER 304,577 15,830
Total equity EHEE 3,613,172 2,690,436

The notes on pages 114 to 233 form part of these financial
statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet and Company Balance Sheet
GERERBERNARIEERGER

As at 31 December 2007
KR=FEtF+-A=+—H

Group Company
x5H NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
Z22tE —TTRE  ZBERELFE —TIRN
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000

Mt & ARETR ARBTE AR®TRn AR®T:

Liabilities =L
Interest bearing loans SERER 34 EypX G 1,111,390 —
Trade, other payables and EREZ . Hi

advance receipts J& 5 3 & TR Uk R A 35 1,238,662 848,026 431,200 27,015
Tax payable e 8 33(i) 332,421 185,934 — —
Total current liabilities TEBEELAE CVEW RN 0 145 350 431,200 27,015
Interest bearing loans HBEX 34 678,810 789,470 = —
Convertible bonds A& & 36 1,007,549 1,007,549 —
Financial derivatives TESMTA 36 91,756 91,756 —
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE 33(iii) 213,999 — —
Total non-current liabilities FRBHEBHELE 1,992,114 813,515 IREEERE{ —
Total liabilities EEAH 3,935,597 BPEEEEIEM 1,530,505 27,015

Total equity and liabilities EXKEEAE yATUWITI 5649301 QEMyPEERIE 2 530,452

Net current assets TRBEERE R EI A 1,061,492 CE(LEERN 1,033,310

Total assets less BEER

current liabilities RBEE L OLWE M 3,503,951 REXLLR:IEIM 2 503,437
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-ZZEENEF=ZA -+ ~"BEE=S#E
26 March 2008. T L
Wang Weixian Tse Sai Tung, Stones
TEE it R
Chairman of the Board of Directors Group Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
EFETRE EEEFREBEFTRAH
The notes on pages 114 to 233 form part of these financial F11482233B 2 Wt %S Em x4
statements. BB
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2007

HE—_FTT+E+ _A=+—HIFE

Note
Bt 5

Operating activities ReExR
Profit for the year N F i A
Adjustments for: FHEIEE -
Depreciation e
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts & [o] R 2 IR
Amortisation of land use rights o f5P R M OH
Change in fair value of wKEME

investment properties N BENRE 22
Net finance expense Bl & AN F R
Share of loss of associates RN
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, BEYWE  WE &

plant and equipment B (W) EiE
Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEFRA W= FHE 8
Gains on acquisition of interests M Bk = IR R B

in subsidiaries from minority interests  F 2 & # 25 2 U 2 10(ii)
Equity-settled share-based payment IR 45 B Y ikt 2

expenses il % 12
Income tax expense FiBfimx
Operating profit before changes EEESEEAMN

in working capital

Decrease/(increase) in
restricted cash
Increase in trade, other receivables
and advance deposits
(Increase)/decrease in properties
under development and
completed properties held for sale
Increase/(decrease) in trade,
other payables and
advance receipts
Income tax paid

Net cash outflow from operating
activities

The notes on pages 114 to 233 form part of these financial

statements.
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H b &
FRIR K FE WK IE S N

2007
—BBtLE
RMB’000
AR T T

523,154

PEWALY)
(200)
1,440
(269,626)
104,761
8,239

(110)
(193,112)

(1,131)

25,002
251,580

473,251

600,124

(826,745)

(401,681)

145,227
(34,559)

(44,383)

2006
—EEREF

RMB’000
ARET T

399,010

23,801
(16,191)
1,487
(39,882)
13,548
318

106

10,916
89,393

482,506

(786,634)

(290,474)

848,003

(1,386,326)
(18,705)

(1,151,630)

FINAE2BE MW IZEHERRAOAE
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2007

—EELHE
Note RMB'000
Bt 5 AR¥®TR

Investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property,
plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale of investments
Proceeds from disposal of equity
interests in subsidiaries
Proceeds from assignment and transfer of

rights and obligations in a trust agreement

Interest received
Acquisition of subsidiary,
net of cash acquired
Purchase of property, plant and
equipment
Investments in associates
Advance payment under a trust
agreement for investment

REEH
Hj%i%¥ El
RS T8 2E
b 4 B R
e i

P15 28

Luﬁ DD% HE’]%W&

EBZMBTRAE
B4 B
Wi F o -

NEBARE
BEWE - BER

B
RE &R RIHIRE
RIB = 7E 3 ST 9

RERMNRE

388
11,274

8 347,238

37,674
7 (329,115)

(45,518)
(46,612)

(2,500)

(26,310)

(53,481)

2006
—TTAF
RMB'000
ARBFR

908
6,243

152,385
19,916

(22,562)
(13,665)

(150,000)

(1,047)

(5,657)

(13,479)

Purchase of land use rights BE (b

Additions to investment properties ENEEYE

Additions to investment properties EnEEp
under development REME

Net cash outflow from REZHFA
investing activities ReEH

Financing activities MEED

Proceeds from shares issuance
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds

%é‘ﬁ B A7 P 15 5008

%17 ] S48 5 18 3KR

36 1,158,000
1,014,290

36 (23,187)
(1,878,940)

(103,826)

(10,000)

156,337

58,473

1,392,391

1,491,630

(70,247)

(715,109)
(88,249)
(79,067)

1,931,349

766,240

Proceeds from bank borrowings ifiﬁ BB A

Cost of issuing shares, net of SN ON Y
interest income BATR AR

Payment of transaction costs on issue of TRBTUERES
convertible bonds # R 5 AN

Repayment of bank borrowings EERTEE

Interest paid BERFE

Dividends paid BERNKRE

Net cash inflow from financing METHELENES
activities RAFRE

Net increase in cash and cash BeRELEEY
equivalents BFEE

Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—-HBHRER
1 January ReZEY

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

EXEHNTE

818,974
(14,210)

Cash and cash equivalents
at 31 December

RTt=ZA=+-HK
RERAEEEYD

863,237

The notes on pages 114 to 233 form part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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GENERAL INFORMATION AND GROUP
REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 13 April 2006 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of
1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The companies comprising the Group underwent
a reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise
the Group’s structure in preparation for the listing of
the Company’s shares on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”). On 30 June 2006, the Company became the
holding company of the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group. Details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
Prospectus of the Company dated 26 September 2006.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange on 10 October 2006.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting
from the Reorganisation of entities under common
control. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the Company was the holding
company of the Group for both years presented, rather
than from the date of the Reorganisation. Accordingly,
the consolidated results of the Group for the years ended
31 December 2006 and 2007 include the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries from 1 January 2006, or
their respective dates of incorporation or at the date that
common control was established, if later, as if the current
group structure had been in existence throughout the
two years presented. The consolidated balance sheets
at 31 December 2006 and 2007 are a consolidation of
the balance sheets of the Company and its subsidiaries
at the respective balance sheet dates. All material intra-
group transactions and balances have been eliminated
on consolidation. In the opinion of the directors, the
consolidated financial statements prepared on this basis
present fairly the results of operations and the state of
affairs of the Group as a whole.
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except
that derivative financial instruments, investment
properties and investments are measured at fair
value.

The methods used to measure fair values are
discussed further in note 5.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB"),
the Group’s functional currency. All financial

which is

information presented in RMB has been rounded to
the nearest thousand.

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which
the estimate is revised and in any future periods
affected.

2.

mAEEE(E)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.  BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(d)

Use of estimates and judgements (Continued)

In particular, information about significant areas
of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements
in applying accounting policies that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are described in the following

Note 7 — acquisition of subsidiaries
Note 22 — valuation of investment properties
Note 33 — deferred taxation
Note 38 — measurement of
share-based payments
Note 41 — provisions and contingencies
Note 36 — valuation of liability component,
equity component and financial derivatives
of convertible bonds
Note 42 — valuation of financial instruments
Note 43 — lease classification

3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies set out below have been applied

consistently to all years presented in these consolidated

financial statements, and have been applied consistently

by Group entities.

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation (see note

15(1)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation

(i)

(ii)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Company has
the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity
so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights
that presently are exercisable or convertible
are taken into account. The financial
statements of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the
date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. The accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed when
necessary to align them with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Acquisitions from entities under common
control

Business combinations arising from transfers
of interests in entities that are under the
control of the shareholder that controls
the Group are accounted for as if the
acquisition had occurred at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented
or, if later, at the date that common control
was established. The assets and liabilities
acquired are recognised at the carrying
amounts recognised previously in the Group’s
controlling shareholder’s consolidated
financial statements. The components of
equity of the acquired entities are added to
the same components within Group equity
except that any share capital of the acquired
entities is recognised as part of merger
reserves. Any cash paid for the acquisition is
recognised directly in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Associates

Associates are those entities in which the
Group has significant influence, but not
control, over the financial and operating
policies. Significant influence is presumed to
exist when the Group holds between 20 and
50 percent of the voting power of another
entity. Associates are accounted for using the
equity method and are initially recognised at
cost. The consolidated financial statements
include the Group’s share of the gains and
losses and equity movements of associates,
after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the
date that significant influence commences
until the date that significant influence
ceases. When the Group’s share of losses
exceeds its interest in an associate, the
carrying amount of the interest is reduced
to nil and the recognition of further losses
is discontinued except to the extent that
the Group has an obligation or has made
payments on behalf of the investee.

Gooawill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of
a business combination or an investment in
an associate over the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill
is allocated to cash-generating units and
is not amortised but is tested annually for
impairment (see note 3(m)). In respect of
associates, the carrying amount of goodwill
is included in the carrying amount of the

interest in the associate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Gooawill (Continued)

Any excess of the Group's interests in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a joint venture
is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit,
an associate or a joint venture during the
year, any attributable amount of purchased
goodwill is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised income and expense arising
from intra-group transactions, are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised gains arising from
transactions with associates are eliminated
against the investment to the extent of the
Group's interest in the investee. Unrealised
losses are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.

Investment in subsidiaries

In the Company’s balance sheet, an
investment in subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment losses (see note 3(m)), unless the
investment is classifies as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified
as held for sale).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)
(b) Foreign currency (b) Hphi

(i) Foreign currency transactions (i) HpEZ S
Transactions in foreign currencies are INER SRR 5 H A E X
translated to the respective functional REARZEEERBNI &
currencies of Group entities at the exchange BHH o RS BB AN
rates at the dates of the transactions. HENEBEERBER
Monetary assets and liabilities dominated in ?E? HWEXSEFBRERD
foreign currencies at the reporting date are B - AE¥IEEFE
retranslated to the functional currency at EE’\WF@NEﬁﬁ%%EZ H [
the exchange rate at that date. The foreign 5 16 B Dh Bt B N B8R
currency gain or loss on monetary items is WA RZEBERARE
the difference between the amortised cost BR A X R T SR E ) B
in the functional currency at the beginning EEMHRARKEIRE
of the period, adjusted for effective interest EHREMNINERNDEHED
and payments during the period, and the B 7R FE] B9 Z= 58 o LA SNEE A
amortised cost in foreign currency translated BERARAREBETENKE
at the exchange rate at the end of the EMEENRBEREEARD
period. Non-monetary assets and liabilities ABEEAREXRSHR
denominated in foreign currencies that are ERNEEE HEHKR
measured at fair value are retranslated to the EMEENINEEZET A
functional currency at the exchange rate at B o
the date that the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency differences arising on
retranslation are recognised in profit or loss.

(i) Foreign operations (i) BIEFE
The assets and liabilities of foreign operations REARLME([HE])
outside the People’s Republic of China LASNRAONZE R B E B B
("PRC"), including goodwill and fair value F( EEAEHMEENR
adjustments arising on consolidation, are RARBEAR) ARG
translated to RMB at the foreign exchange 3? H & & k& 50 & [ E

rates at the reporting date. The income and
expenses of foreign operations are translated
to RMB at exchange rates at the dates of the
transactions.

Foreign exchange differences arising on
retranslation are recognised directly in the
foreign currency translation reserve (“"FCTR").
When a foreign operation is disposed of, in
part or in full, the relevant amount in FCTR is
transferred to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(b) Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign operations (Continued)

Foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from a monetary item receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation, the settlement
of which is neither planned nor likely in
the foreseeable future, are considered to
form part of a net investment in a foreign
operation and are recognised directly in equity
in the FCTR.

(c) Financial instruments

(i)

Non-derivative financial instruments

Non-derivative financial instruments comprise
investments in equity, trade, other receivables
and advance deposits, cash and cash
equivalents, loans and borrowings, and trade,

other payables and advance receipts.

Non-derivative financial instruments are
recognised initially at fair value plus, for
instruments not at fair value through profit
or loss, any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition non-
derivative financial instruments are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any impairment
loss.

A financial instrument is recognised if the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are derecognised if the Group’s contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial
assets expire or if the Group transfers the
financial asset to another party without
retaining control or substantially all risks and
rewards of the asset. Regular way purchases
and sales of financial assets are accounted for
the date that the Group
commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.

at trade date, i.e.,

Financial liabilities are derecognised if the
Group’s obligations specified in the contract
expire or are discharged or cancelled.
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iRE BRI A
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)
() Financial instruments (Continued) 0 &€@WMIE(E)
(i) Non-derivative financial instruments () FEPTESRT A (&)
(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash RekReEEYBEER
balances and call deposits. Bank overdrafts DRAEMRRIEHTR R
that are repayable on demand and form an BEeRERMs  Ba
integral part of the Group’s cash management EReEFEBEYMTEREAR
are included as a component of cash and cash EXREERBEREAEER
equivalents for the purpose of the statement HEeERIMMRITES -
of cash flows.
Accounting for finance income and expense is BhE YA R KA B AR R
discussed in note 3(u). B 7 3(u) R BT 5@ e
(i) Convertible bonds (i) E[EE# (& 5
Convertible bonds issued by the Company N B R BT HY Al 8 (R
that contain liability, conversion option and FEEAR HBHRERE

redemption option components are classified
separately into a liability component, an
equity component and embedded derivative
components consisting of the redemption
options respectively. Derivatives embedded
in a Non-derivative host contract are treated
as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those
of the host contract. On initial recognition,
the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market
interest of similar non-convertible bonds.
The derivative components are carried at fair
value on the balance sheet with any changes
in fair value being charged or credited to the
income statement in the period when the
change occurs. The difference between the
proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds
and the fair values of the liability component
and embedded derivatives related to the
redemption options represents the embedded
option for the bondholders to convert the
bonds into equity and is included in equity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability
component of the convertible bonds is
carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The difference between
the interest so calculated and the interest
paid is added to the carrying amount of the
liability component. Embedded derivatives
are remeasured to fair value through profit or
loss at subsequent reporting dates. The equity
component, represented by the option to
convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, remains in capital
reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(at which time the convertible bonds equity
component will be transferred to share
capital and share premium). Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry date, the
balance remaining in capital reserve will be
released to retained profits. No gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement upon
conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability
component, embedded derivatives and
equity component of the convertible bonds
in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.
Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability component and
amortised over the period of the convertible
bonds using the effective interest method.
The portion relating to the embedded
derivatives is charged directly to the income
statement. Transaction costs relating to the
equity component are charged directly to
capital reserve.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)
(c) Financial instruments (Continued) () &®MITA(E)

(i) Convertible bonds (Continued) (i) FlEEHRES (&)
If the convertible bonds are redeemed by fig 28 2 7 7 E B A 8& B 7]
the Company before maturity, the Company ERES - BIRARA KR
will allocate the consideration paid and R 5 B LT 8k E
any transaction costs for redemption to FAHERZERA —HQ} =l
the liability and equity components of the X T B K AB KA Al B B 32
convertible bonds at the date of transaction in A NN NI R
the same way as when the convertible bonds NEGERERID  -HE
were issued. The amount of resulting gain or 1i ZB PTEAMBEZ SR
loss in relation to the liability component is Tﬁ s N R T BLRE
recognised in profit or loss and the amount of HHOMEENERESHE
resulting gain or loss in relation to the equity AR PR o
component is recognised in equity.

(ifi) ~ Share capital (i) BRZK
Incremental costs directly attributable to the BEERELMBETETARKE
issue of ordinary shares and share options are A% A /9 38 0 A AR T 1E B
recognised as a deduction from equity. B —IEMRE T AR o

(d) Property, plant and equipment d) ME - BERRE

(i) Recognition and measurement () HRAKTE

ltems of property, plant and equipment M- BMERZRHEEE &

are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation (see (iv) below) and impairment
losses (see note 3(m)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self—constructed assets includes
the cost of materials and direct labour, and
other costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to a working condition for its
intended use.

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items of property,
plant and equipment.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Recognition and measurement (Continued)
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of
property, plant and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal
with the carrying amount of property, plant
and equipment and are recognised net within
“other income” in profit or loss.

Reclassification to investment property

When the use of a property changes from
owner-occupied to investment property, the
property is remeasured to fair value and
reclassified as investment property. Any gain
arising on remeasurement is recognised
directly in equity. Any loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised
in the carrying amount of the item if it is
probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the
Group and its cost can be measured reliably.
The costs of the day-to-day servicing of
property, plant and equipment are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment. Leased assets are depreciated
over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

(iv)  Depreciation (Continued)
The estimated useful lives for the current and
comparative periods are as follows:

Buildings situated on leasehold land 20 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-5 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of leasehold

period and 5 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Land use rights

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for
acquiring rights to use land in PRC with periods
ranging from 40 to 70 years. Land use rights
granted with consideration are recognised initially
at acquisition cost. Land use rights are classified
and accounted for in accordance with the intended
use of the properties erected on the related land.

For properties that are held for own use and
investment properties under development, the
corresponding lease prepayments are separately
stated as land use rights in the balance sheet.
Land use rights for properties held for own use are
stated at cost, less accumulated amortisation and
any impairment losses (see note 3(m)). Amortisation
is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the period of the land use rights. Land use
rights for investment properties under development
are stated at cost less any impairment losses (see
note 3(m)).

For investment properties, the corresponding land
use rights are classified and accounted for as part
of the investment properties, which are carried at
fair value as described in note 3(f).

For properties that are developed for sale, the
corresponding land use rights are classified and
accounted for as part of the properties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

(9)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held either to
earn rental income or for capital appreciation or
for both, but not for sales in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment properties are measured at fair value
with any change therein recognised in profit or
loss.

The fair values are based on market values, being
the estimated amount for which a property could
be exchanged on the date of valuation between a
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length
transaction after proper marketing wherein the
parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently
and without compulsion.

Rental income from investment properties is
accounted for as described in note 3(r).

When the use of an investment property changes
such that it is reclassified as property, plant
and equipment, its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for subsequent
accounting. When the Group begins to redevelop
an existing investment property for continued
future use as investment property, the property
remains an investment property measured based
on the fair value model, and is not reclassified
as property, plant and equipment during the
redevelopment.

Investment property under development
Property that is being constructed or developed
for future use as investment property is classified
as investment property under development and
stated at cost until construction or development is
complete, at which time it is reclassified together
with the relevant land use right cost (see note 3(e))
and subsequently accounted for as investment
property. At the date of transfer, any gain or loss
arising on remeasurement is recognised in profit or
loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

(h)

(

Investment property under development
(Continued)

All costs directly associated with the construction of
an investment property, and all subsequent capital
expenditures for the development qualifying as
development costs are capitalised.

Properties under development

Properties under development comprise
property developed for own use or for sale. The
development cost of property comprises costs of
land use rights for properties under development
for sale (see note 3(e)), construction costs,
borrowing costs (see note 3(s)) and professional
fees incurred during the development period.
Properties under development are carried at cost,
less any impairment loss (see note 3(m)).

Properties under development which are intended
to be held for sale and expected to be completed
within twelve months from the balance sheet date
are shown as current assets.

Properties under development which are intended
to be held for own use, or for sale and expected
to be completed beyond twelve months from
the balance sheet date are shown as non-current
assets.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties remaining unsold at the end
of each period are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale
comprises development costs attributable to the
unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to
the sale proceeds of properties sold in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

(k)

U]

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Investments represent equity securities held for
trading. An instrument is classified as at fair value
through profit or loss if it is held for trading or
is designated as such upon initial recognition.
Financial instruments are designated at fair value
through profit or loss if the Group manages such
investments and makes purchase and sale decisions
based on their fair value. Upon initial recognition,
attributable transaction costs are recognised in
profit or loss when incurred. Financial instruments
at fair value through profit or loss are measured at
fair value, and changes therein are recognised in
profit or loss.

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see notes 3(m)),
except where the receivables are interest-free
advances and repayable on demand or the effect of
discounting would be immaterial. In such cases, the
receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts (see notes 3(m)).

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula, and includes expenditure incurred in
acquiring the inventories, production or conversion
costs and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)
(I) Inventories (Continued) n BwEE)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of HEFER ZEFENKRT

those inventories is recognised as an expense in the EerREBERAERARER

period in which the related revenue is recognised. RERR - EM#EFEMKEA

The amount of any write-down of inventories to PR EFENHBERFEEMAE

net realisable value and all losses of inventories are 1B 57 UM kB 1B 3R 8 B

recognised as an expense in the period the write- FMERABER MBEFEEMNE

down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal MEEeERNEEBAMERR

of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a ERAEERANEERE -

reduction in the amount of inventories recognised

as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

(m) Impairment (m) BWE

(i) Financial assets (i) =Z=@EE
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting RERERHgHemE
date to determine whether there is any EFHFH KAERES
objective evidence that it is impaired. A HEEBEBREREAGE
financial asset is considered to be impaired if AR E © 4B X B & %78
objective evidence indicates that one or more T~ —HEHMZEE4HEY
events have had a negative effect on the % B E /G Kk 2RI
estimated future cash flows of that asset. EREKBETE Al

BEMEEHERARK TN

An impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying
amount, and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

Impairment (Continued)

(ii)

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than investment
properties, inventories and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
For goodwill, recoverable amount is estimated
at each reporting date.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value
in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together into
the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of
other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-
generating unit”).

An impairment loss is recognized if the
carrying amount of an asset or its cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the units and then to
reduce the carrying amount of the other
assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

(o)

Impairment (Continued)

(i) Non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss in respect of goodwill
is not reversed. In respect of other assets,
impairment losses recognized in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Trade, other payables and advance receipts

Trade, other payables and advance receipts are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially
at fair value less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-bearing
borrowings are stated at amortised cost with any
difference between cost and redemption value
being recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings on an effective interest
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(p)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-
employment benefit plan under which an
entity pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity and will have no legal or constructive
obligation to pay further amounts.
Obligations for contributions to defined
contribution pension plans are recognised as
an employee benefit expense in profit or loss
when they are due, except to the extent that
they are included in the cost of properties
under development or completed properties
held for sale not yet recognised as cost of
sales.

Share-based payments

The grant date fair value of share options
granted to employees is recognised as an
employee expense, with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity,
over the period that the employees become
unconditionally entitled to the options. The
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of share options
that vest.

The fair value is measured at grant date using
the binomial model, taking into accounts the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options,
the total estimated fair value of the share
options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(p) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Share-based payments (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of
share options that is expected to vest is
reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the income statement for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
in which case the adjustment is made to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only
due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in
the capital reserve until either the option is
exercised (when it is transferred to the share
premium account) or the option expires
(when it is released directly to retained
profits). Share-based payment transactions
in which the Company grants share options
to subsidiaries’ employees are accounted
for as an increase in value of investment in
subsidiary in the Company’s balance sheet
which is eliminated on consolidation.

(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and

contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that
require the issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to
make specified payments to reimburse the
beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(q) Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial guarantees issued (Continued)
Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee (being the
transaction price, unless the fair value can
otherwise be reliably estimated) is initially
recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group's policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee
as income from financial guarantees issued.
In addition, provisions are recognised in
accordance with note 3(q)(ii) if and when (i)
it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee, and (ii) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other
payables in respect of that guarantee i.e. the
amount initially recognised, less accumulated
amortisation.

Other provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a
past event, the Group has present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (Continued)

(ii)

Other provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events, are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs,

if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is

recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i)

(ii)

Sales of properties

Revenue from sales of properties is recognized
when a Group entity has delivered the
relevant properties to the customers and
collectibility of the related receivables is
reasonably assured. Deposits and instalments
received on properties sold prior to the
date of revenue recognition are recorded
as advances from customers and presented
as trade and other payables under current
liabilities.

Rental income from operating leases

Rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives granted are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payment receivable. Contingent
rents are recorded as income in the periods in
which they are earned.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue (Continued)

(iir)

(iv)

(v)

Sales of goods and services rendered

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the
buyer. No revenue is recognised if there are
significant uncertainties regarding recovery of
the consideration due, associated costs or the
possible return of goods, or where there is
continuing management involvement with the
goods.

Revenue from property management services
rendered is recognised when the services are
rendered.

Revenue from landscape projects is recognised
in proportion to the stage of completion of
the projects at the balance sheet date. The
stage of completion is assessed by reference
to work performed. An expected loss on a
contract is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Tuition fees

Revenue from provision of education services
is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the straight-line method. Tuition fees received
prior to the date of revenue recognition are
included in non-trade payables and presented
under current liabilities.

Government grants

Unconditional government grants are
recognised as other operating income on a
cash receipt basis.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)
(s) Borrowing costs (s) EBERX
Borrowing costs are capitalised if they are directly Wi EREEERTHE
attributable to the acquisition, construction or EMEEELENEBERAEASK T
production of a qualifying asset. Capitalisation AWERIL - BETEHFEEED
of borrowing costs commences when the mEREEEEX AR XA
activities to prepare the asset are in progress BEEERARERL  HEEZ
and expenditures and borrowing costs are being BEEREINAERMRERL
incurred. Capitalisation of borrowing costs may fis] & B &Y IR T 1B 8 @ K 7] W E
continue until the assets are substantially ready for g5 AImRAEEE  EAXL
their intended use. If the resulting carrying amount LLEDBDZ2EREZEAENGE
of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, an ENEBREMNFNEXIE —RE
impairment loss is recognised. The capitalisation CREBHBERKNEAH TFHF
rate is arrived at by reference to the actual rate EfMEE °
payable on borrowings for development purposes
or, with regard to that part of the development
cost financed out of general funds, to the average
rate.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the profit or H i f§ B AR E & B fH
loss in the period in which they are incurred. RE= °
(t) Expenses t EBH
(i) Service costs and property operating expenses () REKAKRR Y 2L EH
Service costs for service contracts entered BRI BR & A H AR 7 K
into and property operating expenses are AERMEEBRXEES
expensed as incurred. Bl o
(i) Operating lease payments (i) AXEHE L
Payments made under operating leases are B RHER B RIER
recognised in profit or loss on a straight- HEFHUEREEERE
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease me DWW BEEREER
incentives received are recognised in the Wk ERRHEERX
income statement as an integral part of the wEEr — 2 o
total lease expense.
(u) Finance income and expenses (U BMEWARRAE
Finance income comprises interest income on cash BMEKABERITES TR
deposits in bank, changes in fair value of financial BRA - BAABEEREZRR

assets at fair value through profit or loss and
foreign currency gains that are recognised in profit
or loss. Interest income is recognised as it accrues,
using the effective interest method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(u)

(v)

Finance income and expenses (Continued)

Finance expenses comprise interest expenses on
borrowings, net of interest capitalised, changes in
fair value of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and foreign currency losses that are
recognised in profit or loss. All borrowing costs are
calculated using the effective interest rate method.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Income tax is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised
directly to equity, in which case it is recognised in
equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the reporting date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet
method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred
tax is not recognised for the following temporary
differences: the initial recognition of goodwill,
the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profit, and
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries
to the extent that they will probably not reverse in
the foreseeable future. Deferred tax is measured at
the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the
temporary differences when they reverse, based on
the laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary differences can
be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

3.

FEETHERE(E)

(u)

(v)

MERARRAE (&)

BMEXAEBIEERNE KA (H
BREBEAREHNE) BAAEE
REGZPAHENEZREEND

SNERE - FRA B ER AT NI

BERHMREFE -

Fr8®p X<
FIEHAXBERABMENR K
BEIETIR - FRE BN B
RoEREEENBEEERN
HEAR  AIREmRER -

R HR BT 1S W 48 F A B R AR M
EREAHCATHRERD #
TREFENBEHEMRIEA
Ik A F 2 AT B IR B9 {E ]

A

ERERBARKEERBERE
REBEEVBEZHBAENEEN
BEMNKEEEZFEENEA
BEOFHEBIENERER
AEEE X THRATERZE
ERERECHE: BENERX
R THESHERY ML
MOHEERBENERER
BErRaRBEAENER(HE
AREERAGEE) - EILEFHIA
EREHEEAREREZR (B
HBEEE)NOHE  REEEZR
BEHAEHTHEE LEHTT
HOARETE -

REREEEECERARAKE
AP EMNATEETNEEER
R - NRBEE2RBPHELER
HEEETERZ HEBEHREAK
AREERAMUEGME AE
ARELERBEEE °

BEEM(BR)ARAT « —TTLFFH 139



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

o
iRE BRI A
3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FESHEE (&)

(w) Dividends (w) BE
Dividends are recognised as a liability in the period KEESRBABBRRAE -
in which they are declared.

(x) Earnings per share x) SBRER
The Group presents basic and diluted earnings REBBALBERMERER
per share ("EPS”) data for its ordinary shares. NEEGRAERN([SRAF )
Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or B EAXAGREBNDRER
loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the NA R E R E B R S
Company by the weighted average number of B &R J/A FABETERAKRND D
ordinary shares outstanding during the period. MEFTHHEFGE - HBEERE
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit MIEt kB REEEERN
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and TR (BENERES KA
the weighted average number of ordinary shares EERL - ERE) NZEEY
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential B AR R S m A S E R A &
ordinary shares, which comprise convertible bonds BETE %Hx Tﬁ B b0 4 ¥ 5 &
and share options granted to employees. TER B IZE

(y) Related parties (y) BEAL
For the purposes of these consolidated financial HAGZaBHREME MR

statements, parties are considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and
operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders
and/or their close family members) or other entities
and include entities which are under the significant
influence of related parties of the Group where
those parties are individuals, and post-employment
benefit plans which are for the benefits of
employees of the Group or of any entity that is a
related party of the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(2)

Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the
Group that is engaged either in providing related
products or services (business segment), or in
providing products or services within a particular
economic environment (geographical segment),
which is subject to risks and returns that are
different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting system, the Group has chosen business
segment information as the reporting format
for the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements. No geographical segment information
is separately presented as the Group’'s business
segments are mainly managed and operated in the
PRC. The major market of the Group’s business
segments is the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that
segment. Segment results, assets, and liabilities are
determined before intra-group balances, and intra-
group transactions are eliminated as part of the
consolidation process. Inter-segment printing is
based on similar terms as those available to other
external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost
incurred during the period to acquire segment
assets (both tangible and intangible) that are
expected to be used for more than one period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

A number of new standards, amendments to
standards and interpretations are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2007, and have

FTEETHERE(E)
(aa) EARZRMZHMERMBE

ZHEBE _ZTTLF+ - H
=t —BLEFERKRERZH

not been applied in preparing these consolidated

financial statements:

EA - EAET R 2B AR
5 A OF B B IR KBS I R IR

Effective for accounting
period beginning

on or after
RUTEEERS 2%
NEBKRMNEFHEEN

IFRIC 11, IFRS 2 — Group and
treasury share transaction

IFRIC 12, Service concession
arrangements

IFRIC 14, IAS 19 — The limit on a
defined benefit asset, minimum
funding requirements and their
interaction

IFRIC 13, Customer loyalty
programmes

IFRS 8, Operating Segments

Revised IAS 23 — Borrowing costs

Revised IAS 1, Presentation of
financial statements

Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based
payment — Vesting condition and
cancellations

Amendments to IAS 32, Financial
instruments: Presentation of
financial statements — Puttable
financial instruments and
obligations arising on liquidation

Revised IFRS 3, Business combinations
and amendments to IAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial
statements

1 March 2007
—EELF=H—H

BB HRERELZES
F115% - BB 153k & &8
5

F25% — S BMERKHD

BEMBEoRE2EEZESR 1 January 2008
FI125 — R L= —EENF—-A—H
“ﬁﬁﬁk#ﬁ ’i\&;z“;\ 1 January 2008
%143—)7 g ERE 1958 —EENF—-H—H

*ﬁm@ﬂéﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ P RIK

BARAREMBE ZHOER
BBV ERE2EZES

F13R KPP EBEEE
BB B 7% 3R 5 2E Al 52 8 5%

1 July 2008
—2EN\FEA—H
1 January 2009

— BB 50 —_ETNF—-—H—H
RIEFTER Gt A F 2358 — 1 January 2009
BB AR —ZEThF—A—H
A AT BIBR g 5 RIS 1 5% — 1 January 2009
B mRE 2 —TTAF—-A—H
B B B 75 5 2RI B 298 15 5T 1 January 2009
VAR 17 /3 Z B 2+ —ZTTAFE—-A—H
—fﬂf?éﬂ%#&%\fﬁﬁ
R et 2RI 325R 8 7T 1 January 2009
irﬂlﬂ M BHmKREY - —EFENAF—H—H

AEELEMITARBEER

KASFT RIS B IS s 5 E A ZE 398 - 1 July 2009
EBE M RER %L —EENFLA—H
F2THASE] » 476 NB LA

B |mE
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa) New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted (Continued)
The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of
initial application. Up to the date of issuance of
these financial statements, the Group believes
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A number of new and revised standards and
interpretations are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting year of the Group.

There have been no significant changes to the
accounting policies applied in these financial
statements for the years presented as a result of these
developments. However, as a result of the adoption
of IFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures and the
amendments to IFRS 1, Presentation of financial
statements: Capital disclosures, there have been some
additional disclosures provided as follows:

As a result of the adoption of IFRS 7, the financial
statements include expanded disclosure about the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments and the
nature and extent of risk arising from these instruments,
compared with the information previously required to be
disclosed by IFRS 32, Financial instruments: Disclosure
and presentation. These disclosures are provided
throughout these financial statements, in particular in
note 42.

The amendment to IFRS 1 introduces additional
disclosure requirements to provide information about the
level of capital and the Group’s objectives, policies and
processed for managing capital. The disclosure are set
out in note 40(h).

Both IFRS 7 and the amendment to IFRS 1 do not have
any material impact on the classification, recognition and
measurement of the amounts recognised in the financial
instruments.

3.

FEEHERE(E)
(aa) M ARRMZHERMRE (&)

AEB LA BZLEER
A RFRENRABRER
MERNBRBELENTE -
BEZSEYHBHRERTNERAS
AEERREMALAER -
A EFARBIAAESG YA
SENKEXANMMBRRE
EEAFE -

ERBRREE
ZHEMFIREETEARREORE
REmEAIRAKER NS5 HEE
RIER A ©

HEERAERAFEZ2INNZEY
BHRREANSFRREREMERKR
BE - HEEHANKABERMHEREE
AIZE75% @ T A wKFEF - ARH
B G REERFE 1S, - HFHK
M2 BXFKFNEFT - LM
FETHESFHRLFINDT :

HRFENBERE BREEAETHR
PR ReREEASEcHMTASE
BURZETENEENRARIREE D
BE - BBAREBRY SRS ER
BN LHMTA:  BERERET
BPENEHAR ZSHEETER I
LHHBRERANZERE  LERVH
&M EE42 o

BB B 7% s 5 E RIS 1SR B RT IR
BOMNBBEMTE AR HBEEANKYF
EAGEEREANBR  BRLE
FH)E# - BRARE SN ZE40() °

B R B 75 i & 22 RI 55 7 55 M B R B A
HBEENEIRNERT L EE W B
BERABERSENONE  BHRALFE
EREMEATE -

BEEM (BB ARAT « —TTLEFH 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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5. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies and

disclosures require the determination of fair value, for

both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values have been determined for measurement and/

or disclosure purposes based on the following methods.

Where applicable, further information about the

assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed

in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

()

(i)

Properties under development

The fair values of properties under development
recognised as a result of a business combination
are based on market values. The market value
of property is the estimated amount for which
a property could be exchanged on the date of
valuation between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper
marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
The market value of items of plant, equipment,
fixtures and fittings is based on the quoted market
prices for similar items.

Investment properties

An external, independent valuation company,
having appropriate recognised professional
qualifications and recent experience in the location
and category of property being valued, values the
Group’'s investment property portfolio every six
months. The fair values are based on market values,
being the estimated amount for which a property
could be exchanged on the date of the valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing
wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably,
prudently and without compulsion.

In the absence of current prices in an active market,
the valuations are prepared by considering the
aggregate of the estimated cash flows expected to
be received from renting out the property. A yield
that reflects the specific risks inherent in the net
cash flows then is applied to the net annual cash
flows to arrive at the property valuation.
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5.

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

Investment properties (Continued)

Valuations reflect, where appropriate: the type
of tenants actually in occupation or responsible
for meeting lease commitments or likely to be in
occupation after letting vacant accommodation,
and the market’s general perception of their
creditworthiness; the allocation of maintenance
and insurance responsibilities between the Group
and the lessee; and the remaining economic life of
property. When rent renewals or lease renewals are
pending with anticipated reversionary increases, it
is assumed that all notices and where appropriate
counter-notices have been served validly and within
the appropriate time.

Investments in equity and debt securities

The fair value of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is determined by reference to
their quoted bid price at the reporting date.

Trade, other receivables and advance deposits

The fair value of trade, other receivables and
advance deposits is estimated as the present value
of future cash flows, discounted at the market rate
of interest at the reporting date.

Convertible bonds

Fair value, which is determined for disclosure
purposes, is calculated based on the present
value of future principal and interest cash flows,
discounted at the market rate of interest at the
reporting date. In respect of the liability component
of convertible bonds, the market rate of interest is
determined by reference to similar liabilities that do

not have a conversion option.
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(iv)
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5.

A M HRAR M

DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(vi) Share-based payment transactions
The fair value of employee stock options is
measured using a binomial lattice model.
Measurement inputs include share price on
measurement date, exercise price of the instrument,
expected volatility (based on weighted average
historic volatility adjusted for changes expected
due to publicly available information), weighted
average expected life of the instruments (based
on historical experience and general option holder
behaviour), expected dividends, and the risk-free
interest rate (based on government bonds). Service
and non-market performance conditions attached
to the transactions are not taken into account in
determining fair value.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the
Group's business. The primary format, business segments,
is based on the Group’s management and internal
reporting structure. Inter-segment pricing is determined
on an arm'’s length basis.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred
during the period to acquire segment assets that are

expected to be used for more than one period.

Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business
segments:

o Sales of property

o Lease of property

o Property management and other related services

. Education
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2007

6. DEHE(F
BZE-_ZZ+tF+-A=1+—HLEE

Property
management
& related
Sales of Lease of services
Expressed in RMB'000 property property MEEERE Education  Elimination Group
AAREF LR NEHE NERE HEBRE HE AUEEH rEE
Revenue from external customers SR & F % 1,606,718 29,585 27,283 50,961 - 1,714,507
Inter-segment revenue 7 HME A - - 45,516 - (45,516) -
Total revenue gyt 1,606,718 29,585 72,759 50,961 (45,516) 1,714,507
Segment result PBER 397,775 21,230 8,095 5,061 (7,165) 424,996
Net gain on disposal of equity interest £ & 772 Al IREH W& F 8@
in subsidiaries 193,112 - - - - 193,112
Net finance expense BEKAFE (106,276) (611) 599 (4,268) 1,355 (109,201)
Fair value change on embedded AR ITETAR
derivatives AnEEEY 4,440 - - — — 4,840
Share of loss of associates EEBEDAER (8,239) = = = = (8,239)
Revaluation gains on investment BRENMEERME
properties - 269,626 - - - 269,626
Income tax expense ER I (150,972) (98,889) (1,719 - - (251,580)
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERH/ (HB) 329,840 191,356 6,975 793 (5,810) 523,154
Segment assets IHEE 5,752,479 701,710 111,965 240,155 (240,047) 6,566,262
Interests in associates LN RS 982,507
Total assets BEAE 7,548,769
Segment liabilities ABERE 3,592,325 232,159 74,769 197,000 (160,656) 3,935,597
Capital expenditure ERRE T 41,905 26,310 621 1,757 — 70,593
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 6,463 — 2,334 15,897 — 24,694
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SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. TOEWRE (&
For the year ended 31 December 2006 BE-—ZSEANE+-A=+—HLEE
Property
management
& related
Sales of Lease of services
Expressed in RMB'000 property property MEEERE Education  Elimination Group
AAREF LR NEHE NERE tHEBERE HF AUEESH piN 3]
Revenue from external customers SR EF 1,791,755 32,427 22,801 40,475 - 1,887,458
Inter-segment revenue 7 HME b E - - 43,305 - (43,305) -
Total revenue g3 %] 1,791,755 32,427 66,106 40,475 (43,305) 1,887,458
Segment result PBEE 473,735 12,321 4,767 5,488 (10,518) 485,793
Net finance expense REMAFE (8,356) (442) (188) (4,562) — (13,548)
Share of loss of associates NG Rl (318) — — — — (318)
Revaluation gains on investment REMEERME
properties — 39,882 — — — 39,882
Income tax expense FEHYE (102,315) (9,441) (1,043) — — (112,799
Profit/(loss) for the year KEERF/ (BR) 362,746 42,320 3,536 926 (10,518) 399,010
Segment assets THEE 4,085,852 391,480 105,399 251,668 (129,232) 4,705,167
Interests in associates 2N B 25 944,134
Total assets BEAE 5,649,301
Segment liabilities FBEE 2,705,936 110,084 45,977 206,305 (109,437) 2,958,865
Capital expenditure ERBY 5,659 6,704 940 61,793 - 75,09
Depreciation and amortisation HEREH 6,815 - 4,613 13,860 - 25,288
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

Subsidiary acquired in 2007

On 28 September 2007, the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement with Run Di Li Property
Development Investment Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Run Di Li"),
Suzhou Run Di Li Construction Development Co., Ltd.,
Jiangsu Zhong Qi Investment Co., Ltd. and Mr.Wu Jian
Ping (collectively referred to as “the Sellers”) to acquire
the entire equity interest in Suzhou Runjian Property Co.,
Ltd. (“Suzhou Runjian”) from the Sellers.

On 31 August 2006, Run Di Li acquired a piece of land
with a site area of 14,893 square metres at a price of
RMB223,500,000 through listing-for-sale organized by
Suzhou Property Bureau. Suzhou Runjian was established
on 17 October 2006 with a business scope of real estate
development on the above land acquired by Run Di Li.
Up to the end of 2007, Suzhou Runjian had not carried
out any business.

The total consideration payable by the Group for the
acquisition of Suzhou Runjian is RMB555,284,000.
Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement, the Sellers
transferred 90% equity interests to the Group in October
2007 and as at 31 December 2007 Suzhou Runjian
is owned by the Group as to 90% and Run Di Li as
to 10%. Upon Suzhou Runjian obtaining the State-
owned Land Use Right Certificate (B & £ i & B #
#), Construction Land Use Planning Permit (32 % B #f
#i 2| #F 7] &), Construction Engineering Planning Permit
(3 R L2 /8 2l 5F 7] &%) and Construction Engineering
Implementation Permit (3 £& T 12 j T &F A] i%), Run Di
Li shall transfer the remaining 10% equity interest in
Suzhou Runjian to the Group, which is expected to take
place in 2008.
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T A A R 223,500,000 7T 42
Bt R EE A 14,893 F KM+
e BHMNBER-_ZEZEAF+A++L
BN r $58EAETREMES
B -BHEZTTLFE  #MNEEL
ERBEMER -

AEBKRBEHMNBEZEESHEARE
7 A R ¥555,284,000 7T © 1B % % #E
HEpE BEAR_ZEZLFET AR
AEEEEO%MEE  RZET L
F+-_A=+—H  &MNEBEED 5 A
REBEEBO%ER R B EMFES
10% o &M EEIEEAE i
FRAESE  BERAHARITUE - &
RIBRE T BERERETRRE L
A B & - B A R B R N A
MERZHEER10% AR - EFEEIEE
HR T )\FH#EIT -
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7. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
Subsidiary acquired in 2007 (Continued)

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s

WisF 2R (&)

—E2ZLFRBNTAR(F)
REERE - Hﬁlﬁ%%K%E’\]ﬁEEﬁi

assets and liabilities on the acquisition date: BEEANTEE
Recognised
Pre-acquisition value on
carrying Fair value acquisition
In RMB’000 amounts adjustments 2’
AR® T T WEBAREE 2QAEERAE WEEE
Property, plant and equipment 4% - E & & 932 — 932
Properties under development 2% & /¥ % 238,361 439,360 677,721
Trade and other receivables JFE Ui BR 3 K2 E b
W 14,082 — 14,082
Cash and cash equivalents Iﬁi EEEEEY 880 — 880
Loans and borrowings AR MER (15,000) — (15,000)
Trade and other payables Jfﬁﬁ% K N H A
JE 15 3K (13,491) = (13,491)
Deferred tax liabilities FEETIE B & — (109,840) (109,840)
225,764 329,520 555,284
Minority interests DB R R A (22,576) (32,952) (55,528)
Net identifiable assets and A &5l & = e
liabilities BEFR 203,188 296,568 499,756
Consideration paid, satisfied AR & AT 8
in cash ERRE 499,756
Cash acquired Fris IR & (880)
498,876
Net cash outflow arising on WEERELSIR S
acquisition: Tt F R
— Cash paid during the year —FRENE S 329,115
— Amount due to Run DiLias — R _-_ZZE 4
at 31 December 2007 +=—A=+—H
JE 15 1 ) Y
IR 169,761
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Subsidiary acquired in 2007 (Continued)
Pre-acquisition carrying amounts were determined
based on applicable IFRSs immediately before the
acquisition. The values of assets and liabilities recognised
on acquisition are their estimated fair values. The
consideration for the acquisition of the equity interest in
Suzhou Runjian by the Group was based on the net book
value of Suzhou Runjian as at the date of acquisition
with fair value adjustments according to a property
valuation report prepared by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited (“DTZ"), an independent valuer.

The acquisition has been accounted for using the
purchase method of accounting.

The losses attributable to Suzhou Runjian amounted
to RMB2,816,000 to the Group’s profit for the period
between the date of acquisition and 31 December
2007. If the acquisitions had been completed on 1
January 2007, the Group’s revenue would have remained
unchanged and the impact on the Group’s profit for
the year ended 31 December 2007 is not material as
Suzhou Runjian has not carried out any business during
the period from the date of establishment to the date of
acquisition.

Wi F 8 (&)
“E2E2LFRBNTAR(F)

Y B A1 B (B J5 AR 15 B8 W Al E A
WHWWﬁﬁiﬁW”*°W%ﬁ%
RHNEEHABEEEASEMAAAAE
EOK%IW%ﬁMELk%WRE
Ty AR BB B A &R N B i e BR EDFHE
REE  WERRBIY(GEMBERT
BERAR(TBERTEENDE
BMERSEIABERABRERED -

WREERBUEBESAEAR -

BEASEERKERSHE_ZTETLF
TZA=T—BHE - HMNEEEE
EiEA ARK2816,0007T © WK EE
RZZEE+EF—A—HZK  ARE
MRS B HZ= W g B EHA R
ARERTWELR HHEAESEHEZ
ZELFTA=T—HLEEFENR
FEBWFEKR  AEEHWEKE

*:t *-Eﬁ
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ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Subsidiary acquired in 2006

As a part of the Reorganisation, in June 2006,
the Company issued 202,300 ordinary shares as
consideration for acquisition of 49% of the entire
interest of Delta Link Holdings Limited (“Delta Link"”)
from Brilliant Bright Investment Limited. In September
2006, the Company further issued 210,147 ordinary
shares as consideration for the acquisition of the
remaining 51% equity interest in Delta Link from
Brilliant Bright Investment Limited. Delta Link acts as
an investment holding company and has not carried on
any other business since the date of its incorporation.
Delta Link indirectly owns 50% of The Peninsula
Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company Limited, which is
engaged in development, operation and management
of The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel. As The
Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel is still at a preliminary
development stage and has not commenced operation,
the acquisition of Delta Link has no significant impact
on the consolidated revenue and profit of the Group for
the period from the date of acquisition to 31 December
2006.

The acquisition had the following effect on the Group’s
assets and liabilities at the date of acquisition of Delta
Link in September 2006:

WEFRAT (&)
—EERFRENTFAT
EREHAMN —FH A2 R=
T TN F XA #17202,300 it & @
f% - {E %& & Brilliant Bright Investment
Limited 4 8 Delta Link Holdings Limited
([ Delta Link |) 2 #B A 49% &) 41 (B -
RZZEZRFEFNA  KNARE—FFE
17210,147 i & 7@ B - {F & B Brilliant
Bright Investment Limited Yf&Delta Link
H #R51% X # 1) ¥ {8 © Delta Link /2 —
MIREERAR - BEEMAAR
I 8 4 & ] B fh 32 %5 © Delta Link
MERE LEINEFESBERARA A
50% Rk #E - T L8N BB TE B R
NAINERE  LERERE ELFINE
FEHE AR EBINEFEBER
RNERTNFERREEER - BRARFR
28 » U EE Delta Link 3 £ 3 7K & &
REKERRHERE-_TTF+=A
=+ —HI-HE®ERE s & E
EREMEATE -

RZZEENFNA WHESERKE
Delta LinkE B AEBMEERAE
BARRATREE

Recognised

Pre-acquisition value on

carrying Fair value acquisition

In RMB’000 amounts adjustments EER
AR T T WEATEREME AAREERAE WiEEE
Investment in associate REE R RIIRE 459,046 407,967 867,013
Other current assets EMRsEE 34 — 34
Other current liabilities = (38) — (38)
Net identifiable assets Al &Rl &E = SRR 459,042 407,967 867,009
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DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES

On 27 October 2007, SPG Investment Xl (BVI) Limited
("SPG XII") (which is wholly owned by the Company),
Mausica Investment Limited (“the Purchaser”) (which is
wholly owned by a fund advised by Citigroup Property
Investors Asia Limited) and the Company entered into
a sale and purchase agreement (“S&P Agreement”).
Pursuant to the S&P Agreement, SPG Xll sold 29% of
the entire issued share capital of SPG Investment Xl
(BVI) Limited (“SPG XI”) to the Purchaser. The Company
had agreed to guarantee the payment, when due, of all
amounts payable by SPG Xll in connection with certain
indemnities provided by SPG XII to the Purchaser.

SPG XII is the owner of the entire issued share capital
of SPG XI. Through SPG Investment Il (BVI) Limited
("SPG I1") and SPG Investment [l (BVI) Limited (“SPG
"), SPG XI owns three real estate development projects
in the PRC, namely the Kunming Lake Dian Project
developed by Kunming SPG Land Development Co., Ltd.
("Kunming SPG Land”), the Kunming Grand City Project
developed by Kunming SPG Grand City Development
Co., Ltd. ("Kunming SPG Grand City”) and the Shanghai
Watertown Project developed by Shanghai Zhujia
Cambridge Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Zhujia”). The sole business of SPG Xl is the investment
holding of SPG Il and SPG III.

The total consideration was RMB412,806,000, which
was determined based on the net assets of Kunming
SPG Land, Kunming SPG Grand City and Shanghai Zhujia
and a shareholder loan to Shanghai Zhujia as at 30
September 2007, and the land premium agreed by the
Purchaser and SPG XII.

8.

HEFRARARE
RZZEZTELFE+HZ+E£H " SPG
Investment XII (BVI) Limited ([ SPG XII |)
(HBAARAZ2EHAB)  Mausica
Investment Limited ([ & /5 |) ( & B 7€
EEEDMNEERRAREHRER D
B 2EHB)RARALEER
=(EEm=]) BREEEWH=
SPG XlI[a] E 757 Hi & SPG Investment Xl
(BVI) Limited ([ SPG XI]) & & 2 3 17
B AN 2 29% o A A A E R E BLSPG Xl
MEFREENE THRERIELE
R+ EARFT A SPG XIIFE 1S 3 #8 4k B
XA e

SPG XIl &SPG XI & # B &7 lR A &)
% A A o & #SPG Investment Il (BVI)
Limited ([ SPG Il ]) X SPG Investment Ill
(BVI) Limited ([SPG Ill]) » SPG XIfE R
E#AE=-HAEHEZREEE H EH
BaEMERABRAR(IERESE
) EERMHEAHEMIEER  BEAXS
ABEHMEZERER AR ([ 2HXK
mAS ) BFERAOEBAAMKIEELE R L
BRERBLEERHWEZERR QA
(T EBRE]D) BRHN LBKBIER -
SPGXIH) IlE — X% AR EBERK
SPG Il 2 SPG Il ©

BRELH B ARIKA12806,000 7T 5
BERZZEZELFNLA=THEHRHR
BEM - EEXSAW 0 EEKED
FEEBRBETFTLEHRENREER
o LA K E 5 ESPG XI5 E B 1B i
EE -
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8. DISPOSAL OF EQUITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES 8. HEFLAIKRE(£)
(Continued)
The net assets of the subsidiaries as at 30 September ZETFRARZZEZELFNA=TH
2007 were as follows: FOFEEBWET
RMB'000
%
Net assets disposed of: HERFEEME :
Property, plant and equipment mE - WEKkEE 1,307
Properties under development BRAME 1,531,690
Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 9,228
Completed properties held for sale ERKFEME 106,047
Trade and other receivables A W82 B R e EL R LA R 11,381
Restricted cash R 6 IR & 15,507
Cash and cash equivalents ReERHEEEFED 18,308
Trade and other payables F& 1~ BR 3R K HL At J& 5 3k (584,547)
Tax payable FE ST R 1R (355)
Interest bearing loans T EEX (351,000)
757,566
Disposal of 29% equity interest to the Purchaser 1 &29% ii# ¥ &} 219,694
Gain on disposal of equity interest in subsidiaries & F 2 &) B& # &) U 25 193,112
Total consideration, to be satisfied by cash BAIRSSNHERE 412,806
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: LEELEHRSRAFRE
— Cash consideration received — BREHRERE 347,238
— Receivable due from the Purchaser — B E 77 BR K 65,568
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10.

REVENUE

The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised during the year ended 31 December 2007 is

as follows:

Wy &

RBE-FTLE+-A=+-AL
TERRHEAEERBMT

2007
—ETLE
RMB’000
AR%T R

Sales of properties Y S & 1,606,718
Rental income & WA 29,585
Property management income MEEEIWA 19,690
Sales of goods and rendering of services $HEE m M2 IRE 7,553
Tuition fees 25 50,961
Total aEr 1,714,507
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 10. HAi&& WA
2007
—EELHF
RMB’000
ARE T
Government grants X IS #65 Bh
Gains on transfer of rights and EEETAR ZEF

obligations in a trust agreement (i)
Gains on acquisition of interests in
subsidiaries from minority interests (ii)

&3 A &)
) 0 B o5 i SR UK R

¥~ AR a2 M ()

Compensations and forfeited deposits RKEEREBEHNEER
from contractors RUGED &

Others HA

Total A Et

BS

B (ZER)BFRAR « —ZZ L F1

1,791,755
32,427
17,413

5,388
40,475

1,887,458
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10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME (Continued)

()

(ii)

In accordance with the agreements entered into by
Shanghai Cambridge (Group) Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Cambridge”), Zhongtai Trust and Investment Co.,
Ltd. and China Huawen Investment Holding Limited
on 6 March 2006 and 19 May 2006, Shanghai
Cambridge had a gain of RMB2,385,000 after
Shanghai Cambridge agreed to assign and transfer
its rights and obligations under the trust agreement
to the third party.

According to the equity transfer agreement
entered into by SPG Investment (BVI) limited
("SPG Investment”) and the minority shareholder
of Shanghai Oriental Cambridge Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Oriental”) in
April 2007, the minority shareholder transferred
all its equity interest in Shanghai Oriental
of RMB800,000 to SPG Investment for nil
consideration. Thereafter, Shanghai Oriental is
wholly owned by the Group.

According to the equity transfer agreement dated
28 March 2007 entered into by SPG Investment
and the minority shareholder of Shanghai Shikang
Ltd. (“Shikang”), the
minority shareholder transfered all its interest in
Shikang of RMB 330,800 to SPG Investment for nil
consideration. Thereafter, Shikang is wholly owned

Property Consulting Co.,

by the Group.
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10. Htt&&E WA (&

(i)

@TFL/EK*EEE%(;‘%IWQ

RA(TEBER]  $F
%?’c&ﬁ*ﬁlﬂﬁ&’&i&qﬂﬂ
EHREERARAANR-F
EREF=ZARBR-_ZEZEARF
EFA+THABRAILNHE L8
ERRNEREEBERERAR

EREBEETHEMNERSE T
F=ZTER FRRER/ARE
2,385,0007T °

2 3 SPG Investment (BVI) limited
([ SPG Investment]) £ £ /& &
TREBEHEZERABR QA
(TEBRAF I EEZRE
RZZTZELF WAL R
HEHGE ZLYEZREE
BEEERLEBRITNMAER
# A K ¥800,000 JT ¥ & FSPG
Investment © H 1& + E/B &R 77 &
REBZEHES -

1R #E SPG Investment 2 | /& it 5
FEHMEZRAMERAR(TERE]D
MOBEERER=_TETLF=
B =+ )\ B 5] 3 A B% & 8 2
F RS HERREREEBER
5z B9 & 3 4 25 A K % 330,800
JC ¥ & T SPG Investment o EH
% HERBANEEZEHES o



11.

12.

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES 1. HKERX
2007
—EBFLHF
RMB’000
AR T
Loss on disposal of property, plantand EZEYWZE - WE
equipment & EEE
Donations =R
Compensations to contractors BE T RER
Others Hth
Total & &h
PERSONNEL EXPENSES 12. ETHX
2007
—EELF
RMB’000
AR T T
Wages and salaries 59,145

Contributions to defined contribution
plans

Staff welfare, bonuses and other
allowances

Equity-settled share-based payment

EE®/F -

BEGENRNDXNRS

TEAL R E At 72 BE

5,440

12,264

transactions (note 38) (KT 5F38) 25,002
Total = 101,851
Average number of employees during AREEFEHIHREE AH

the year

BS

B (ZR)BRAR o —ZZ L F1

213

5,202

10,929

10,916

61,164

679
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SRR E

EXPENSES BY NATURE

The following expenses are included in cost of sales,

selling and marketing costs, administrative expenses and

other operating expenses:

. BHEIASNER

AAASHERA - HERMS#EK

A ITHRAXEEAM

LI

Cost of properties sold
Auditors’ remuneration

— audit services

— non-audit services
Depreciation
Amortisation of land use rights
Operating lease charges
Reversal for bad and doubtful debts

BEHEWEKAR
% B 6D B &

— BZR
—RBEZRH
e

o 3 150 PR A B 5
KEBEEXH

RIE IR H R
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2007
—EELHF

RMB’000
ARBETR

1,008,701

2,461
455

23,254
1,440
9,336

(200)

4

mL

B 32 B9 X

1,234,769

1,600
23,801

1,487

6,806
(16,191)



14.

15.

FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES

14. BEWARRAK

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEXRF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR T AR T T
Interest income on bank deposits R 1777 A B A 19,916
Net change in fair value of financial } AR BEIENEZ
assets at fair value through profit J@E NeREEAAREE
orloss & HEFER 8 07e
Finance income Bt & WA 46,359 23,092
Interest expenses on bank loans IRITE KT E (102,171) (88,249)
Less: interest capitalized (note 24) ﬁ: & AN{EHY ﬂ/u (FT5E 24) 59,962 60,000
Net interest expenses MEBAFRE (42,209) (28,249)
Interest expenses on financial liabilities L E#HK AT EN SR A G
measured at amortised cost (note 36) BWASER (MsE36) (33,384) —
Net foreign exchange loss P& 5 &5 18 )5 58 (79,967) (8,391)
Finance expenses L= N (155,560) (36,640)
Fair value changes on financial derivatives ?ﬁi%%ﬂ‘ilﬁ AR EBE
(hote36) = ) (f5E36) —
Net finance expenses & R AR F R (104,761) (13,548)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 15. FrERE%
(i) Change in classification (i) HESH

During the current year the Group modified
the income statement classification of PRC land
appreciation tax from cost of sales to income
tax expenses. PRC Land appreciation tax is in
substance a form of capital gains tax, which
therefore falls within the scope of IAS 12, Income
taxes. As a result, deferred and current PRC land
appreciation tax charges should be recognised as
a component of the income tax expenses. The
change in classification reflects more appropriately
the income tax expenses. Comparative amounts
were reclassified for consistency, which result in
RMB23,406,000 being reclassified from cost of
sales to income tax expenses.

BEEH(ZER)ERQE » —ETLFFR

RAFEE  KANEBEHRHBEX
WAEE LR ERNDE A
HERAERNAMBR L -
HETHIEERES EREAR
FE#RN—ERERX  BUREB
RBEBE T ER12{TBE ) &
B o Mt IMERBIEAF B +
HWEER I HEERAEMGH
AYHo DBEZEHRBAE
MAXERER REB—Z
EFUERSBENTETHE
BB A R ¥ 23,406,000 7T B &
RAEN DB AEMEHRAY -
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

15. FTIBHRZ (&)

Income tax in the consolidated income (i) ZEFNBROFESHEXIE

statement represents:

2007 2006
—®BLE C—TEAF
RMB’000 RMB'000

0
AR TR AR TTT

Current tax

Provision for PRC enterprise income
tax for the year

Provision for PRC land appreciation
tax for the year

B A % |

B R AT IS R

Deferred tax

Origination and reversal of temporary
differences (note 33(ii))

Benefit of tax losses recognized
(note 33(ii))

Revaluation of investment properties
(note 33(iii))

Effect of change in future enactive
tax rate

Deferred PRC land appreciation tax

Total income tax expense in
income statement

AEE G 56,612 16,280
rh B + 3% {5 Bt
AN [T B 30,700 6,080
22,360
IE B 1E
TR EREMEL
K £ B (B 5 33(i)) (7,409) 77,419
EHRTEEEYE
( B %% 33¢i) ) 17,366 (15,360)
WEYEE (G
(Bt 3 33(ii) ) 48,632 11,054
ARBEABREREGYH T E
11,945 =
5 3T R B+ i 3 (A 93,734 17,326
164,268 90,439
FERMNETER RS B
251,580 112,799

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made as the Group did not earn any income subject
to Hong Kong Profits Tax during the year ended 31

December 2007 and 2006.

HRAEERBE_TTRF
ER—ZBFtLtF+_-_H=+—H
I FEYERRAHRNE LT
TR A - B EELEFE
MSHEE -
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15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(ii)

Income tax in the consolidated income
statements represents: (Continued)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the
Group is not subject to any income tax in the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations applicable
to certain development zones in the Pudong area
of Shanghai, Shanghai Cambridge is subject to
PRC income tax at a rate of 15% (2006:15%).
Other subsidiaries of the Group are subject to
PRC income tax at a rate of 33% (2006:33%),
except for Shanghai New Independence House
Property Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Shanghai Lishui
Greenary Ecology Engineering Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai

New Independence House"),

Lishui”), Shanghai Zhuxi Investment Enterprise
Co. ("Shanghai Zhuxi”) and Shanghai Cambridge
Construction Consulting Co., Ltd (“Shanghai

Cambridge Consulting”).

Shanghai New Independence House is subject to a
concessionary income tax rate of 15% (2006:15%)
granted by the local tax authority in Nanhui District
of Shanghai. Shanghai Lishui is subject to PRC
income tax rate of 33% during the year ended 31
December 2007 while during the year ended 31
December 2006, it was subject to income tax at
deemed rates of 1% of its revenue in accordance
with the Daizheng (% 1F) method under applicable
PRC tax regulations. Shanghai Zhuxi is subject to
PRC income tax at a rate of 18% during the year
ended 31 December 2007, while during the year
ended 31 December 2006, it was subject to PRC
income tax at deemed rate of 5% of its revenue.
Shanghai Cambridge Consulting is subject to PRC
income tax at a rate of 33% during the year ended
31 December 2007, while during the year ended
31 December 2006, it was subject to PRC income
tax at deemed rate of 5% of its revenue.

15. Fif8
(ii)

SHEAX (&)
FREMNBRNAESHMAXIE:
(%)
BERSHEREABERES
B A8 Rl & 38 1 - AN & B AR
MEHREREBREXHEME
Mt o

BELEEMBRFT RS ERZ
@ o) AR R RAF - B
BIRIS%O TR RGN B X
FTBH(ZZFEZT/NFE : 15%) °
BREBHMBRMEEEERA
AT EBHBER]) - EBEK
FERERZIECIRBER AR LA
BK]) - LBEKREBEXERER
ARl (L& ZKZE]) R EBE
BHEREFABR AR L
BERBFERI) I AEEEAM
F AR5 H #33% W T K 84

ARCEMER(ZZEENEFE
33%) °
R BERER LESHERE

WG R ENEER E15%
BRI EB(ZZTET XF:
15%) - RBEE_ZTTLEFE+=
A=+—BLEE EBEKX
W33% N RGP BEMREN
MREBE_ZTETRF+_A
=+t—BLEFE REPEHE
B E EUBBERKERD
1%R) R RFAPEMMEHR - X
HE_ZZLtF+HA=+—
HIEFE W 8K ERIZ%H
MEGHNPBEMAMBHR - MRE
E_ETERFEF+ZA=+—H
LHFE ERKFENH%HH X
BHPEEN RBEE-F
THtF+_A=+—HIELFE
LB RBEMIE33%H T EH
MPBMREHR MTREBEE-T
ERETZA=T—HLEE "
H iz 25 69 5% 59 B0 F @ 4 (=
PRS-

BEEH (ER)ERAT « —TT+FF%E 161



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RA M HRARN

N

15.

162

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 15. FrEBES(2)
(ii) Income tax in the consolidated income (i) KEFNBERNAEHBEXIE:
statements represents: (Continued) (&)
PRC land appreciation tax is levied on properties AEEEEMEENMERIR
developed by the Group for sale, at progressive + b (B B 1 18 LA30% £ 60% HY
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the 2EFEYGMHN T M IEER - R
appreciation of land value, which under the BEBARG - B ED DR
applicable regulations is calculated based on the & ¥ % AT 15 IR R AT H A
proceeds of sales of properties less deductible X (BiELHEAELES L -
expenditures including lease charges of land %ff@zﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁi@%%@ﬁi)
use rights, borrowing costs and all property cHE—_ZTZ+LF+ A
development expenditures. Land appreciation tax = TL —RALEFEE THIEER
of RMB124,434,000 is included in the income A R #124,434,000 0 ( ZEE /S
statement for the year ended 31 December 2007 F: AR #23,406,000 7T ) 5 A
(2006: RMB23,406,000). MBER -
(iii) Reconciliation between tax expense and (i) BRI HNEBZNZRER
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: MEBHEPEIR :
2007 2006
—EELF —ETRE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T AR® T T
Profit before income tax & BT 15 4 Al i A 774,734 511,809
Less: PRC land appreciation tax B B L b (E AR (124,434) (23,406)
650,300 488,403
Tax calculated at the rates applicable ZAEEE & A A
to respective companies that HAREGTENTIE
comprise the Group 111,069 87,535
Non-deductible expenses, net of A HFHZ L (BENREE
non-taxable income R A ) (1,024) (558)
Unrecognized deferred tax assets AEAREEENRER
on unused tax losses IEEFIH B E 5,156 2,416
Effect of change in future enactive ARBAHREREHHZE
tax rate 11,945 =
89,393
PRC land appreciation tax rh [+ i 3 (A 124,434 23,406
Total &5t 251,580 112,799
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007



15.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)
(iii) Reconciliation between tax expense and

accounting profit at applicable tax rate:
(Continued)

Profit before income tax of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2007 was mainly generated
by Shanghai Cambridge, Shanghai Oriental and
Shanghai Zhujia, which are subject to PRC income
tax rates of 15% (2006: 15%), 33% (2006: 33%)
and 33% (2006: 33%) respectively.

In accordance with the accounting policy set out in
note 3(v), the Group has not recognized deferred
tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2007 as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilized will be
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.

On 16 March 2007, the Fifth Plenary Session of
the Tenth National People’s Congress passed the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“new tax
law"”) which will take effect on 1 January 2008.
As a result of the new tax law, it is expected that
the income tax rate applicable to the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC will be changed to 25%
from 1 January 2008. The new income tax rates
were used to measure the Group’s deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities as at 31
December 2007. As a result, the Group’s deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities increased by
RMB19,537,000 and RMB31,482,000 respectively
as at 31 December 2007. The enactment of the
new tax law is not expected to have any financial
effect on the amounts accrued in the balance sheet
in respect of current tax payable.

15. i< (&)
(i) FERIHMNEFERNERER

BistE W HIR - (&)

AEEBRBEE-_ZTETLtF+=
A=T—BLEFEZHRAEH
AaFEBZRE LEER - £
RAREBKE  BEHHIEZ
15% (ZFZNF : 15%) * 33%
(ZZZTNF :33%) M33% (=
T NF 1 33%) 2HEBHF
B P15 o

REBEHE3VAEN S EREK
HRED FRARKRERHHNR
2K FE R 0k ) 2K K SH R R OE R
BEREEHMEIMNELERER
E SAKBEBRE_TTt
FT+_A=+—RIEFEKRHE
RIAENELCHIBEE -

(REAREMBECERBEH
EVATEBIFREZ]) BB
EARENBETIFEZEAR
REAEEALRSHER=_ZT
t&#=A+BEB B=-F
SENF-—A—BRBE - BE
BEHEE A&EE FARFE
MERMFEHEEA=-ZF
NEFE—A—BRBEZE B25% °
NREBAB-_ZTZT+EF+ = A
=T HEEFMEBMEENS
ERERTHRERENTRE o
Bl REBR=_ZFZTtF
+ A=+ —BZEEMSEH
EENMBEMNEREEMAEED
30 A K #19,537,000 7T F1 A R
#531,482,000 7T © ¥ L5 ¥ A&
EEEAGRTEIMEME
AEBIAEFE -

BEEM (BB ARAT « —TTLEFH 163



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iRE BRI A
16. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 16. EEM S
Basic salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other  to retirement
benefits benefit
Bxge . schemes Share-based
Fee EER R A A Bonus payment Total
he Hip R HEE i B %1t CEl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT ARBTT ARBTT ARBETT ARBTT
(note 38)
(Wi7E38)
For the year ended 31 BE-ZZtHF
December 2007 +=—A=+—8H
LFEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Weixian FEREERAE — 5,014 — - 5,014
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones it B A — 4,186 — 3,489 - 7,675
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome B OEiHE = 3,751 = 2,492 6,764 13,007
Ms. Wang Xuling (note i) FHZELZ L
(B &ED) - 2,277 - 1,196 - 3,473
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (note i) BEELE A
(B &ED) - 301 - 3,911 4212
Non-Executive Directors HHITEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry o B H SE A 234 — — — 234
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP H MG ERNFEH L 234 — — - 234
Mr. Jiang Simon X. ¥E/NBE S0 A 234 _ _ _ 234
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong FARE &£ 234 — _ _ 234
Total BEr 936 15,529 — 1177 10,675 34,317
(i)  Ms. Wang Xuling and Mr. Tam Lai Ling joined the iy FTHRELTREBEZZEL4 5
Group in July and December 2007 respectively. RZZEZEELFELARTZ AN
AREH o
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16. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 16. EEM & (&)

Basic salaries,
allowances  Contributions
and other  to retirement

benefits benefit
Exge . schemes Share-based
Fee EER R A A Bonus payment Total
he HipRE HEE i BB %1t Chl
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT
(note 38)
(Wi7E38)
For the year ended 31 BE-BERETZA
December 2006 =t-RLEE
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wang Weixian TRELE — 4,401 — — - 4,401
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones A RLE — 4,388 — 2,736 - 7,124
Mr. Lai Kin, Jerome R EEE = 3,587 — 1,954 6,011 11,552
Non-Executive Directors FHTEE
Mr. Cheong Ying Chew, Henry REHELE 61 — _ _ _ 61
Mr. Fong Wo, Felix, JP FARERTEST 61 - — — - 61
Mr. Jiang Simon X. BNBEE 61 — _ _ _ 61
Mr. Kwan Kai Cheong BEE L 61 — — _ _ 61
Total a0 244 12,376 — 4,690 6,011 23,321
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17.

18.

166

A M HRRN

SENIOR MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

The five highest paid individuals of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2007 comprise five directors
of the Company, whose remuneration are reflected in
note 16. Details of remuneration paid to the remaining
highest paid individuals of the Group are as follows:

17.

SREEEMS
AEBHE_TELtF+_A=+—
BEFEMNAEZEaTMALTEIE
AR ERES  HMSE SHRH
16 AEBEBRERTFMA TN
W

2007 2006
—2BLE —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR AR TTT

Basic salary, allowances and other EXRgFE 2 REMA =S

benefits 3,529
Bonuses TE4L 746
Total S5 4,275
Number of senior management BREEREAH 2

During 2007 no emoluments were paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.

DIVIDENDS

Pursuant to the resolutions passed at the board of
directors’ meetings held by certain subsidiaries, the
following dividends were declared to equity holders of
the Company:

18.

R-ZEZLFE AEEYTERNES
FEMAEREHFMALINME -
ESBEMARKREN RS RBER M

i -

(i) Dividends proposed after the (i)
balance sheet date

(i) Dividends declared during the year (i)

FAEE

ZERZKE

g

BREETTARAHNESTERAR
HRBBRAAQRBERSAATIKA

ke
2007 2006
—EBBLFE C—TITRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTE
149,549 —
90,056
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18. DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(i)

(i)

The board of directors has resolved to declare
dividends of RMB149,549,000 (RMB14.4 cents per
ordinary share) in respect of the year ended 31
December 2007. The dividends proposed after the
balance sheet date has not been recognised as a
liability at the balance sheet date.

The board of directors resolved not to declare
any dividends in respect of the year ended 31
December 2006.

Amounts represent the dividends which were
declared and paid by the subsidiaries of the Group
to their then equity holders during the year ended
31 December 2006 prior to the listing of the
shares of the Company on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange.

19. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share for
the year ended 31 December 2007 was based on
the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of
RMB498,498,000 (2006: RMB390,818,000) and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
1,037,500,000 (2006: 814,657,534) in issue during
the year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

18. BB (&)
i) EFSCRRABE_FTTL
FT-_A=+—-HLFEFTIK

(ii)

A R #149,549,000 7t (F IR T @
BARKE1445 )R E - REE
HHEERZBRBEREER N
KERAB—HAE -

E=Zg3R TREBEC
NEFZ ﬂ*"f——EIJJ:iFE
IRAERAE -

*H

ﬁ%%ﬁ%$“ﬂ%ﬁ%§%
X EMARBEE_ZTZ N
¢+fﬁ:+—EE¢E$%
lZ%A EERY XN FE
ERRERBAZRE °

19. ERER

(a)

BEREXREF
BHE-_ZZtLtF+=-A=1+—
BEFESRERNRAN IR
TEBRBREEGRMNARK
498,498,000 ;L ( — T T X F:
A R #390,818,000 7t ) K F
EBITEBERKRZNETFHH
1,037,500,000 f% ( = & & 7N .
814,657,534 1% ) 5t & + 7 B &0
T -

BB R I HE T #

Issued ordinary shares at 1 January and
31 December 2007

R-ZFFLF—HF—BK
TZA=t—HHEHTERAK

1,037,500,000

Ordinary share issued at 13 April 2006

R-BEAFEMA+= A%

(note 39) B & 58 Ak (P RE39) 1
Issuance of shares upon the Reorganisation REARFZEITR G 1,210,146
Capitalisation issue (note 39) B A # 17 (Fi5E39) 748,789,853
Effect of issuance of shares for placing FEEMARABEEZTRONTE

and public offering 64,657,534
Weighted average number of ordinary shares W _ZTEZEXF+_F=+—HHK
at 31 December 2006 38 AR N #E T 19 B 814,657,534
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19.

168

RA M HRARN

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

19. SRER (&)

(b) Diluted earnings per share b) EREBERN
The calculation of diluted earnings per share for REBEEZE-_ZZT L+ = A
the year ended 31 December 2007 was based =+—8H iirlﬂxﬁﬁ 5 2 A
on the profit attributable to ordinary equity ThE AR A E B KR EEN R
holders of the Company of RMB527,442,000 AMAR ”]5‘527 442,000 L ( = &
(2006: RMB390,818,000) and the weighted ZRF : AR 390,818,000 T )
average number of ordinary shares outstanding MRAERMEBEEEH BT AR
after adjustment for the effect of all dilutive FEREETEERDINEF
potential ordinary shares of 1,141,540,509 (2006: ¥ 21,141,540,509 Hx( —ETER
816,197,582), calculated as follows: F :816,197,582% ) 5t & - 5t &
s
(i)  Weighted average number of ordinary shares () EBERINEF G S (#F)
(diluted)
2006
—EERF
Weighted average number of B AR NiE T H
ordinary shares (basic) (EAX) 1,037,500,000 814,657,534
Effect of conversion of convertible X #r[@EB(E A5 £
bonds (note 36) (P 7E36) 98,425,409 —
Effect of share options in issue EETERECTE 5,615,100 1,540,048
Weighted average number of RtT-ZA=+—HH
ordinary shares (diluted) at 58 I AE 15 E
31 December (#4%) 1,141,540,509 816,197,582
The average market value of the Company’s $ RAE AT EERES
ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating ERENTBEREAME

the dilutive effect of share options was based
on quoted market prices for the period that
the options were outstanding.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007
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19. EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (Continued)

19. BRER (&)

(b)

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders

of the Company (diluted)

Profit attributable to ordinary
equity holders (basic)

Effect of effective interest on the
liability component of
convertible bonds (note 36)

Effect of gain recognised on the
derivative component of
convertible bonds (note 36)

EERBERA A
FEAE s A (FEA)
AEREFREDD
ERFENEE

(Pt 5£36)

oA B IRE 50T £ AR D

FriER ks i 52 &
(Pt 7%36)

Profit attributable to ordinary
equityholders (diluted)
at 31 December

R+-—A=+—HHK
ERBRBRERSAA
FE A5 5 R (EE)

EESEL(ZER)BRAR « —TZTF1

SREHRF (%)

KR AR A

A58 7Y (#05)
2007 2006
—BBLE —TTRE
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARETR
390,818
33,384 —
527,442 390,818
%169
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20.

170

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. ME BERDZHE
Fixtures
Leasehold fittings &
Buildings  improvements  Motor vehicles equipment Total
In RMB'000 %8 KA
ARBFT BF HEWERE AE ES Ch
Cost: BA
Balance at 1 January 2006 —ZEEA&E—-F—H
& & 130,860 24,740 25,609 54,592 235,801
Acquisitions BE 61,792 13 1,634 4,953 68,392
Disposals iz = — (212) (1,918) (2,130)
Balance at 31 December —EEXRFE+ZR
2006 =t-BHER 192,652 24,753 27,031 57,627 302,063
Acquisitions BE 29,605 394 6,907 4,877 41,783
Acquired on acquisition R F ARG
of subsidiary (note 7) (Fi5E7) — — 790 142 932
Disposals i — (1,064) (1,038) (42) (2,144)
Balance at 31 December —EEt+FE+ZH
2007 =+ - A% 222,257 24,083 33,690 62,604 342,634
Depreciation: TE :
Balance at 1 January 2006 —ZEZAF—-HA—H
# 4 & 5,939 16,219 11,243 19,121 52,522
Charge for the year ERFE 6,834 4,646 3,984 8,337 23,801
Disposals 2 & = — (159) (957) (1,116)
Balance at 31 December —EEXRE+ZH
2006 =t -HMEE 12,773 20,865 15,068 26,501 75,207
Charge for the year FRHE 10,782 552 4,151 7,769 23,254
Disposals L — (1,064) (765) (37) (1,866)
Balance at 31 December —EEtE+ZA
2007 S+-AMEt 23,555 20,353 18,454 34,233 96,595
Carrying amounts: IREE
At 31 December 2007 —EEtE+Cf
=h=—H 198,702 3,730 15,236 28,371 246,039
At 31 December 2006 —EEANE+ZH
Er=[ 179,879 3,888 11,963 31,126 226,856
SPG Land (Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007



20.

21.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 20.

(i)  All of the buildings owned by the Group are (i)

located in the PRC.

(i)  As at 31 December 2007, buildings with a (ii)
total carrying value of RMB78,071,000 (2006:
RMB96,233,000) were pledged as collateral for the

Group’s borrowings.

LAND USE RIGHTS

Mk BEREREE)

AEEHEASOFEETHER
i o

R-_BEEL+F+-_A=+—8"
AEEBECEERETEBEARKE
78,071,000 T ( ZEF X F : A
R #96,233,0007T ) M FIER
AEBEEMNERR -

21. T i{E FAAE
2007 2006
ZEBELE —EERE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TF T ARBTFT

Cost [N
Balance at beginning of year F YR 78,940 78,940
Additions 1% 40 2,500 —
Transfer to investment properties HESREYFE (5E22)

(note 22 ) (9,660) —
Transfer to properties under EREEREPYE(HE24)

development (note 24 ) (1,958) —
Balance at end of year F R 45 4 69,822 78,940
Amortization # 8y
Balance at beginning of year F Y] 4 54 3,173
Amortization charge for the year F N 5 1,487
Transfer to investment properties EEEEEYE (M5E22)

(note 22 ) —
Transfer to properties under EEraRpYE (ME24)

development (note 24 ) —
Balance at end of year F R 4,660
Carrying amounts R TH (B
At end of year F R 74,280

Land use rights represent lease prepayments for acquiring
rights to use land, which is all located in the PRC, for
own use properties and investment properties under

development.

T AER BN RN
o fE AR N M & RN FROE
WHEERMERERTFRED R -

“EL
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= /\ =
A VB EHERME
21. LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 21. THERE (&)
As at 31 December 2007, land use rights with RZZEZLFT_H=1+—8 K&
a total carrying value of RMB56,176,000 (2006: E 2 AR HE 2 E A K #56,176,000
RMB32,285,000) were pledged as collateral for the T(ZEEZRNF: AR ¥32,285,000
Group's borrowings. )R T EAREIERAEEERD
T o
22. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22. REWME
2007 2006
—EELHF ZETRF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T ARET T
Balance at beginning of year F YR 259,700
Cost capitalized 3 h0 B Bk AR 1,047
Transfer from completed properties held — ## # B 2 12 i 13 & W) 2
for sale (note 25) (B 5E25) 33,071
Transfer from investment properties HEARREFREME
under development (note 23) (MF5E23) —
Transfer from land use rights (note 21) B8 & + 3 & A2 (M 5E21) —
Fair value adjustments: NAEBEFAE
Transfer to income statement BEE R EE 39,882
Balance at end of year FREE R 698,000 333,700
All the investment properties are rented out under AR EYELIRCEAEEMA -
operating leases.
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22.

23.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 22. BEWYH(£)
All the investment properties of the Group are stated AEEMAEREYER_ZTZTLHF
at fair value at 31 December 2007. The fair values TZA=T—HAUAREEBEAIR -
were arrived at based on valuations carried out by DTZ AABEINIBEESHERITER A A
Debenham Tie Leung Limited. The valuations, which THEEMEE - % SFHERESR S
conform to the Valuation Standards (First Edition 2005) BEMBeB/HNMERERE(Z
on Valuation of Properties published by the Hong Kong TZTRHFFE R ET WBELER
Institute of Surveyors, have been determined by reference HEBER R (WMER) @B& WA F
to comparable sales evidence and where appropriate, HEAELMEE EHRBEBEEFTAS
by capitalisation of net income. The revaluation gains or FWMHNER  WAYE BELIRE
losses have been credited to the income statement of the HEEREREREREREYEMN
respective year, or, in the case of revaluation gains arising EEEHRE - EEGT AR -
on transfer of an item of property, plant and equipment
to investment property following a change in use, to
equity directly.
As at 31 December 2007, investment properties with RZZEZLtFEF+_A=+—8H K&
a total carrying value of RMB487,000,000 (2006: E 2 4 17 0K M 48 (B A R # 487,000,000
RMB197,700,000) were pledged as collateral for the T(ZZEZXF : AR %197,700,000
Group’s borrowings. TN KREMEERASERENE
T
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 23. REAREYE
2007 2006
—EELF ZEERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B TR AR T T
Balance at beginning of year F Y& R 40,907 35,250
Cost capitalized 1 008 B AR 26,310 5,657
Transfer to investment property HEEREYE
(note 22) (Ffr7E22) (67,217) —
Balance at end of year F IR 40,907

Be

ity

(BR)ERAT « —TT LFFR
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RA M HRARN

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

2. BRPYE

Properties under development expected
to be completed:

TEHA S 70 LA T B R R A A
HRPYE

— within twelve months —+=-@AR
— beyond twelve months — TZ@A#%
Balance at beginning of year F YR
Cost capitalized 200 #) B AR
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary RULEE 7R AR B S
(note 7) (FFEE7)

Transfer from land use rights (note 21)
Transfer to completed properties held
for sale (note 25)

e AR (FE21)
EREEENTEDE
(Pt 7£25)

Balance at end of year

F B

Interest capitalization included in
the above:

Balance at beginning of year

Cost capitalized (note 14)

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiary

Transfer to investment properties

Transfer to completed properties held
for sale

Bt ALMIER B E R
B

F &R
ENE B (B RE14)
REBFRAAKERS
HEEREME
BREERRGFEDE

Balance at end of year

FRAER
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2007
—eTtH
RMB’000
ARMT R

642,593

2,356,458

2007
—ETLE
RMB’000
AR%TF R

1,263,724
1,866,864

677,721
1,887

(811,145)

2,999,051

98,867

59,962
1,655

(1,094)

(89,475)

69,915

505,290

758,434

[l
Ao A
-

>

2,285,569
355,071

(1,376,916)

1,263,724



24,

25.

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT (Continued) 24, BEDBYHE(£Z)
The properties under development are located in the BEMRYEHUNARE -
PRC.
The weighted average capitalization rate of borrowings HE _EEZE+E+-_HA=+—H I
is 6.93% for the year ended 31 December 2007 (2006: FEE O EENMEEIEHERNLENE A
6.02%). 6.93% (—FTZTNF : 6.02%) °
As at 31 December 2007, properties under development R-_EZFT+EF+=-_A=+—H -
of approximately RMB1,051,516,000 (2006: N £ 2 HEEBEEH AR K
RMB1,227,828,000) were pledged as collateral for the 1,051,516,000 T (ZZEZE X F : AR
Group's borrowings. #1,227,828,000 T ) K 25 & ) ZE {E
RASEBEENEMRS -
COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 25. CERSGEYE
2007 2006
—EELF ZEEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBETTT
Balance at beginning of year F YR 387,533 187,214
Transfer from properties under HEEEREPE (HE24)

development (note 24) 811,145 1,376,916
Transfer to cost of sales BB S G E B AR (926,525) (1,143,526)
Transfer to investment properties ERESREYFE ([5E22)

(note 22) (18,177) (33,071)
Balance at end of year FRER 253,976 387,533
Impairment loss provision included BEst A L#iIE B &R E

in the above: EEEE

Balance at beginning of year F 1) 4 B8 (1,503)

Reversal upon sale of properties HEYERED —

Balance at end of year F IR (1,503)

All completed properties held for sale are located in the
PRC.

As at 31 December 2007, completed properties held
for sale of approximately RMB99,854,000 (2006:
RMB255,035,000) were pledged as collateral for the
Group's borrowings.

BS

it

FIEERKFENEIURFTE -

R—_EEZ+F+-_HA=+—H K&
B B E 4 A R #99,854,000 7T
(ZZEZXF : AR¥255,035,0007T)
HNERKFENEEREAEBEEBED
AR o

(BR)ARAT » 2T LFFH
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A M HRRN

26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 26. BEE NTRELDS
2007 2006
—EE2LHF —ETRF
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt & AR TR ARET T
Shanghai ZhongXin Asset FEREBEEKE
Management Co., Ltd. AR A A (a) 65,531 65,187
The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan /@40 ¥ &8 /&
Hotel Company Limited BIR A (b) 870,364 878,947
Wuxi Guosheng Property EIHBE R EERME
Development Co., Ltd. A R 2R A () 23,306 —
Wuxi Shenglian Property my R EERE
Development Co., Ltd. AR A A (c) 23,306 —
982,507 944,134
(a) Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management Co., (a) L BREEELKEARAT
Ltd.
2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARB T T
Cost of investment &% B K AR 26,933 26,933
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEENEE 2,794 2,794
Share of post-acquisition profit 216 U B 12 i 7 2,804 2,460
Loan N 33,000 33,000
65,531 65,187
The fair value of the net identifiable assets of EBERERNKERBN A 7
Shanghai ZhongXin at the date of acquisition was BEAABEEFEEERAR
determined to be RMB89,775,000. The Group's #89,775,000 7T ° 7 & B FE 1k #Y
attributable share at RMB26,933,000 represents A 2 #26,933,000 7T 35 P #F B9 b
its 30% equity interest in Shanghai ZhongXin. The B R EB30% M AE o W B KA A
cost of acquisition was RMB29,727,000 which was R ¥29,727,000 L AR & X 17 o
satisfied in cash.
Loan to Shanghai ZhongXin of RMB33,000,000 MEBREBRENERARE
represents the Group’s proportional share of a 33,000,000 7t ( B1 7S & [& B {5 3%
shareholders’ loan, which is unsecured, interest free REREHD) nEER 28K

and has no fixed terms of repayment. EmETERS -
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26.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
(b) The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company

(c)

Limited

26.
(b)

B

DRE R (F)
LEMEXBEEERAF

Cost of investment & KA
Additional investment in
paid-in-capital

Share of post-acquisition loss

DU B 1R B 1R

EMEBRAZERE

2007 2006
—EELHF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AR T T
867,013 867,013
13,665 13,665
(10,314) (1,731)
870,364 878,947

The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel Company
Limited (“Peninsula Waitan”) (note 45(a)) is 50%
indirectly owned by Delta Link, and is engaged in
development, operation and management of The
Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel.

On 7 November 2006, Delta Link invested an
additional amount of US$1,750,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,665,000) to Peninsula Waitan.

Wuxi Guosheng Property Development Co.,
Ltd. ("Wuxi Guosheng”) and Wuxi Shenglian
Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi
Shenglian”)

Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian were
established on 2 November 2007, in each of which
the Group has 49% equity interest. Interests in
each of Wuxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian
represent contributed capital of RMB 23,306,000
(equivalent to HK$24,500,000).

BS

(c)

Bib (BR)ARAT ¢« —TTLEFRH

EBNEFEBEER A A
(Fon# + 5 1) (M 7E45()) |
Delta Link & £ # £50% & # -
WTHERE CEREELS
SNSRI o

RZFETR

= = /\

#+ — A £ H,
Delta Link ) 40 3 ¥ & 1% jn 3% &
1,750,000 X T (HE R A R
13,665,0007T ) °

BEERFEEMBARALF
(ESZER)RESEBEE
MBERAT ([EGRB])

EHBEBEMEHEBONR _F
TLtF+-—AZBENL AEH
R LR R B R B 49% IHE -

fl #E 25 15 H & A R # 23,306,000
7 (48 % 72 24,500,000 7T ) ©
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26. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 26. B ATIRER (&)

(d) Summarised financial information relating to the d) TXH23HEE AT 88K
associates, which is not adjusted for the percentage BRI E YRR E A E B EL
of ownership held by the Group is as follows: FES T o
31 December 2007 —EEtHE+=-H=+—H

Liabilities
a8&
Other Shareholders’
In RMB'000 Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
ARETT B Ht8E REEH B# k& BF/ (BB
Shanghai ZhongXin L% & 366,145 147,840 110,000 108,305 39,358
Peninsula Waitan NEEE 2,411,967 658,654 321,402 1,431,911
Wauxi Guosheng & 5B 50,638 3,075 — 47,563
Wuxi Shenglian i3 g 50,638 3,075 - 47,563
31 December 2006 —EEXREt+ZA=1+—H
Liabilities
8&
Other Shareholders’
In RMB'000 Assets liabilities loans Equity Revenue Profit/(loss)
ARETT £  HthBfE BRREX i k& BH/ (BR)
Shanghai ZhongXin HERE 420,465 203,305 110,000 107,160 19,315 4,711
Peninsula Waitan 2,230,235 471,566 343,582 1,415,087 — 1,902
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27.

FLARER —FQF

2007 2006
—EELHF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARETTT
Unlisted shares, at cost IE ETARD 0 AR 3,144,952 1,465,222
Cumulative fair value of share options i a/NCIK == N
granted to employees of subsidiaries MEBARLEBE 19,232 4,905
3,164,184 1,470,127
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of AN FEGEEET AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
KL HEMmE LKA S E# BF:3 ot fit & A TEXK
% %

SPG Investment Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 100% = US$1  Investment holding
2 March 2004 1E7T REER

REALHS

—TTME=A_H
Delta Link Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% = US$100  Investment holding
6 May 2004 100% 7T REER

RBRUES

“ZEMFERARHA
Shanghai Cambridge the PRC — 98.24% US$67,670,000 Property
(Group) Co., Ltd. 25 August 1998 67,670,000% 7T development,
FERE+E (5E) HE - sales and lease
ARADA —AANENR FHER %
—ThH HERME
Shanghai New Independence the PRC, — 88.42% RMB5,000,000 Property
House Property Management 17 January 2001 AR #5,000,0007C management
Co., Ltd. FE services
LBNBARNEER T -F MEEIERB

BRAT —ATtH
BEEH(ZR)ERAT « —ZTLFFK 179
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27. TRAEIEHE —ADE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of AN FEGEEET AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
NG T AL L B K B BE# BF:3 HfEX TEER
% %

Shanghai Cambridge the PRC, — 97.26% RMB5,000,000 Clubhouse
Country Club Co., Ltd 22 November 2001 A R #5,000,0007¢ operation
FERBFSHR hE - eMmEE

RERER R —ET-F

+—RA=-+ZH
Shanghai SPG Land Property the PRC, = 98.14% RMB10,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 14 August 2002 A K #10,000,000 75 development,
LEBRRENEE R - lease and
EERARAA “EE-FN\ATHA management
FHERE -
HEREE
Shanghai SPG Hotel the PRC, — 100%  RMB349,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd 1 December 2006. AR¥ development,
EEBREEMEE R 349,000,000 sales and lease
EREBRA ZEERETZA—H FHERE -
HERMEE

Shanghai Sipo Education
Development Co., Ltd.
(“Sipo Education”)

LERBHEERERAR
(TBEHE])

Shanghai Sipo Polytechnic
FEBERIER

Shanghai Sipo Vocational
Technical Training Centre

LRBBRERMEI SO

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007

the PRC,

9 October 2001
-
—ET-%+ANA

the PRC,

15 April 2003

hE
“ZZ=FWA+AHA

the PRC,

14 October 2003

HE
ZEE=FTHATIA

= 65.96% RMB70,000,000
AE#70,000,0007T

= 65.96% RMB5,000,000
A #5,000,0007T

— 65.96% RMB200,000
AR #200,0007T

Investment holding

REEK

College education

ERHE

Technical training
and technology
consultancy

B s 3 &
A



27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 27. FREER —ADF(E)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company

Place and date of ~ AAFEMEZE AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
ARAH TR L B K B BE# B3 afEx TEER

% %

Shanghai Oriental Cambridge the PRC, — 100%  RMB584,130,000 Property
Property Development 26 September 2002 AR development,
Co., Ltd. HE 584,130,0007T sales and lease

TERTRBRHERR —TTC FibERE
BB ARA NAZ=+7<H HERMES

Shanghai Lishui Greenary the PRC, — 51% RMB10,000,000 Landscape
Ecology Engineering Co., Ltd. 7 November 2003 AR %10,000,0007C construction project

FEBKERZLIR HE - HESERE
BRAA “ZE=F+—HRtH

Shanghai Cambridge the PRC, — 100% RMB500,000 Project
Construction Consulting 29 April 2004 AR #500,0007T management,
Co., Ltd. mE - consulting and

LERRYERESA “TTNF services
BRAT MA-tNBE HEER %A

MR

Shanghai Shikang Property the PRC, — 100% Us$140,000 Property agency
Consulting Co., Ltd. 7 January 2003 140,000 7T and consulting

FBtREHEZATRAA hE - MERERAA

—ZE=F—-HLH
Shanghai Zhuxi Investment the PRC, — 100% RMB30,000,000 Industry investment,
Enterprise Co. 2 December 2003 AR #30,000,0007T  management and
KR EEREAERAA HE business consulting
“ZE=f+-HZH EXRE BER
15 o

Huangshan Taiping Lake the PRC, — 100%  RMB120,000,000 Hotel development
Resort Hotel Development 7 January 2004 AR and operation
Co., Ltd. hE - 120,000,000t BERERELE

BALATHERBERRE —ZEME-A LA
BRAT

BEEL(ZR)ARAT « —TTLFFH 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re M B ERRM

é\
it

27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 27. FREIER —XKRDTE (&)

(Continued)

Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of ~ AAFEMEZE AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
ARAH TR L B K A E# & ERE-EN TEER
% %

Huangshan Cambridge the PRC, — 100% RMB50,000,000 Property
Property Development 22 July 2004 A K #50,000,000 7T development,
Co., Ltd. R sales and lease

BELERIERHERR —ZTME B ERE
BRAR tA=+=H HERMEE

SPG Investment | (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding

1 September 2006 (E REEK
RERAES
“EERFNAA-H

Huangshan SPG Land the PRC, — 100%  RMB100,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 AR development,

BEIRRENEREARLDA R - 100,000,0007T sales and lease

ZEELENATAH FHERE -
HERME
SPG Investment IV (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
5 December 2006 (EV REAER
RERTHES
ZEE R ETZAAA

Huangshan Shengyuan Hotel the PRC, — 100%  RMB150,000,000 Hotel development
Development Co., Ltd. 17 August 2007 ARE and operation

BEUREEEERERLA hE - 150,000,000t EERERELE

ZEELENATLEH
SPG Investment V (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
5 December 2006 (E REER
AERAES
ZEERFETZAAA
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27.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27. TRAEIERE —ARDE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of ~ AN FELEEET AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
NEAMW MK IR A S E# & HEMEX TEXK
% %

Huangshan Shengzhi Hotel the PRC, — 100%  RMB150,000,000 Hotel development
Development Co., Ltd. 17 August 2007 AR and operation
BLREEEERBERAA hE - 150,000,0007  E/E R B REE

“Z2+FNRA+LA
SPG Investment VI (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — Us$1 Investment
7 March 2007 (ES holding
RERAES REER

S ey =
Huangshan Shengdi Real Estate the PRC, = 100%  RMB150,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 ARE development,
FRWEDERRE R 150,000,000 7T sales and lease
BRAR 2+ FENATRE FHERZE
HERBE
SPG Investment VII (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
25 April 2007 (= REER

RERAES

e s

MA-+HA
Huangshan Shengde Real Estate the PRC, — 100%  RMB150,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 16 August 2007 AR development,
FREEHERRE R 150,000,000 7T sales and lease
BRARA —ZZ+FNATRAE FHERZ
HERMESE
SPG Investment Il (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, — 71% US$1  Investment holding
5 December 2006 (E REEK

RERLHE
“RTAFt-ARA

BB (ZER)ERAF « _TTLFFR
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27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27. TRAEIEHE —ARDE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of ~ AAFEMEREE AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
NEAMW MR LR A E# & & A& TEXK
% %

Kunming SPG Land the PRC, — 71%  RMB142,500,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 9 November 2006 AR development,
ERESENEREARAA R 142,500,000 7T sales and lease
—ZTRET-ANA B ERE
HERME
SPG Investment Il (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, — 71% US$1  Investment holding
1 December 2006 (E REEK

SERLRE

2 FT=ZR—H
Kunming SPG Grand City the PRC, — 71% US$ 40,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd 15 June 2007 40,000,000% 7T development,
AESAMREEER R - sales and lease
BRRA ZETLERATAA FHERE -
HERME
Shanghai Zhujia Cambridge the PRC, — 71%  RMB280,000,000 Property
Property Development 24 September 2003 ARE development
Co., Ltd. hE - 280,000,000 7T and sales
FERERBLERME —TT=F BHERERHE

ERERDA NAZTIA
Suzhou Runjian Property the PRC, — 90% RMB50,880,000 Property
Co., Ltd. 28 September 2007 AR development,
BMNEREZARAA R - 50,880,000 7T sales and lease
ZETLE FEHERE -
AA-+NE HERMEE
SPG Investment IX (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
15 May 2007 (E REER

RERAES

“EELFRATHA
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27.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27. TRAEIERE —ARE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of ~ AAFEMEZE AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
ARAH TR L B K B E# % & A TEER
% %

Changshu SPG Land the PRC, — 100% RMB200,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 12 July 2007 AR development,
FARSRMWEER FE 200,000,000 7T sales and lease
BRAR ZEELEFELATCH FHERZE
HERBE
Wise Crown Group Limited Hong Kong, 100% — HK$10,000 Investment holding
21 June 2007 10,0007 7T REEK

B

S s

NAZ+—H
Changshu SPG Real Estate the PRC, — 100%  RMB150,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 24 October 2007 ARE development,
FARMEEERAA R 150,000,000 7C sales and lease
- 3 FHERE -
+A=+mA HERME
SPG Investment VIII (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
25 April 2007 (EV REER

RERAES

ZETLE

MBE-+&HA
Wuxi SPG Land the PRC, — 100% US$ 20,000,000 Property
Development Co., Ltd. 5 June 2007 20,000,000 7T development,
B EEE M ERE HE - sales and lease
ARRA “ET L ARA FHERE .
HERMEE
Glory Creation Group Limited Hong Kong, 100% — HK$10,000 Investment holding
21 June 2007 10,0007 7T REEK

BE

ZETLE

~AZ+-H

BEEM (BB ARAT « —TTLEFH 185
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27. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY 27. FRAERE —&AQT (&)
(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of AR FEGEEET AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
NEAMW MLt K A S E# & & A& TEXK
% %

Fine Will Group Limited Hong Kong, 100% = HK$10,000 Investment holding
22 May 2007 10,0007 70 REER

BE

ZETLE

EA-+ZH
SPG Hotel Ltd. British Virgin Islands, — 100% US$1  Investment holding
2 March 2004 (E REEK

AERLEE

“EENE=A=H
SPG Investment X (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
15 May 2007 1%7T REEK

RERAES

ZZ2ELFRATAA
SPG Investment XI (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, — 71% US$1  Investment holding
15 May 2007 (E REER

RERAES

“ZZ+FRATAHA
SPG Investment XII (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
7 June 2007 (E REEK

RERAES

ZETEERALA
SPG Investment XIII (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
7 June 2007 17T REER

RERAES

“EELERALA

186 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2007



27.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27. TRAEIERE —ARDE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of ~ AAFEMEZE AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
RNAER MR R B BE# B3 afEx TERK
% %

Link Mind International Ltd. British Virgin Islands, 100% = US$1  Investment holding
26 January 2007 1571 REAER

RERAES

—TTLF

—AZ=+"AH
SPG Hotel International Limited British Virgin Islands, 100% = US$1  Investment holding
7 March 2007 E RERR

SERAHE

“ETLF=A LA
SPG Investment XIV (BVI) British Virgin Islands, 100% — US$1  Investment holding
Limited 7 June 2007 (E REEK

RERAES

“ETEERALEA
Harvest Leaf Investments Hong Kong, 100% = HK$10,000 Investment holding
Limited 23 July 2007 10,0007%8 7T REER

&%

e 3

tA=-t+=H
Luck Goal Limited Hong Kong, 100% = HK$10,000 Investment holding
17 August 2007 10,0007 70 REAER

BE

“ZE+FEAATtA
Power Spread Group Limited Hong Kong, 100% = HK$10,000 Investment holding
17 August 2007 10,0007 7 REEK

Nl

ZEELFENATLEH

BEEH (ER)ERLAF « —TT+FFH 187
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY
(Continued)

27. TRAEIEHE —ADE (&)

Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of AR FEGEEET AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
ARER MLt K A S EE & & A& TEER
% %
SPG Land (Management) Hong Kong, 100% — HK$10,000 Investment holding
Limited 16 October 2006 10,0007 7T REEK
5
“ZERF+ATAA
SPG Investment | (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,0007 7T REER
BE
ZEELETZAAA
SPG Investment Il (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REEK
BE
ZEZLET-AAA
SPG Investment Il (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REEK
i
“ZZ+F+-RAA
SPG Investment IV (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,0007 7T REEK
B
—ZT+E+-ARH
SPG Investment V (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REER
BE
“EELETZAAA
SPG Investment VI (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REEK
BB

PTLET-AER
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28.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

27. TRAEIERE —ARDE (&)

(Continued)
Percentage
of equity attributable to
the Company
Place and date of AN FEMGEEEF AL Registered Principal
Name of company incorporation Direct Indirect capital activities
ARAH TR L B K B E# % & A TEER
% %
SPG Investment VII (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REER
BE
ZEELETAAA
SPG Investment VIII (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REEK
N
ZZELFET-AAA
SPG Investment IX (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,0007 1T REER
BE
“ZE+E+_ARA
SPG Investment X (HK) Limited Hong Kong, — 100% HK$10,000 Investment holding
5 December 2007 10,000 7T REER
BE

—ET+F+_-_ARH

All of these entities are controlled subsidiaries as defined

under note 3(a)(i) and have been consolidated into the

consolidated financial statements.

INVENTORIES

P %5 B R AN E3@)) T i E H X E
HlFRRIREAHFABRATHERE

28. FE
2007 2006
—EELE —EENE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AR T T

7

Merchandise

2,108

Inventories were mainly purchased from external parties

and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.

BREE

FEITZ2BEIRAL  BERARATZR

FENREE AR -
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29. INVESTMENTS 29. RE
2007 2006
“BBEE _—TTRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTET

Equity securities held for trading

30. TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCE

190

DEPOSITS ®
Group Company
rEE KA F]
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EEEFE —ITTF ZEBEEE —ITITHF
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTT ARMTR AR®TE
Receivables due from JE W 2 A+
related parties: KIA -
— Chairman of the —EE5CEF
board (note 45(c)) (Bt 5E45(c)) — —
— Subsidiaries —FRHA 93,530 80,376
— Other related parties — H {h & A +
(note 45(c)) (Bt 5 45(c)) 14,988 50 —
15,258 93,580 80,376
Trade receivables due EUWE=ZFTNE S 3,517 —
from third parties JiE I 3k
Advance payments to Y& I5f A G2 7 38 29,184 190
contractors
Advance deposits for W i - 5P 4
acquisition of WIET RS
land use rights 847,429 498,853 496,769 =
Receivable related to BEALHETFAA
disposal of equity % #E /Y FE Lk
interest in subsidiaries AR (M 5E8) 65,568 —
(note 8)
Non-trade receivables E fib ' 5K 52,974 65,568 710
Tax prepayments TE B K 65,553 — —
Total aEr 1,079,483 656,238 81,276
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30.

TRADE, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND ADVANCE
DEPOSITS (Continued)

The receivables due from related parties are unsecured,
non-interest bearing and repayable on demand.

Non-trade receivable balances, deposits and advances
to third parties are expected to be settled or recovered
within one year.

Tax prepayments mainly represent prepayment of
business tax during the pre-sale stage of certain
properties under development.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables at each balance
sheet date is as follows:

300 BIRA - EtBEBRRAMNR
& (%)
EREEALIRBERERR ER

AN BEREEE -

Al

HibRUKRTBE S A2 RFANE=
HHFRIERAR —FRBEIKME -

BN ARERERNRAEETRRTY
EMBEHHEEMR

FEWERN S EEBNIREK DT

M
Group
EE

2007 2006

—®BLE _"TTAF

RMB’000 RMB’0
ARBT T ARBTT

Within 90 days Cl=R

Over 90 days and within 180 days 90H £180H
Over 180 days and within 365 days 180 H £365H
Over 365 days 365H A E

BS

399

833

2,373
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31. RESTRICTED CASH 31. SR4ES

Pursuant to relevant regulations, certain subsidiaries of BIBBEAD AEEE THREME
the Group which engage in property development have BEROFAFIBREERTERE AR
restrictions on their ability to draw cash from specified BRSEABEREMHEINEHR
bank loan accounts for uses other than the purchase Y) %18 B ?*Fﬁiﬁ%?lﬁ’\]ﬁﬁﬁ AR
of construction materials and payment of development BERS - R=ZEZT+LFF+_A=+—
costs relating to the relevant property projects. As at 31 B BETZEREIARITE DR
December 2007, the bank account balances subject to A AN R #173,236,000 T ° ( = T ZE X
these restrictions amounted to RMB173,236,000 (2006: F : AK#¥158,521,0007T °)

RMB158,521,000).

Furthermore, as at 31 December 2007, cash at oh RZZEEL+FE+ - =+ —
bank of the Company of RMB68,357,000 (2006: H " 2a R 1TFRARE
RMB683,196,000) was security for short-term loans of 68,357,000 L (Z T RNF : AR
certain of its subsidiaries. 683,196,0007T ) AH &/ T F A 7 EH
EHERWER -
32. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32. BERBESEEY

An analysis of the balance of cash and cash equivalents ReEREFEBUNERTAOT -
is set out below:

Group Company

AEE b NN

2007 2006 2007 2006

STt _—TTAGF —BEtE -TTX
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 R 0
ARBTFRE ARBTLT ARBTRE ARBTT

Cash at bank and RITERERE
cash in hand 1,104,830 1,660,691 205,495 979,049

Less: restricted cash B RREIE e
(note 31) (MF5E31) (241,593) (841,717) (68,357) (683,196)
295,853

Cash at bank and cash in hand are denominated in: AR EEEENETERLRES -

RMB AR #& 772,582 598,713 — —
Us$ =1y 191,572 202 110,031 —
AU$ B IT 7 7 — —
HK$ 7B T 140,669 1,061,769 95,464 979,049

979,049

1,104,830 1,660,691
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32.

33.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

RMB is not a freely convertible currency and the
remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the

exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.

TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(i)
sheets represents:
PRC income tax

Current taxation in the consolidated balance

Balance brought forward

Provision for PRC income
tax for the year
PRC income tax paid

Balance carried forward

PRC land appreciation tax

Balance brought forward

Provision for PRC land appreciation
tax for the year
PRC land appreciation tax paid

Balance carried forward

3. HERREEEY (£H)
ARBIWIFEREBER P EHE
A R B ZE 3B <7 R B RIS ) BT A PE
Rl o
33. ERFEH EEZEHREBEEE
(8%8)
(i) BREEEEBRNEABRB
BIE ¢
B AT 12
2007 2006
—EELF —EERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
7 I 45 fR 10,499 386
& A R B P AS AR
16,280
SN REY (6,167)
gy 10,499
o B + #h 12 (8 B
2007 2006
—EELF —EERE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
ZEQTIF NS 175,435 164,567
5 A B AR B L R (E R R
23,406
B AR B £ b (A R (12,538)
Eer it 175,435
BREEH (ZER)ARAT « — T LF4H 193
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33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)

(i

Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheets represents: (Continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (Continued)

PRC land appreciation tax is levied at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including land use right costs, borrowing costs and
all property development expenditures.

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in property
development business in the PRC are subject
to land appreciation taxes, which have been
included in the income tax expenses. However,
the implementation of these taxes varies amongst
various districts and the Group has not finalised
its land appreciation tax returns with various tax
authorities. Accordingly, significant judgement
is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises these
liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
provisions of land appreciation taxes in the period
in which such determination is made.
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33. ENFEBH ELBEEE

(BE) &)

() REEEABERNTHHREH
(&)
o+ IR (B ()

PR IEER TR EE
MIZEHB(NEEDMEMS
ROIE R B HE L AR AR R
BERARMEBEDEERAX
FRANBERS)EZN F30%E
60% 5 HY 2 3 T UL o

AEHEEFTEREEMERRR
BHFRAHAMMNLHIEE
BoHEBIAMGSEHRAZ - A
m-ETRAME  ZERENE
EEBEER BAEEEKHE
TRARGHERKREEERALE
THIRER - Atk - EEE L
HESHENEBRRERARAE
HEBEXHE RABEBKBR
TREEENREALTNETEN -
AEBZREREN & EMET
RAZEAB WZREFTEN
REBRERNTENEED
Rl AIZEZ88erEFELA
B8 R T HA F) &) 4 st 38 B A 45 o



33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

(Continued)
Deferred tax assets recognised:

(i)

The components of deferred tax assets recognised
in the consolidated balance sheets and the
movements during the year ended 31 December

2007 are as follows:

33. ENFMEBH EEBEEE

(BE) (&)

(i) CERAEEHRAEE
EEGAEERERERNE
EHREEEBODEARBE-FT
E+F+_RA=+—-HILFE

MBBHMT :
Temporary
difference on
revenue Temporary

recognition difference on
and related recognition

cost of sales  of expenses Tax losses Total
hEERAR
FHHEE
BA# BIAERH
ERER ERER BH¥EE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT AREBTR ARETT ARET:

At 1 January 2006 —EERE-H—H 88,331 32,466 5,410 126,207
Additions 310 13,044 6,664 15,360 35,068
Charged to consolidated EEAFMBRMEG
income statement (87,766) (9,361) — (97,127)
At 31 December 2006 —TERE
+-A=+—8H 13,609 29,769 20,770 64,148
Additions 20 806 21,284 8,855 30,945
Charged to consolidated EZAFBARDR
income statement (13,675) (1,006) (26,221) (40,902)
Effect of change in future ARERAREEFHEH
enactive tax rate T 494 19,868 (825) 19,537
At 31 December 2007 —RTLF
+-A=+—H 1,234 69,915 2,579 73,728
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33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

3B BENREHR EEREEE

196

(Continued)

(i)

Deferred tax assets recognised: (Continued)

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had
unused tax losses of RMB74,649,000 (2006:
RMB112,773,000) available to offset against future
profits. Deferred tax assets have been recognised in
respect of tax losses amounting to RMB10,316,000
at a tax rate of 25% as at 31 December 2007
(2006: RMB62,935,000, 33%).
assets have been recognised in respect of the
remaining tax losses of RMB64,333,000 (2006:
RMB49,838,000) due to the unpredictability
of future taxable profit streams of the legal

No deferred tax

entities concerned as at 31 December 2007. The
unrecognised tax losses for the year ended 31
December 2007 will expire in the following years
ending 31 December:

(BE) (&)

(ii)

Bﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ&'ﬂ%
RZEZTELF+ZA =+ —

B A& E A A KREER KR
ﬂ%*@%m SEBEEARARE
74,649,000 T (=TT X F : A
R #112,773,0007C) - W= =&
tE+ZA=+—H  RBHE
BIR25% M R ERNELEFRIAE
E A& AR ¥10,316,000 T (==
TRNF: AR ¥62935,0007T °
33%) c HR T EERHEE
5 E B R R 2R JE SRR T s ) 2R K
BEEHEER  BLER=ZZZL4F
+ A=+ —BUARREHKRH
7% B 18 A R #64,333,000 7T ( =
T N F . AR #49,838,000
TT)RRELERIEEE - RBZE
—EEHFEF+_HA=+T—H1
FEMRBERB B EEH KA
THZE+-_A=+—HLFE
=R

A

2007 2006

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR T T

2008 —EENF 9,720 9,720
2009 —EENF 11,023 11,023
2010 —E—F& 17,908 17,908
2011 —F——4F 11,187 11,187
2012 = 14,495 —
64,333 49,838
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33. TAX PAYABLE/DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
(Continued)
(iii) Deferred tax liabilities recognised
The components of deferred tax liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheets
and the movements during the year ended 31

3B. ENHEHR ELEBEEE
(BE) (&)
(i) ERRELEHAEE

EEGAREERERBERNE
EHRBEREBODEAREBEE-T
E+L-F+_A=+—HILFE

December 2007 are as follows: REs T
Revaluation
of Investment Fair value
Properties  adjustments Total
REWMEEH QAREERE &5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETF T AR FTT
At 1 January 2006 —EERF—-—H—H 12,991 — 12,991
Charged to consolidated £ #7 & F B & H0 Br
income statements 11,054 — 11,054
At 31 December 2006 —EERF+=A
== 24,045 — 24,045
Charged to consolidated EEAFBEXRORE
income statements 48,632 — 48,632
Arising from acquisition of WHETF AR ELE
subsidiary (note 7) (MI3E7) — 109,840 109,840
Net effect of change in future & 2K 3@ A Fii =& &
enactive tax rate FRE 31,482 — 31,482
At 31 December 2007 —EELF+ R
=q=1E 104,159 109,840 213,999
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34. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS 3. FFEER
2007 2006
—EELF —EETRE
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREF T
Current 45 HA
Secured bank loans BHEMIBETER 103,400 635,000
Unsecured bank loans EIMFIEITER 5,000 10,000
Current portion of non-current EEMBTRBERD
secured bank loans —F AR B R 264,000 466,390
372,400 1,111,390
Non-current RH
Secured bank loans BIRFETER 942,810 1,255,860
Less: current portion of non-current B BEERRITEAERS
secured loans — F 2 B /9 26 10 (264,000) (466,390)

678,810 789,470

The secured bank loans as at 31 December 2007 were
secured by the Group’s properties and land use rights
with carrying amount of RMB1,772,617,000 (2006:
RMB1,809,081,000) (notes 20, 21, 22, 24 and 25).

The Group’s non-current bank loans were repayable as

N-EBEELE+ - F=+—HHHIK
WIRTEFUAEEREDEAARE
1772617000 T ( ZZEZRF : ARK
1,809,081,000 7T ) #J 4 5 K & #h {6 FA #&
{EAE IR (Ff7E20 <21 ~22 ~24%25) »

AEBNRARTEREAR AT HHE

follows: EiE
2007 2006
—EBELHF —ETREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T AR T T
Within 1 year —F R 264,000 466,390
Over 1 year but less than 2 years —EMF 460,520 351,000
Over 2 years but less than 5 years “ERF 90,290 438,470
Over 5 years AELE 128,000 —

942,810 1,255,860
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34. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS (Continued) 30, HES% (&)
The effective interest rates of the year ended 31 REZE_ZENERERZETLF+=
December 2007 and 2006 were as follows: A=T—HALFENEBRRNEAT
2007 2006
—EELE —ETRF
Bank loans IRITE R 6.93% 6.02%
The carrying amounts of current and non-current bank REERRHARTERNEEEBESREQ R
loans approximate their fair value. BEMET -
35. TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ADVANCE RECEIPTS 35. EARM HENS R R AR
S|
Group Company
rEE AKAF
2007 2006 2007 2006
—EE2LE C—ITTRE ZBEEE —ITITRF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTr ARETT AR¥BTR ARETR
Payables due to JE B A 508 ¢
related parties:
Trade related (note 45(c)) M3 AN TERR
(P 5E 45()) =
Non-trade related: H A JE T
— Dividends payable — EARE
(note 45(c)) (Bt 5% 45(0)) — —
— Subsidiaries = FENFl 424,023 12,110
— Other related parties — HMEAEALT
(note 45(c)) (B 5 45(c)) 11,101 —
36,226 37,113 424,023 12,110
Trade payables JE 15 BR 3K 390,497 288,185 —
Advance receipts UK P A
from customers 445,378 366,424 —
Other taxes payable H A &~ 750 18 36,778 7,935 —
Non-trade payables and H A e 5 KA
accrued expenses EREH 329,783 148,369 6,985 14,905
Total EEr 431,008 27,015

The payables due to related parties are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and repayable on demand.

BS

ERHMEALREARLR LER
BN B REE (3 -
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35.

36.

200

A M HRRN

TRADE, OTHER PAYABLES AND ADVANCE RECEIPTS 35. EAIEDZ  EMEMNDZRERX
(Continued) (&)
The ageing analysis of trade payables at each balance ERNEREARSEE B BNIKREK DT
sheet date is as follows: NN
2007 2006
—EELF —EER
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARET T
Within 90 days 90 H A 136,259 247,620
Over 90 days and within 180 days H#B90H =180 H 86,792 19,222
Over 180 days and within 365 days i 180 H £ 365 H 89,768 26,623
Over 365 days and within 3 years HBiE365H £3F A 93,630 11,559
406,449 305,024
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 36. AIHRES

On 27 April 2007, the Company issued USD Settled
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds due 2012 in the
aggregate principal amount of RMB1,158,000,000 (the

“Convertible Bonds"” or

“the Bonds"”). The subscription

amount payable in respect of each RMB100,000 principal
amount of Bonds is approximately US$12,952. The
Convertible Bonds are listed on Singapore Exchange
Securities Trading Limited.

The principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as
follows:

(

Optional conversion

Each Bond will, at the option of the holder, be
convertible (unless previously redeemed, converted
or purchased and cancelled) on or after 7 June
2007 up to and including the 14th day prior to
27 April 2012 into fully paid ordinary shares with
a par value of HK$0.10 each of the Company
(the “Shares”) at an initial conversion price (the
“Conversion Price”) of HK$8.1165 per Share with
a fixed exchange rate of HK$1.00 to RMB0.98887.
The Conversion Price is subject to adjustment in
certain circumstances. Unless previously redeemed,
converted or purchased and cancelled, the Bonds
will be redeemed on 27 April 2012 at an amount
equal to the US Dollar equivalent of their RMB
principal amount multiplied by 111.837 per cent.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007

RZZEZELFMOMA=Z++H AAQF
BT 85 A AR %1,158,000,000
TURETENHN ZZ — = F 5| 5
TENEBES([AJERES ] X
[E5]) - BEHEASBEEEARK
mmw%ﬁﬁﬁm:%iﬁmﬁ
12,952 3£ 7T © 0] 88 #2 (F &5 70 37 10 3 =&
HERXGMBR AT LT -

AIEMRES 7 F RO

(i) wEEHER
EEHFRFBATEER_ZZE
+tFEFNALBEREEREE=F
—Z—FWOMA-Z+EHME M
H(B#EZA)L8HE 292
0% B & %8.1165 % Ju (E & &
= 1.00 78 7T K A K #0.98887
TL)REFRLBRBEARRRERE
B0 T 2@ B EdK (K
M) (RIEBEFLAEER - &
B EENEH) BRERE
LEIREBFTL T TAAE - K
EBEFEAEED  HinciE
BERFH BABRZ-ZZE—=
FHA-Zt+tHARARBARS
REMI1.837 % 2 EBEETLED o



36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(ii)

Redemption

Redemption at the option of the Company

At any time after 27 April 2010 and prior to
27 April 2012, the Company may redeem all
or some only of the Bonds at a redemption
price equal to the US Dollar equivalent of
their Early Redemption Amount (as defined
below) as at the date fixed for redemption on
the redemption date if the closing price of the
Shares translated into RMB at the exchange
rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China
applicable to the relevant Trading Day for
each of 20 consecutive Trading Days, where
the last day of such period occurs not more
than 30 days prior to the date upon which
notice of such redemption is published, was
at least 130 per cent. of the Early Redemption
Amount divided by the Conversion Ratio
(which is equal to the RMB principal amount
of each Bond divided by the Conversion
Price).

The Early Redemption Amount, for each
RMB100,000 principal amount of the Bonds,
is determined so that it represents for the
bondholder a gross yield of 2.25% per
annum, calculated on a semi-annual basis.
The Early Redemption Amount is set out in
the table below, assuming that the date fixed
for redemption is the Semi-annual Date:

Semi-annual Date

36. AIHBRES (&)
(i) ®WHE

KL a] 2 #E FE 5]

%fg—gimﬂ:+t
BRE_-_ZT—_4MA
“t+ttBREAER -
R EE20 M8 5 B (fir &
BERZBEMZE—H
£ % W BE B 3B A AT = %30
BR)NE—RAREERS
HEAMPBEARIRTA
HREXRBLEAARBNR
MBETERIHERRESR
BB B & %8B AR AR B = (48
EREBEEHFEZARBAERSE
BBRABRBRE) 2130% -
A ARQR AR ER A # R
RiEEER B HE T E M
SHE(EEMT)NEESE
L BEEBREER I
DEBHAERDZES -

HEFACHEEEARK
100,000 tME ' EERE
EoeREBEESFFE
ABBYEFFE-—ADNE
H&/\HH%‘J\EAiz 25% °
MERRIEEER B B A F
FH:IEFHEDSEER
IR T -

Early Redemption Amount

¥EFEH REEEOESE
RMB

AR

27 October 2007 —ETLFTH=-+tR 101,125.00
27 April 2008 ZEZENFNNA=++AR 102,262.66
27 October 2008 —EENFE+A=+LH 103,413.11
27 April 2009 —EZENFOMA=-++H 104,576.51
27 October 2009 —EZNFTHA=ZTER 105,752.99
27 April 2010 —E-ZTFNA=++H 106,942.72
27 October 2010 —E—ZEF+HA=++tH 108,145.82
27 April 2011 —E——FmMA=++H 109,362.46
27 October 2011 —E——%F%+HA=++tH 110,592.79
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(i)

Redemption (Continued)

Redemption at the option of the Company
(Continued)

The Company may at any time prior to 27
April 2012 redeem all and not some only of
the Bonds at a redemption price equal to the
US Dollar equivalent of their Early Redemption
Amount on the redemption date if at any
time at least 90 per cent. in principal amount
of the Bonds has already been converted,
redeemed or purchased and cancelled.

Redemption at the option of the bondholder

The Company will, at the option of the
bondholder, redeem all or some only of such
Bonds on 27 April 2010 at the US Dollar
equivalent of their Early Redemption Amount
as at the relevant date fixed for redemption
upon the bondholder depositing a put
notice. A put notice, once delivered, shall
be irrevocable and may not be withdrawn
without the Company’s consent. No fewer
than 30 nor more than 45 days’ notice of the
commencement of the period in which the
put option can be exercised shall be given to
the bondholders.

The bondholders will have the right to require
the Company to redeem all or some of the
Bonds on the 14th day after the expiry of
such period of 60 days at the US Dollar
equivalent of their Early Redemption Amount,
when the Shares cease to be listed or
admitted to trading on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange or, if applicable, an Alternative
Stock Exchange, or when there is a change of
control of the Company.
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36.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

As the functional currency of the Group is RMB, the
conversion of the Convertible Bonds denominated in
RMB will result in settlement by exchange of a fixed
amount of cash in RMB, the functional currency of the
Group, for a fixed number of the Company’s Shares. In
accordance with the requirements of IAS 39 Financial
Instruments — Recognition and Measurement, the bond
contract must be separated into a liability component
consisting of the straight debt element of the Bonds,
a number of embedded financial derivatives consisting
of redemption options and an equity component
representing the conversion option of the bondholders
to convert the Bonds into equity. The proceeds received
from the issue of the Convertible Bonds have been split
as below:

(i)  Liability component represents the present value
of the contractually determined stream of cash
flows discounted at the prevailing market interest
rate applicable to instruments of comparable
credit status and providing substantially the same
cash flows, on the same terms, but without the
embedded derivatives.

The interest charged for the period is calculated
by applying an effective interest rate of 5.41% to
the liability component since the Convertible Bonds
were issued.

36.

ERES (E)

HRAKENDEEESARE - &
BRUARBEENTERESKS
BHRBARNEEDREEE ARB
EMNETHERE LBARAEEHK
BHBRMETEE - REERGTE

AFEREMTE : BRLEE
MRE BEFANAIREBHES

(HEFNEREHH2EAK) & T
BMARTETRE(ABEEZARK) A
REDSY (FEFHRBEARBAH
BEFERREaNBBRE) &7
BRIBESABESRESWT ¢

i) BER-EHEREENEE
/)\LEE"J;K/J?L/\T,%HZQEEWK
ARKRKHEAMREERE SR
EMBEATAR  ZHERMKKNA
ERTHEMERBBEMNRE B
TEERAANTESRIA -

Z RN ERABAHE
Wﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁ' @@%E

b
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

The fair value of the embedded derivatives of the

Embedded derivatives comprise:

36. AE‘ES(F)

(ii)

o The fair value of the call option of the

Company to require the bondholders to

redeem the Convertible Bonds; and

o The fair value of the put option of the

bondholders to require the Company to

redeem the Convertible Bonds.

Equity component represents the option to convert (iii)

the Convertible Bonds into the Shares, which is

determined by deducting the fair value of the

liability component and financial derivatives from

the proceeds of issue of the compound financial

instrument as a whole.

BRARITESR T AR :

s ARABREHFHAAE
ERIBHRESFNREED
DNREE: R

« BEEBBAZRARAE
1 B 48 4 i 3 ) 38 5% 1

ARfElE -

TEH‘VT%E@%%‘E}@
E%ﬁ?@%?ﬁ‘ﬁ

1S W e
=i &T/Tii?‘ﬂllﬂ

EJ%W‘F%MEM\‘%@TE%%&IQE’J

Convertible Bonds was calculated using certain valuation ARBEEABEENS CHAR
models. The major inputs used in the models as at 27 —EELFMNAZ=+LEH &:%égi
April 2007 and 31 December 2007 were as follows: F+-_A=+—H8 ZEAMERD
FEHEBENOT :
(a) Call option (b) Put option
of the Company of bondholders
(@) XA AR B E (b) EHRHHANZLE
27 April 31 December 27 April 31 December
2007 2007 2007 2007
ZERLE e 3 —2ELF —EELF
M A t=A mA +=8
=ttH =t+-H =t+tH =t+-H
Stock price (a) B & (a) HK$5.67 HK$6.98
5.678 7L 6.9878 7T
Exercise price (b) 1T 1B (b) HK$8.1165 HK$8.1165 RMB106,943¢ RMB106,943
8.1165% T 811658 AR%1069437L0 AR 106,9437C
Risk-free rate £ [ b F) & 4.136% 2.989% 2.38% - 3.24% 3.78% - 4.24%
Expected life A B M E 5 60 months 52 months 3 years 2 years
601E A 5218 A 3% 2%
Volatility R IR 39.27% 52.60% 10.92% 12.05%
per annum per annum
§F10.92% FF12.05%
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(a)

The stock prices were as at 27 April 2007 and 31
December 2007 respectively. The risk-free rates
were determined with reference to the Hong Kong
Exchange Fund Notes Yields as extracted from
Bloomberg. The expected lives were estimated
based on the terms of the Convertible Bonds. The
volatilities were determined based on the historical
price volatilities of comparable companies under
the same periods as the expected lives.

The exercise prices were the Early Redemption
Amount as at the expected maturity date of the
option outlined in the terms of the Convertible
Bonds. The risk-free rates were determined with
reference to the China Government Bond Yields as
extracted from Bloomberg. The expected lives were
estimated based on the terms of the Convertible
Bonds. The volatilities were determined based on
the historical interest rate volatilities per annum
as at 27 April 2007 and 31 December 2007
respectively.

The exercise prices for the put option of
bondholders is stated at for each RMB100,000
principal amount of the Bonds.

Any changes in the major inputs into the model will

result in changes in the fair value of the embedded

derivatives. The variables and assumptions used in

calculating the fair value of the embedded derivatives are

based on the directors’ best estimates.

36.

AERES (&)

(@ BREIMNAR=-ZZZ+LFHEA
ZttHER=ZZEZTtLF+=A
=T —HRAITHEE - EER
MERELBEBINEESES
WEX(REEEE)BREE -
B ERFHIBETEBRE
B IE SR ME L S 5T o K 1R AR
BOEALBRAREEMGIT AR
FHER MM A LENE
PEKEEMEE

by BRABRMESME  TEER
RAETH A AR BB A A
REFEODSHE - ERARM XL
2BPERF GRS (&%
BEB)RETE - Bt AREFEB
Ty AR % A] ¥ E 55 B IR SR ME
et RIBAIREBER —_TT+
FOAZ+EtHAR-ZZEZELF
TZA=+t—H2BIEBENEF
J& 2 &R 1% 1 B E

(0 BEHFEHBEANBOENITERE
HEBEBHEFNASEAR
#100,000 7T, °

MZEANTEZHRELREMNEE
REERRARTETAENAAEER
HEES  AERAATETAENR
REESEAEANEHERRIIER
EEMREMG -
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36. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 36, WERES (&)
The movement of the liability component and embedded RABA - BEEHS RATEBERESH
derivatives of the Convertible Bonds for the period is set BMARNTATAENEFHERES W
out below: K
Put Call
Liability option of option of Equity
component  bondholders the Company  component Total
EERHEAN PN
SERD R REE EEBD Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARETT
Convertible Bonds issued e o3
on 27 April 2007 Eﬂ_;+ta
ENUBAES 995,142 75,472 (25,447) 112,833 1,158,000
Transaction costs LA (20,977) — — (2,210) (23,187)
Interest charged REZE-TSLE
during the year ended +-A=+—HL
31 December 2007 FRFERN
(note 14) M8 (Ff14) 33,384 — — — 33,384
Changes in fair value AnEEED
(note 14) (FitsE14) — 16,284 (20,724) — (4,440)
As at 31 December 2007 NZEELE
+-B=1+—H 1,007,549 91,756 (46,171) 110,623 1,163,757

No conversion of the Convertible Bonds has occurred up
to 31 December 2007.

The changes in the fair value of the embedded
derivatives from 27 April 2007 to 31 December 2007
resulted in a fair value gain of RMB4,440,000, which
has been recorded as “Fair value changes on embedded
financial derivatives” in the consolidated income

statement for the year ended 31 December 2007.
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37.

38.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in
the PRC, the Group participates in defined contribution
retirement benefit schemes (the “Schemes”) organised
by the relevant local government authorities in Shanghai
whereby the Group is required to make contributions
to the Schemes at the rate of 22% of the eligible
employees’ salaries. The local government authorities are
responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
retired employees.

The Group has no other obligation for the payment
of pension benefits associated with those schemes
and other post-retirement benefits beyond the annual
contributions described above.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

On 19 September 2006, the Company granted
18,540,000 share options, out of which 7,500,000
shares and 11,040,000 shares were granted to a
director of the Company and certain senior employees
respectively. The options are exercisable in whole or in
part at any time during a period commencing on the
date upon which the offer for the grant of options is
made but shall expire on the date immediately preceding
the tenth anniversary of the date of offer. The options
vest as to 25% each on the date of grant, first, second
and third anniversary dates of the offer respectively. No
options may be exercised until after the expiry of twelve
months after the date of vesting (provided that options
vested under the first tranche shall not be exercisable
within twelve months from the listing date of 10 October
2006).

On 10 October 2007, the Company granted 640,000
share options to two employees of the subsidiaries of the
Company to subscribe 640,000 ordinary shares for an
exercisable price of HK$6.3 per share. The options vest as
to 30% on the date of grant, 30% and 40% on the first
and second anniversary dates of the offer respectively. No
options may be exercised until after the expiry of twelve
months after the date of vesting.

37.

38.

BERAKEF
BRETRERASBER  AEE2 A
HEBEWABRNBMARINAE
HHRRRBHFE ([518]))  AEHE
BREEREEHFEH22% M a8 #
R BEHBRAHBMABERERKES
2B ERE -

BB ERERI  AEELEH A
BBz FTE REMERREN R
KEHREME -

[ &7 X
R=ZZTEZENFLA+ILA A
A) &% 118,540,000 1 B L #£ - H R
7,500,000 17 & A% 4 5 11,040,000 17 f#
BRESFIWR FARRA—REERSR
TEAEE - EREATREBFELED
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EARRENBAHNE— F_KF
=@BF A 25&E25% 0 K
EERE BEEARST_@EAER
BB AT B AR (EREE — AT
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RZZFEZT+tF+A+H ARAR
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

On 3 December 2007, the Company granted 10,000,000
share options to a newly joined executive director of
the Group to subscribe 10,000,000 ordinary shares for
an exercisable price of HK$6.526 per share. The options
vest as to 25% each on the date of grant, first, second
and third anniversary dates of the offer respectively. No
options may be exercised until after the expiry of twelve

months after the date of vesting.

(a)

The terms and conditions of the grants that existed
during the year are as follows, whereby all options
are settled by physical delivery of shares:

38. WX (#E)

B —RATES
BT ITEER

H25% M) BE A% HE R B

RZZEZELF+_A=H AQAFE
) 10,000,000 17 B A% # F 37 00 A A &
LA 2 5 1% 6.526
#% 10,000,000 f% & @
e REHEARRENAHHE

CE_RE=Z@BFAE DHE
B-RBERAR

TEAERET AITEBRE -

(a)

FRAEFENELEE KRR
K AGH T - AT A B g

BRBEERNKNESR :

Number
of shares
involved Contractual
in the life of
option Vesting condition options
i AR 1
iy R BRER
% & B 5 B R4 BHER
Options granted to directors:
RTFEENERE :
—on 19 September 2006 7,500,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable price 10 years &
—R-ZZEERENA of HK$3.824 per share; (i) 25% on each of the first,
thA second and third anniversary dates of the offer at an
exercisable price of HK$4.302 per share
(VWK EEH25% A ZFAR3.824 B TWITHEER
B ()RENBHNE - F_RE=EBFH
HEAD%UEFGRIZBTHIEERE
— on 3 December 2007 10,000,000 25% each on the date of grant, first, second and 5 yearsF
—RZEZELF+=H third anniversary dates
=H of offer at an exercisable price of
HK$6.526 per share
RELEBRRENBHNE - E-RE=
BEBH - HHEE25%H)
BRETZER26ETHNITFEESRB
Options granted to employees:
EFEENMBERE
—on 19 September 2006 11,040,000 (i) 25% on the date of grant at an exercisable price 10 years 4
—R-ZEZEFNA of HK$3.824 per share; (i) 25% on each of the first,
+ 8 second and third anniversary dates of the offer at an

exercisable price of HK$4.302 per share
(\REHEH25% A R ER3.824B THTHEER
B:()RENAHMNE— F-_RE=EBFA
HEB2D% I RERA02ETHITRESRS
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Number
of shares
involved

in the
option
iR e
SR
Bt 43 8 B

38. ROIXMN (&)

Contractual

life of

Vesting condition options

BREN
5B R BHHR

Options granted to employees: (Continued)

RFESHERE : (&)
— on 10 October 2007 640,000
—R_ZTTLF

+A+H

Total share options
BREHS 29,180,000

30% on the date of grant, 30% and 4 years

40% on the first and second anniversary
dates of offer at an exercisable price of
HK$6.3 per share

30% NEHEBFB - M30%
K A40% H B E 4 HERE —
REZAFHBNR
FBR6IBTHITEERE

BB (ZER)ERAF « _TTLFFR
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

(b)

Fair value of shares involved in the options
and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference
to the fair value of share options granted. The
estimate of the fair value of the services received is

38. WX (#&)
b) BREMRMSEROHD

REE
KB R

ABEUPTE R R IR M R F
RENAABELDZ2BRMAR D
BERENAIABEE - R

measured based on the binomial model as required
by IFRS 2. The contractual life of the option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early

exercise are incorporated into the model.

BREN AL EEMBTIRIE
BB HREERFE2RABRE
M-_EEAGFE - BRENS
R BIEZEXNGTE R
B RBTEMEH I AZ

B
Granted in Granted in
October 2007 September 2006
R-ZELF R-EBEXRE
+ARH AARH

HK$1,284,456 % 7T

HK$41,515,107 % 7T

HK$6.37% 7T HK$4.78 74 7T
HK$6.37% 7T HK$3.824 % JT.-
HK$4.3025% 7T

52.43% 51.16%-51.21%

4 years & 10 years &
3.955% 3.955%-4.077%

Granted in
December 2007
R-BBLHF
TZARHE
Fair value at grant date ¥ HH HK$20,172,5317% JT
AREE
Share price R (B HK$6.37% JT
Exercise price 1TEE HK$6.526 % JT
Expected volatility T8 HA % 18 51.82%
Option life B ERR 5 years &
Risk-free interest rate 4 [ i | = 2.65%
(based on Hong Kong (LAB B INE
Exchange Fund Notes Rate)  H & Z &
B = A

The expected volatility is based on the historic
volatility, adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility due to publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on
estimation of management. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially affect
the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken into
account in the grant date fair value measurement
of the services received. There were no market
conditions associated with the share option grants.

No share option has been exercised, lapsed or
cancelled pursuant to the above share option
schemes during the year ended 31 December 2007.
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SHARE CAPITAL

39. B
At 31 December 2007 and 2006

R-BEREFR=-ZZLH
+=H=+—H
The Group and the Company
AEERAEQT
No. of shares Amount
i =g -}
HK$ 000
BT T
Authorised: JETE ¢
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREENBITHERR 10,000,000,000 1,000,000
No. of shares Amount
%45 & B 8
RMB'000
AR T T
Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid: % i@A% @ B &ITHEE :
At 13 April 2006 (note (i)) —ETRFHEA+T=8 (M) 1 1
Issuance of ordinary shares P E A T AR
upon the Reorganisation (note (ii)) (B 5 (i) 1,210,146 123
Capitalisation issue (note (iii)) & AL 2 17 (T 3E (i) ) 748,789,853 76,317
Issuance of ordinary shares for placing &t it & & /A 9 3 & 3 17
and public offering (note (iv)) 3@ Bk (BT EEGy) 287,500,000 29,130
At 31 December 2007 and 2006 RZEERNER_ZTELHF
+=-—A=+—H 1,037,500,000 105,571
(i) The Company was incorporated on 13 April 2006 () ARARRZZEZRFNAT+=

with an authorised share capital of HK$400,000
divided into 4,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each. On
13 April 2006, one subscriber’s share of HK$0.1 in
the Company was allocated and issued nil-paid to
Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd. (“SPG"), the

ultimate holding company.

BBt (EZER

B 5 it B¢ 32 » & F A& ZK400,000
B JT 0 9 A4,000,000 % & & E

BOIBTKRHD - ARAIKRZE
ERFHAT=ZHmM&ELER
7% |]Starwaly Properties (Group)
Pty Ltd. ([SPG]) g 3% K& % 17 —
Ik & AR E (E0.1 7% 7T /Y R 8k K
REARD -

VERAT « —TT+EFR 211
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SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 30 June 2006, the Company issued 797,699
ordinary shares at par to SPG in consideration of
acquiring the equity interests of the subsidiaries of
the Company from SPG.

On 30 June 2006, the Company issued 202,300
ordinary shares to purchase 49% equity interest in
the issued capital of Delta Link. On 19 September
2006, the Company acquired the remaining 51%
equity interest in Delta Link, which was satisfied
by the issue of 210,147 ordinary shares of the
Company (note 7).

At an extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 19 September 2006, the
shareholders approved the increase in authorized
share capital of the Company to 10,000,000,000
ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.1 each.
On the same date, the shareholders also authorised
the issue of 748,789,853 ordinary shares of HK$0.1
each by way of capitalisation of HK$74,878,985
(equivalent to RMB76,317,000) from the share
premium account upon the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

On 10 October 2006, 250,000,000 ordinary
shares were issued and offered for subscription at
a price of HK$4.78 per share upon listing of the
Company'’s ordinary shares on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange. On 17 October 2006, an additional
37,500,000 ordinary shares were issued and
offered for subscription under the over-allotment
option. The proceeds of HK$28,750,000 (equivalent
to RMB29,130,000) representing the par value,
were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HK$1,345,500,000
(equivalent to RMB1,363,261,000), before share
issue expenses of RMB70,247,000, were credited to
the share premium account.
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39.

A (&)

(ii)

(iii )

(iv)

EA—7 7/\ﬂ5/\ﬂ +E| Z’-‘
A) ¥ T 18 [ISPG % 17797,699 A%
L@k - EE R QR MSPGH
BFRAAMRAERAEE -

73-/\\_ = /\ﬁi/\ﬂ +E| ZJX

A 7] % 17202,300 A% T i AR LA UL
88 Delta Link © % 17 I X H149%
BHE-R=_FTZTFNLATA
B+ &N R 7 W EDelta Link X £
51% A% # - i 42 B8 A BA B 17 A
AN A1210,147 R E B A 5 R X
5 (BF5ET7) o

RZZBEEFALATNLBETT
MARABRRERFIAE L K
R ERNARBEERAE
10,000,000,000 % + & B% E {H0.1
BT EBER AA - REDN
BHEREARAROHERBEHE
Fr = T B % B 17 4 {8 74,878,985
BT (BHER AR 76,317,000
JL) R E R - 3 17748,789,853
BRERBEINBTHLEA -

RZZEBEEAF+A+TH BRA
N EBREESHIM LN
KRB FIRAT78ETTHE

& % 17 & $2 2 7R # 250,000,000
H&%@HX"F\ TT/\&‘FH
+tH A2FRREBBEER
BN BTRRERENHAE
37,500,000 @R - KK EE
8 # BT 15 5K 128,750,000 & 7T
(HHE M AR #29,130,0007T) B
FEARRBIRA - HBFBX
18 1,345,500,000 7 7T (8 S 7 A
FR#1,363,261,000 7T ) (1B B% 15
17 S A R #70,247,000 7T )
B ARMDEER -



(i) The excess of the consolidated net assets represented

by the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over

nominal value of the shares issued by the Company

in exchange under the Reorganisation was transferred

to the contributed surplus account in the Company’s

financial statements.

BEEH(ZER)ARAF » —

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES 0. RO BEEBENLREE
(a) The Company (a) =27
Capital reserves
(undistributable)
EARE
(FA2E)
— convertible
Share  Contributed  bonds equity — employee Accumu-
premium surplus component  share option  lated losses Total
-TERES
R EE EdEH EE®S -EEBRE 2HER Ch
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT  ARBTr ARETr ARETx  ARETn  ARETx
(note 40(b)) (note (i) (note 36) (note 38)
(B3 3E4000)) iE0)) GEZ) (i ££38)
At 13 April 2006 “REAEMALTER
(date of incorporation) (s LA) — — — — — —
Arising from the Reorganisation ~ FE4E 4 — 308,439 — — — 308,439
Issue of shares for acquisition AU TR AT RS
of subsidiary (note 7, 39) (FtzE 7, 39) 867,740 = = = = 867,740
Capitalisation issue ERLET (76,317) - - - - (76,317)
Issue of new shares NERBEERABTH
by global offering & n 1,363,261 - - — — 1,363,261
Placing and listing expenses REREMSH (70,247) — — — — (70,247)
Equity settled share-based K& Zm ki
transactions TRRS — — — 10,916 — 10,916
Loss for the year FEER — — — — (5,926) (5,926)
Balance at 31 December 2006 —ZEXE+=H
St-BAMEH 2,084,437 308,439 — 10,916 (5,926) 2,397,866
Equity settled share-based kEEENRR
transactions TR — — — 25,002 — 25,002
Equity component NERESFNERDH
of convertible bonds — — 110,623 - - 110,623
Loss for the year FEER — — — - (97,479) (97,479)
Balance at 31 December 2007 —ZEE+£+=f
=+-HMEH 2,084,437 308,439 110,623 35,918 (103,405) 2,436,012
Note: DR

i) HeFEEMEEFAA
PR EBIBA R RN EARET
WAL HZERMDEEZZE
B)BREADNAPBEHRRD
BEHRANBERE -
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The application of the share premium account is
governed by the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Under the Companies Law, the funds in
the share premium account of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Merger reserves
The merger reserves represent the difference
between the Company’s share of the nominal value
of the paid-up capital of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the ordinary shares issued
by the Company.

Revaluation reserve

The revaluation reserve relates to property
reclassified from owner-occupied to investment
property. For such reclassifications, the cumulative
increase in the fair value of the property at the
date of reclassification in excess of any previous
impairment losses is included in the revaluation
reserve.
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40.

SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(e)

PRC statutory reserves
Transfers from retained earnings to PRC statutory

reserves were made in accordance with the

relevant PRC rules and regulations and the articles

of association of the Company’s subsidiaries

incorporated in the PRC and were approved by

the respective boards of directors. The statutory

reserves consist of:

(i)

(ii)

General reserve fund

Transfers from retained earnings to
the general reserve fund were made in
accordance with the articles of association
of the Company’s subsidiaries and were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the general reserve
fund can be used to cover previous years’
losses, if any, and may be converted into
capital in proportion to equity holders’
existing equity holdings, provided that the
balance after such conversion is not less than
25% of their registered capital.

Enterprise expansion fund

Transfers from retained earnings to the
enterprise expansion fund were made in
accordance with the articles of association
of the Company’s subsidiaries and were
approved by the respective boards of
directors.

For the entity concerned, the enterprise
expansion fund can be used for business
development purposes and for working
capital purpose. This fund is non-distributable
other than upon liquidation. Transfers to this
fund must be made before distribution of
dividends to the equity holders.

4. RO RERHE(E)
(e) TEIEZERE
R Bm & E R A E R
H IR BB B R B X B &R G
EARNBEREFMKZFA
AMERAEET TRZA
ExeE AEREEE

() ZEBBHLEZ
HERBENERELER
AT HREBEARR T
ARAMERRMAANET X
ExaEFaHE -

REBORAAME AT
B B AERM L
FEEBE(WE) MR
BEFEARBOFRLE
Pl RIRA . HEEBRIER
BRIBLIONEMERD
25% o

(i) TRZEREZD
MARBEEMNEREEEE
RESDREBEARAFA

A ERMAET - W
SEEERIE -
REBMARTNS  b%

HRESTAEEBZR
NEBEERET - BRBERIN
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SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Translation reserve

The translation reserve comprises all foreign
currency differences arising from the translation
of the financial statements of foreign operations.
The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy set out in note 3(b)(ii).

Distributable reserve

As at 31 December 2007, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for distribution
to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB2,289,471,000 (2006: RMB2,386,950,000).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objective in managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders, by pricing products and services
commensurately with the level of risks and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a balance
between the higher shareholder returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowing and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group
monitors its capital structure on the basis of a net
debt-to-adjusted equity ratio. For this purpose
the Group defines net debt as total debt (which
includes interest-bearing loans and borrowings,
convertible bonds, trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends, less cash and cash
equivalents and restricted cash. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

The net debt-to-adjusted equity ratio as at 31
December 2007 was 68% (2006: 40%). There
were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital
management during the year.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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41.

42.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
financial guarantees to secure obligations of such
purchasers for repayments. The outstanding guarantees
amounted to RMB266,038,000 as at 31 December 2007
(2006: RMB145,405,000). Such guarantees terminate
upon the earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate
ownership certificate which will generally be available
within six months after the buyer takes possession of
the relevant properties; and (ii) the satisfaction of the
mortgaged loan by the buyer of properties.

In the opinion of directors of the Company, the fair
values of the financial guarantee contracts of the Group
are insignificant at initial recognition and the directors
consider that the possibility of default by the parties
involved is remote. Accordingly, no value has been
recognised in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2007.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group conducts its operations in the PRC and
accordingly is subject to special considerations and
significant risks. These include risks associated with,
among others, the political, economic and legal
environment, influence of national authorities over

pricing regulation and competition in the industry.

The Group has exposure to the following risks from its
use of financial instruments:

o credit risk

o liquidity risk

o market risk (including interest rate risk, currency
risk and equity price risk)

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and
managing risk.

41.

42,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Management has overall responsibility for the
establishment and oversight of the Group's risk
management framework. Management establishes
policies to identify and analyse the risks faced by the
Group, to set up appropriate risk limits and controls,
and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly
to reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s
activities. Through training and management standards
and procedures, management aims to develop a
disciplined and constructive control environment in which
all employees understand their roles and obligations.

(a) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s trade and
other receivables and investments.

The Group’s management has a credit policy in
place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored
on an ongoing basis.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade, other receivables and advance deposits. In
respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on each new
customer. The Group’s review includes external
ratings, when available, and in some cases
bank references. These evaluations focus on the
customer’s liquidity of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the customer as
well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Customers are
generally required to transact with the Group on a
prepayment basis. The Group generally offers no
credit terms to the customers. Normally, the Group
does not obtain collateral from customers.
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42,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The default risk of the industry and
country in which customers operate also has
influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit as 79% (2006: 77 %) of
the total trade, other receivables and advance
deposits arising from the Group’s deposits for land
acquisition. These deposits will be transferred to
the cost of properties under development upon the
Group obtaining the relevant land use rights.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without
taking account of any collateral held is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset,
including derivative financial instruments, in the
balance sheet after deducting any impairment
allowance. Except for the financial guarantees given
by the Group as set out in note 41, the Group does
not provide any other guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
The maximum exposure to credit risk in respect
of these financial guarantees at the balance sheet
date is disclosed in note 41.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade,
other receivables and advance deposits are set out
in note 30.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
are placed with a group of banks and financial
institutions which management considers have
good credit ratings. Investments are normally
only in liquid securities quoted on a recognised
stock exchange and management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its
obligations.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42. €@ T A (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (b) FRENEEB

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be MEVER R AASEES B
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall BEZBTHUBEBOER -
due. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor AEBEHNBKAEEHEREHER
its liquidity requirements and its compliance with HESTERETERREZLOD
lending covenants, to ensure that it maintains =P ﬁﬁﬁ% T EHIR S HF
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed HEERBRTESEHNE L
lines of funding from banks to meet its liquidity BEEE - AEMNAEKESH
requirements in the short and longer term. EREHHORBESFER -
The following table details the remaining TRAMNEE B RNE BT
contractual maturities at the balance sheet of the EERMBEE TS NEAEND
Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, which iR - TWIRE T A REBIR f'ﬁ
are based on contractual undiscounted cash flows eRE(BEZRELOF XK (W
(including interest payments computed using BE)AEAZHMNEGFTERN
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates FMEMNF) RAEETETZR
current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest RO EFHBAEEMEDR

date the group can be required to pay:

Within Within
Undiscounted Within 2 years 5 years
Carrying contractual 1 year or but over but over Over
31 December 2007 amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
KERBTH S E MER REHUR
ZERLETZA=1-H REE ReRE REX E-F0E EWENL RENE
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000

ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARRTR ARETx

Trade and other payables excluding &8 31 )2 & ]
advance receipts from customers BREERR 793,284 (793,284) (699,654) (93,630 — -

Secured Interest-bearing loans SEAGEER 1,046,210 (1,191,083) (433,886) (492,135) (123,207) (141,855)
Unsecured interest-bearing loans BERASER 5,000 (5,136) (5,136) — - —
Convertible bonds Epul 1,007,549 (1,238,397) - - (1,238,397) =

2,852,043 (3,227,900) (1,138,676) (585,765) (1:361,604) (141,855)
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42 S@IAE)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) FEBMEE (EZ)
Within Within
Undiscounted Within 2 years 5 years
Carrying contractual 1 year or but over but over QOver
31 December 2006 amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
REREET —EN MEMNE AEUA
ZRERETZA=T-H REE HORERE REX —E)E BRENL AFNE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTr ARETr AREFTx  ARETn  ARETx
Trade and other payables excluding i B 30 [ £ ft e 308
advance receipts from customers  ERRERREFFE 481,602 (481,602) (470,043) (11,559) = =
Secured interest-bearing loans BEMGEER 1,890,860 (2,090,945) (1,222,281) (376,177) (336,630) (155,857)
Unsecured interest-bearing loans &4 3t B & 10,000 (10,173) (10,173) — — —
2,382,462 (2,582,720) (1,702,497) (387,736) (336,630) (155,857)
(c) Interest rate risk () A=EREb
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from AREBEHWHNXEREZEREE
interest-bearing loans, convertible bonds, cash and BER mJE#EBRES R KR

cash equivalents and restricted cash.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash
comprise mainly cash at bank, with fixed interest
rate of 0.72% per annum as at 31 December 2007
(2006: 0.72% per annum). Pledged bank deposits
and time deposits maturing after three months are
not held for speculative purposes but are placed to
satisfy conditions for borrowing facilities granted to
the Group and for higher yield returns than cash at
bank.

The Group's variable rate borrowings are exposed
to a risk of change in cash flows due to changes
of interest rates. The interest rates and terms
of repayment of the interest-bearing loans and
convertible bonds are disclosed in note 34 and 36.

The Group manages the net exposure to interest
rate risks by maintaining sufficient lines of credit to
obtain acceptable lending costs and by monitoring
the exposure to such risks on an ongoing basis.
Management does not enter into interest rate
hedging transactions since it considers that the cost
of such instruments outweigh the potential risk of
interest rate fluctuation.

TEFEVERRHBSE

RehBReFEEMRIRHIR
SETER/BOTEFR R_ZEZF
tFt+t-_A=t—HBHHEEFHE
EMERONZE(ZZZTRF :
BF02E) DHEWRITHER
R={EA8ALENERFRL
RBEEMBE MER/TH
ARITAAEERTHEERE
BRI - AR AR TR/ LR
FRESHNEEFX -

e EEPTES ST
FEDERHALREEDA
SRS E R Y P
R 5 {68 3R 50 IR 48 3B 5 B R34
36 -

AEBBBERTENEER
EAEEERARR XK
FRBRABEEEZERKEK
EEANERFRAKR - BEHEWLE
HEOTMNEXEARG REARE
EERALSTANRASR
FRFB R EER R
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Interest rate profile (Continued)

42. ¢®WMIE (&)

The following table details the interest

rate profile of the Group’s interest-bearing

borrowings at the balance sheet date.

Fixed rate borrowings & &l & & &
Secured BEEME S
interest-bearing loans B3
Unsecured EEAE R
interest-bearing loans BR
Convertible bonds AR 5

Variable rate borrowings o] & 7| & {& &

Secured BEATE
interest-bearing loans B
Total borrowings & 4a%E

Fixed rate borrowings
as a percentage

of total borrowings

(Holdings) Limited e Annual Report 2007

(0 F=mEB(E)
() FIEFE(E)
T%ﬂikﬁ %;% H ZK%@
HEr EERAEIBFR -
2007 2006
—EEtHF —EETRXR
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate rate
BB A =E BB A =
% RMB’'000 % RMB’000
AR® T AR F T
6.65% 263,400 5.15% 695,890
6.8% 5,000 6.29% 10,000
5.41% 1,007,549 — —
1,275,949 705,890
7.45% 782,810 6.44% 1,194,970
782,810 1,194,970
2,058,759 1,900,860
37%
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i) Sensitivity analysis
The Group does not account for any fixed
rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss and equity. Therefore a
change in interest rates at the reporting date
would not affect profit or loss and equity.

A change of 100 basis points in interest
rates applicable to variable rate instruments
at the reporting date would have increased/
(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the
amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant. The analysis
is performed on the same basis in 2006.

42. ¢®WMIE (&)

(0 NERR(E)
(i) SRR D W

AEEYBEAEL LB
16 51 B 7 1R 2% AR 2% 5 12
MEENESMEERS
5o Bt AEE S B0
NEBBDTEYEEER

L
o

Rk E B ERNETA
B A = & 5100 & & B
O ) s R IE
W BFIR TR A D
MEBREmEEMTERE
(LHEEIINEEX) RET
B —_TTNFHNDINIE
HREEHET o

Profit or loss Equity
B g
100 bp 100 bp 100 bp 100 bp
increase decrease increase decrease
2 H0100 18 2 10018 % fn100 1@ 210018
31 December 2007 —EELE
t=ZRA=t-A
Variable rate instruments A& F| & T A (5,245) (5,245)
31 December 2006 —EBEERE
+=ZA=+-8H
Variable rate instruments ®] & F| X T A (8,007) 8,007 (8,007) 8,007
BREEM(ZER)ARAT » —_ZTTLEFEHR 223
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d)

Currency risk

Renminbi is not freely convertible into foreign
currencies. All foreign exchange transactions
involving Renminbi must take place through
the People’s Bank of China or other institutions
authorised to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rates adopted for the foreign exchange
transactions are the rates of exchange quoted by
the People’s Bank of China that are determined
largely by supply and demand.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk
primarily through borrowings that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the operations to which they relate. The
currencies in which these transactions primarily are
denominated are Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), United
States Dollars (USD) and Australian Dollars (AUD).

In respect of the monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies, the Group
ensures that the net exposures to this risk is kept
to an acceptable level by buying or selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address
short-term imbalances. The currency giving rise to
this risk is primarily USD and HK$. Management
does not enter into currency hedging transactions
since it considers that the cost of such instruments
outweighs the potential risk of exchange rate
fluctuations.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 42 S@IAE)

(d) Currency risk (Continued) d) ExmEg (&
(i) Exposure to currency risk () EmEE
The following table details the Group’s TERAFARNEBRNEER
exposure at the balance sheet date to EEREBRBERER
currency risk arising from recognised assets BEAERI g EEUING
or liabilities denominated in a currency other BERFENEERABEN
than the functional currency of the entity B R o
based on notional amounts.
31 December 2007 HK$'000 uUsD’000 AUD’000
—EEtHE+=-BR=+—8H BrTTr EnTx BT
Trade, other receivables JE T B 3k J% EL A
and advance deposits JiE W 3R 38 A
RIEMIZS 104,546 9,345
Cash and cash equivalents H& FRIRSEEY 150,223 26,226
Trade and other payables B BR S R E A
J& 3 318 (7,229)
Overall exposure 42 2 e 247,540 35,571
31 December 2006 HK$'000 usD’000 AUD'000
—EEXRE+=-A=+—H BT T ELTT SBIT T T

Trade, other receivables BB X KR E i

and advance deposits FE UL SR IE JA B
BR®RE 895 — _
Cash and cash equivalents IB& NMIBEZEEY 1,056,802 26 1
Trade and other payables FE AR SRR B A
FE 15 3R IR (14,809) — —
Overall exposure FENENr 1,042,888 26 1

,“;]L
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(d) Currency risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Exposure to currency risk (Continued)
The following significant exchange rates
applied during the year:

Average rates
FHEE
2007

—EELE
HKS 1 178 7T
USD 1 13T
AUD 1 18 7T

Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate
change in the Group’s profit and other
components of consolidated equity in
response to a 5 percent strengthening of the
RMB against the following foreign currencies
to which the Group has exposure at the
balance sheet date. This analysis assumes that
the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to each for
the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2006.

42. ¢@MIE (&)
(d s%RKR(E)
() E¥Ek (&)
AT AERNERANEERE
\‘R .

5 ¢

Reporting date spot rate

BEAMRHES
2006 2007 2006
“ETAT —RBLE C-TITA
1.0047
7.8087
6.1599

(i) BRI

TRER  MAREHN

THREBREERBRERR
BSNETHESE R D& 0 A
SENEMEGEEERHE
MEONBMOES - XD
TERRXREREEBHRES
2 7] B &Y S IR R A
VTEFEAEBSERR
ZHEEFENERIAGER
R BREHEMAIZRA
Z(LERNX)FRHELR
g —_TTNFNINK
HREELETT -

Profit or loss

HK$ BT
usD ETT
AUD B TT

B
2007 2006
—EELF —EEREF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR®ET T
(9,318) (42,802)
(10,446) (8)

A 5 percent weakening of the RMB against
the above currencies at 31 December would
have had the equal but opposite effect on the
above currency to the amounts shown above,
on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.

SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ¢ Annual Report 2007
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e)

U]

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from changes in the Company’s own share price
to the extent that the Company’s own equity
instruments underlie the fair values of financial
derivatives of the Group. As at the balance sheet
date the Group is exposed to this risk through
the redemption rights attached to the convertible
bonds issued by the Company as disclosed in note
36(ii).

Fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point
in time and based on relevant market information
and information about the financial instrument.
These estimates are subjective in nature and involve
uncertainties and matters of significant judgment
and therefore cannot be determined with precision.
Changes in assumptions could significantly affect
the estimates.

The following methods and assumptions were used
to estimate the fair value for each class of financial
instruments:

(i) Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
trade and other receivables and trade and
other payables

The carrying values approximate fair value
because of the short maturities of these
instruments.

(i) Investments
Fair value is based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction
for transaction costs.

(ifi)  Interest-bearing loans
The carrying amount of bank loans
approximate their fair value based on the
borrowing rate currently available for bank
loans with similar terms and maturity.

42. ¢@MIH (&)
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

Convertible bonds

The Group selects appropriate valuation
methods and makes assumptions with
reference to market conditions existing at
each balance sheet date, to determine the fair
value of the embedded financial derivatives
of the convertible bonds that are separated
from the host debt contract. The basis for
determining the fair value is disclosed in note
36.

Financial guarantees

The fair value of financial guarantees issued is
determined by reference to fees charged in an
arm’s length transaction for similar services,
when such information is obtainable, or is
otherwise estimated by reference to interest
rate differentials, by comparing the actual
rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates
that lenders would have charged, had the
guarantees not been available, where reliable
estimates of such information can be made.
The basis for determining the fair value is
disclosed in note 41.

228 SPG Land (Holdings) Limited ® Annual Report 2007

42. ¢@MIE (&)
DNAREEE)

()

(iv)

(v)

A R (E 5
AEBK2BREHEEADN
WITMRE  EBEED
HEAELIELERSE - A
ETBIREBEBHEAN
AEBRESNRANIT A
CMIEMAAREBE: &
AR EENEERKE
361% 5E o

B ER
EELTBERNDA(E
B2REXIFRAEA

M%ﬁ%%m%%%ﬁ#
E(WEERFBUHEER)

ﬂ%%ﬂ%%ﬁﬁim’
MEEEAEBERIBER
TRKBREERF X &
mErEERERBR T AR
HR &) A1 2= B b B (10 88
HEBEMIELAIZAM
i) EBEEAABEMNEE
M 41 EE -



43. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(i)

(ii)

43. EEHERE

Leases as lessee (i) EHREBEANESE
Non-cancellable operating lease rentals are payable TRAIHMELEHEANATH
as follows: BXAMEemT :
2007 2006
—EBEBLH T RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETTT
Less than one year —F K 5,345
Between one and five years —FEhEF 557
Total &t 5,902
The leases, in respect of office rental charges, run HERAEHeRAXABANEE
for a period within 5 years. ERFANER °
Leases as lessor (i) EREHBEANESE

The Group leases out its properties, which include
investment properties and completed properties
held for sale leased out on a temporary basis,
under operating leases. The future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable leases are as
follows:

AEERBLEEHELHEY R
EREREEMEREREENE
BAAFEWER - RIETA BH
HMEAREARUTHEMNH
ARHERERENT

2007 2006

—EELF —EERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR T T

Less than one year —F K 23,639 33,656
Between one and five years — FEE F{E 97,860 78,460
More than five years BB F 246,337 278,095
Total &5t 367,836 390,211

For the year ended 31 December 2007,
RMB22,914,000 (2006: RMB18,402,000) and
RMB6,671,000 (2006: RMB14,025,000) were
recognized as rental income in respect of
investment properties and completed properties
held for sale leased out on a temporary basis
respectively in the income statement.

Bit (BR)ERAT « —TTHFFH

HE_ZZLtF+_RA=+—
HIEFE  EREEMEMEE
LHEMNEEKSFEWETNE
REZNBASBADRAEAR
#£22,914,000 T ( Z T T XN F ¢
A K 18,402,000 7T ) Al A R #&
6,671,000 L (ZZT T RF : AR
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44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

BAREE
2007 2006
—EELF —ZEETREF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

3,872,228 818,708
3,618,948 1,407,707

Property development activities: MEEREEE :
— Contracted but not provided for — BRTAEREE
— Authorized but not contracted for — BREERFTA
Total a5t

7,491,176 2,226,415

45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Particulars of significant transactions between the
Group and certain related parties in which a director or
shareholder of the Company is in a position to exercise
significant influence are as follows:

(@) During the year ended 31 December 2007,
transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions:

Name of party
BRALER

BEALRS
AEERETHEAL(ARAES
IBMRAHFETEEAFZEE)NE
RRBHBHOT :

(@) REE_ZTZELF+_A=+—
BIEEE: B TATHETH

REOERBEALRS :
Relationship

B &

— Mr. Wang Weixian
—FEEXLE

— Starwaly Properties (Group) Pty Ltd. (“SPG")

— Shanghai ZhongXin Asset Management
Company Limited (“Shanghai ZhongXin”)
LERBEEREERAB(TLERE])
— Shanghai Yunjie Real Estate
Consultancy Company Limited
("Shanghai Yunjie")
FEBEREHMEZANETRAR
(TEBEXR]D
— Shenzhen Huibo Investment Development
Company Limited (“Huibo")
RYTEBREZEREGR QA
(TEE )
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The founding equity holder and
Chairman of the Company;
RAREIMREREARER
Controlling shareholder of the Company’s
ultimate holding company

ANA BB B SRR AR A A) B9 2 AR AR R
The ultimate holding company

R EER A A

An associate of the Company

ZJS E/j ii )\* /\

Controlled by a director
of various operating subsidiaries

HEZREETABANESZH

A minority equity holder of
Sipo Education

BEHENLEBERAA



45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

Recurring transactions

Name of party
BERALEE

45. BEALXRZ (&)

REXS

Relationship
B &

— The Peninsula Shanghai Waitan Hotel
Company Limited (“Peninsula Waitan”)
FERINEEESEERR AR
(M9NE¥S1)
— Shanghai Sendao Xinxing Men Chuang
Co., Ltd (“Sendao”)
FERESHEFEERA A
(I&B1)
—  Wauxi Guosheng and Wuxi Shenglian
B 55 B R K M 85 AR B
— Prestige Glory Enterprises Limited
("Prestige Glory"”)

— Boom Rich Investment Limited
("Boom Rich”)

50% indirectly owned by Delta Link
F Delta Link & # # 5 50%

Controlled by a close family member

of Mr. Wang Weixian
B E 2 B 54 6 R

Associates of the Company
ARFR B LA A

Equity holder of the Company and
owned by Mr. Wang Weixian
RRAERERB A
MHEREELAHESR

Equity holder of the Company and
owned by Ms. Wang Xuling

AR AR A

R IRELLES

2007 2006
—®®LE —TTAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARMTR

Construction cost: BB
Sendao RE

Sales commission expense: HERERAX :
Shanghai Yunjie EBER

Sales of service: R&EEE :
Peninsula Waitan INVEEE S

7,172

6,908

Construction cost, sales commission expense and
sales of services were charged based on the services
rendered by the related parties to the Group and
in accordance with the terms of the underlying
agreements.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above related party transactions were
conducted on normal commercial terms and were
priced with reference to prevailing market prices,
and in the ordinary course of business.

BEKA  HEMAEHA X KE
HERBURARBEREEALTRAAN
SEEHENRE &E BB E K
FBCER -

ARREZRAR/LABEEAL
REZBE-REBEBEIEARX
BT Y2EBRBEXEBSB
BRERMEETER -
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45. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 45. BMEALTTS (&)
() Balance with related parties () HBEALTHNESR
As at the end of 2007, the Group had the HE_2Z+FRK  AEEHERE
following balances with related parties: BBATENUNTER
2007 2006
—EELF e A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET R AR® T T
Trade balances due from JFE U A 3 A & FRIB 4 84
related parties (note 30): (M5E30) -
Peninsula Waitan AN B 6,908
Non-trade balances JE U F@?@}\iﬁﬁﬂﬁg
due from related parties (note 30): Wk 4 g4 (B¥5E30) -
Mr. Wang Weixian and F& EX?ET&,H\ psoh
his close family members —
Prestige Glory Prestige Glory —
Boom Rich Boom Rich —
Peninsula Waitan N B 8,744
Wuxi Guosheng 15 35 B A% —
Wuxi Shenglian fE 15 BX B —
Shanghai Yunjie EBER 2,984
15,258 18,636
Trade balances due to related parties &1 B83&E A L BIA 4 £k
(note 35): (M$3E35) -
Sendao *E 15,952 16,839
Non-trade balances due to JE - B 3 A o L Ath B 3K
related parties (note 35): 4k (KY3E35) ¢
SPG SPG
— dividends payable — TR E 9,173
— other payables — H {th fE 5 A 4,051
Huibo IE 1§ 7,050
37,113
Amounts due from/to related parties are unsecured, fEUL JE TR E AN £ 318 A E
interest-free and repayable on demand. BHR - 2B REREKE E o
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45.
(d)
46.
()
(i)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors
as disclosed in note 16 and certain of the highest
paid to employees as disclosed in note 17, is as
follows:

45. BEALXRS (&)

Salaries and other emoluments T & K H th 37 o
Share-based payments R A

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Dividend

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the board of
directors meeting held by the Company on 26
March 2008, it was resolved that dividend of
RMB149,549,000 (RMB14.4 cents per ordinary
share) was declared for the year ended 31
December 2007.

Acquisition of land use rights

On 4 January 2008, the Group acquired a parcel
of land in Hainan through purchase of the entire
issued share capital of Hainan Jiangiao Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (B E B & £ AR A 7)) from Shanghai
Newgench Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. (£ /& 1 &=
B % % B A R A A at a total consideration
of RMB405,150,000. The land site occupies
approximately 292,435 sg.m., which will offer
an aggregate gross floor area of approximately
250,458 sq.m. for both residential and hotel
development.

Be

(d BEEEBEASHH
HAREBASHHN 2EEM
TR BRI TAAAES
HY 35 B AN A2 B RET7 P BB
TEEFTMEENHMAOT :

2007 2006

—EETLF —TTXREF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR AR T
22,514 21,341

12,528 6,011

35,042 27,352

46. #HERH#EEE

(i) KRE
BEAEEAN_-_ZZENE=H
Tt NBEHANESSSZE
BHRRZR ARAFAAZE IR
HE-_ZZt+tHF+=-_A=1+—
HEFERNREAHARK
149,549,000 7T ( & iz & B 7 A
R¥14.4%5)

(ii) X5+t thfFE A

B (ZER)BRAA

RZZEZENF—-—HAMNAB - &%
EEARLENERLEEE
ERARBASHEREXES
BRARZEE ZETRAMNE
HES—BLi BRKEAA
R ¥405,150,000 JT ° % b #8 {5
3 T A& £9292,435F K 0 # 1R
£ #9250,458 F oKW R IEE A
BAREERBERRRASE -

—EELEFR



Summary of Consolidated Financial Information
e

HePBENEE

Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended Year ended
31 Dec 2007 31 Dec 2006 31 Dec2005 31 Dec 2004 31 Dec 2003

8E = EES =S =S
—E22EfE _—ZTRF C—ZTHE _—TTMFE Z-ZTT=F
+ZA +=A +=A +=A +=A
Er=[ =+—H =t+—H = r—F ==
LEE EEE LEE LEE LFE
CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’ OOO RMB'000 RMB'000
HaflEE AR®TRT ARETRT ARET ARBTT ARETR
Revenue U & 1,714,507 1,887,458 1,169,176 748,610 814,514
Cost of sales HERA (1,072,298) GRElVREE)! (681,655) (444,725) (550,046)
Gross profit EX 642,209 579,975 487,521 303,885 264,468
Other operating income Hip g A 9,237 15,858 14,512 1,003 27,375
Selling and marketing costs ia% N5 K (65,592) (28,281) (45,042) (31,584) (18,285)
Administrative expenses THER (151,743) (81,546) (70,497) (74,041) (45,224)
Other operating expenses Hin &% (9,115) (213) (12,730) (9,445) (731)
Net gain on disposal of equity ﬁé?“?w&ﬁ?
interest in subsidiaries g 193,112 = = = =
Results from operating activities RELEEDHREN 618,108 485,793 373,764 189,818 227,603
Finance income A A 46,359 23,092 6,786 4,278 3,340
Finance expenses A A (155,560) (36,640) (6,191) = )
Fair value changes on finance derivatives ’iyééﬁilﬁﬁﬁﬂmé‘é/‘ﬁéﬁ 4,440 = — — —
Net finance (expenses)/income F;Eﬁ W¢ /HZ N (104,761) (13,548) 595 4,278 3,338
Share of (loss)/profit of associates E (LB & (B#B) /%7 (8,239) (318) 1,047 = =

Profit before revaluation gains on A RENEERRER

investment properties and income tax  fff 5%t Al % A 505,108 471,927 375,406 194,096 230,941
Revaluation gains/(losses)

on investment properties 269,626 39,882 41,752 (1,033) 4218
Profit before income tax BB & B AR A 774,734 511,809 417,158 193,063 235,159
Income tax expense FrEREY (251,580) (112,799 (155,662) (90,174) (76,202)
Profit for the year EERF 523,154 399,010 261,496 102,889 158,957
Attributable to: T AL

Equity holders of the Company ARrIRERAE A 498,498 390,818 262,201 96,478 144,805

Minority interests DYREE R 24,656 8,192 (705) 6,411 14,152
Profit for the year EERA 523,154 399,010 261,496 102,889 158,957

Dividends payable to equity holders of JE{f &2 RIREREE A
the company attributable to the year ﬂEEE{EHQE

Dividends declared during the year AE RIS = 90,056 361,043 270,551 195,925
Dividends proposed after the balance é?% =R 3

street date es) 149,549 — — — —

Earnings per share BREM

N/A N/A

Basic earnings per share (RMB) SREFRA(ARY) 0.480 0.350 T8 A g

N/A N/A

Diluted earnings per share (RMB) BREFER(ARY) 0479 0350 TiEF T mE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

HAREARSE
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BELRXE
Land use rights T3 A
Properties under development BERAME
Investment properties RENE
Investment properties ERA

under development REME
Investments in associates Belnn#n
Financial derivatives TEERIA

Deferred tax assets

EXHREE

Total non-current assets FRBEELE
Properties under development ERRNE
Completed properties held for sales EEKGENE
Inventories 7

Investments &

Trade and other receivables B U B R e A B M R
Restricted cash XRHBEE

Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEEED
Total current assets RBEEAE
Total assets EEAE

Equity B

Share capital A

Share premium Rin & E

Reserves E}é %

Retained earnings/ (accumulated losses)

B/ (R BR)

Total Equity attributable to
equity holders of
the Company

Minority interests

Total equity

FRARE
BREA
EhERERAR

YBRRER

BHAE

31 December
2007
k-3 4 33
+ZAR
Sqr=[3]
RMB'000
ARRTTR

246,039
64,173
2,356,458
698,000

982,507
46,171
73,728

4,467,076

642,593
253,976
81

730
1,079,483
241,593
863,237

3,081,693

7,548,769

105,571
2,084,437
685,931
432,656

3,308,595

304,577

3,613,172

31 December

31 December

31 December

31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003
“EEXF —ZThHF —_TTNE —TEZ=F
+—H +-A +-A +-R
=1+—H ==M[ == =+—H
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR
226,856 183,279 198,740 159,745
74,280 75,767 78,270 35,797
758,434 966,068 1,160,425 818,446
333,700 259,700 39,400 7,400
40,907 35,250 79,176 —
944,134 63,774 = =
64,148 126,207 170,197 66,121
2,442,459 1,710,045 1,726,208 1,087,509
505,290 1,319,501 664,917 293,478
387,533 187,214 33,697 58,338
2,108 1,657 4,463 1,693
3,319 6,386 7,159 5,067
647,901 358,787 350,460 156,418
841,717 55,083 186,246 98,262
818,974 52,734 727,557 101,708
3,206,842 1,981,362 1,974,499 714,964
5,649,301 3,691,407 3,700,707 1,802,473
105,571 455 474 371,442 148,946
2,084,437 = = —
549,831 76,974 50,421 35,784
(65,233) (365,065) (265,315) (87,605)
2,674,606 167,383 156,548 97,125
15,830 22,638 22,941 51,130
2,690,436 190,021 179,489 148,255
SEM(ER)EBREQAAF « —_ T+ #® 235



Summary of Consolidated Financial Information

HePBENEE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

HEEERER

Liabilities =R

Interest bearing loans STEER
and borrowings PEEES

Trade and other payables
Tax payable

B A5 B0 2 L At B £ 5K
IR

Total current liabilities

RBREAE

Interest bearing loans

and borrowings IS
Covertible bonds ERES
Financial derivatives TESMTA
Deferred tax liabilities EEREEE
Total non-current liabilities F¥RBEEAE
Total liabilities EEAE
Total equity and liabilities BRREEAT

31 December
2007
—EZtE
+=A
=+-—H
RMB’000
AR®RTE

372,400
1,238,662
332,421

1,943,483

678,810
1,007,549
91,756
213,999

1,992,114

3,935,597

7,548,769
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31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2006 2005 2004 2003
“TTRNE —TTRHE —TTME —TT=F
T=A t=A TZA TR
Er=E8 ZEv—6 ZE7—B Z—E
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTn ARETR ARETR
1,111,390 727,339 255,127 415,000
848,026 2,199,017 2,328,724 1,028,925
185,934 165,039 205,067 49,636
2,145,350 3,091,395 2,788,918 1,493,561
789,470 397,000 731,691 160,000
24,045 12,991 609 657
813,515 409,991 732,300 160,657
2,958,865 3,501,386 3,521,218 1,654,218
5,649,301 3,691,407 3,700,707 1,802,473




SPGLA’N‘D.

I:l

46/F, Hongkong New World Tower No.300, Huaihai Road Central, Shanghai, China
LigmiEEPRI00mEFEME R AEL61E
Tel E5E: (86) 21 5382 2777
Website #811t: www.spgland.com
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